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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of China Chengtong
Development Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby present to all shareholders the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year").

During the Year, the Group adhered to its strategic directions. While it
continued to push forward the transformation and upgrade of its existing
businesses, it strove to explore new business areas, such as overseas
investment, mergers and acquisitions and asset management. During
the Year, the Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$1,353.12
million (2016: approximately HK$716.56 million), representing a growth of
approximately 89% as compared with that of last year. Profit before tax
recorded during the Year amounted to approximately HK$53.60 million
(2016: approximately HK$99.28 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 46% as compared with that of last year. During the Year,
there was a substantial growth in turnover as compared with that of last
year, which was mainly due to the significant growth in the bulk commodity
trade business. The decrease in profit before tax during the year was
mainly due to the decrease in the consolidated gross profit, the significant
decrease in other income and the increase in the selling and administrative
expenses during the year.

The Group is currently principally engaged in property development,
property investment, finance leasing, bulk commodity trade and hotel and
marine travelling services. For finance leasing, there were four new sale-
and-leaseback projects in 2017 with an aggregate principal amount of
RMB360 million, which preliminarily materialized the layout in major cities
of China. For property development and property investment, the Group's
overall strategy is to gradually withdraw from the market so as to obtain
cash flow for the strategic transformation of the Group. With regard to bulk
commodity trading, while continuously and steadily carrying out coal trading
and exploring the business of sale of electricity, combined with the market
environment in which the price of bulk commodity gradually increased,
the Group resumed its bulk commodity trade business with steel as the
primary type of commodity under the premise of strict control of risks. In
terms of hotel and marine travelling services, the Group's key emphasis
in 2017 were to evaluate and promote the spin-off listing of its Huandao
tourism business on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange") and develop new travelling resources.
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In respect of the exploration of new businesses, combined with the
implementation of the “One Belt, One Road” initiative by the state and the
background of the reorganisation of the Group's controlling shareholder
as state-owned capital operation companies, the Group has been
continuously exploring overseas investment, mergers and acquisitions and
asset management related business since 2016. In May 2017, the Group
participated in the share placing of Honghua Group Limited (“Honghua
Group"”), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 196), and explored a new model of overseas
mergers and acquisitions by “going global” with other state-owned
enterprises on the capital level. Meanwhile, the Group conducted multi-
dimensional study and exploration during the Year on the establishment of
fund for overseas investment, mergers and acquisitions.

Looking forward, the Group will further strengthen its strategic directions.
While the Group will try its best endeavour to better develop its existing
businesses, it will continue to explore business in relation to “overseas
investment, mergers and acquisitions and asset management”, leverage
and integrate the resources advantages of the Group's controlling
shareholder, so as to cultivate and generate new source of profit.

At last, |, on behalf of the Board, would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, business partners and communities for their
continuous support and care to the Group. | would also like to thank all the
management and employees of the Group for their hard works during the
Year.

Yuan Shaoli
Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WD AT

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group was mainly
engaged in five business segments within the territory of
the People's Republic of China (“"PRC"), including: property
development, property investment, finance leasing, bulk commodity
trade and hotel and marine travelling services.

Since 2017, the PRC has been continuously promoting “Supply-Side
Structural Reform”. The results of the elimination of excess
production capacity were prominent, consumption gradually
recovered. The price of bulk commodity went up amidst fluctuations.
The Group resumed the trading of steel and non-ferrous metals under
bulk commodity trade in April 2017 where risks were manageable,
which resulted in a significant year-on-year increase in turnover.
However, the consolidated gross profit recorded a year-on-year
decrease due to the intense competition of bulk commodity trade
and the minimal sales margin. Besides, the expansion of bulk
commodity trade led to a year-on-year increase in the selling and
administrative expenses for the year. In addition, exchange loss was
recorded during the year while an exchange gain was recorded in
the corresponding period of last year and interest income decreased
as compared to that of last year, causing a year-on-year decrease in
other income. Primarily due to the abovementioned factors, the profit
of the Group decreased as compared to that of last year.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a consolidated
turnover of approximately HK$1,353.12 million (2016: approximately
HK$716.56 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 89%. The significant increase in turnover was mainly
attributable to the resumption of the trading of steel and non-
ferrous metals under bulk commodity trade since April 2017 which
recorded a relevant turnover of approximately HK$461.10 million
(2016: Nil). The price of coal has been increasing continuously during
the year and hence the relevant turnover increased year-on-year
by approximately 34% to approximately HK$684.77 million (2016:
approximately HK$511.85 million).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded
a consolidated profit after tax of approximately HK$23.55
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
HK$43.82 million or approximately 65% as compared with the
consolidated profit after tax of approximately HK$67.37 million
in the corresponding period of 2016. The decrease in profit was
mainly due to the reasons set out below: (i) a net exchange gain of
approximately HK$33.36 million was recorded last year, while no
exchange gain was recorded during the year under review. Moreover,
the interest income decreased by approximately HK$12.55 million
as compared to that of last year, which resulted in the year-on-year
decrease in other income by approximately HK$43.66 million during
the year; (i) the competition in bulk commodity trade was intense
and the sales margin was thin, resulting in the year-on-year decrease
in consolidated gross profit by approximately HK$6.58 million; and
(iii) mainly due to the expansion of bulk commodity trade and the
increase in the Group's staff costs, the selling and administrative
expenses during the year increased year-on-year by approximately
HK$15.36 million.

Despite the aforementioned negative factors, the Company fully
redeemed the RMB600 million bonds issued by it during the year,
causing a year-on-year decrease in finance costs by approximately
HK$19.89 million, which reduced the impact of the above negative
factors on the consolidated profit after tax for the year.

The Board did not recommend the declaration of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Segment Revenue and Results

During the year under review, the Group was principally engaged in
five major business segments, which include: property development,
property investment, finance leasing, bulk commodity trade and hotel
and marine travelling services. The details of segment revenue and
results are as follows:

(1) Property Development

The sales revenue from property development of the Group
was generated from CCT-Champs-Elysees project in Weifang
of Shandong Province of the PRC, while no sales revenue was
recorded for the project of Chengtong International City in
Dafeng City of Jiangsu Province during the year. Details of the
two projects are as follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWEDN

(i)

Zhucheng City of Shandong Province — CCT-
Champs-Elysees

The CCT-Champs-Elysees project, which is wholly owned
by the Group, is situated at the northern side of Eastern
Section of No. 1 Mizhou West Road, Zhucheng City,
Shandong Province, the PRC (Lot No. 01213003). The
project had a total site area of approximately 146,006
square metres and was developed in three phases.
The project was situated in a provincial city and the
market was relatively stable as it was restrained by
factors in relation to geographical location, economy
and population, etc. During the year under review, the
area of residential apartments and commercial spaces
that was sold and delivered under the project were
approximately 18,702 square metres and 242 square
metres respectively (2016: approximately 17,487
square metres and 0 square metre respectively), and
the number of parking spaces sold and delivered
was 37 (2016: 50). The average unit selling price for
residential apartments of the project were approximately
RMB5,215 (2016: approximately RMB4,958) per square
metre, representing an increase of approximately 5%
as compared to that of 2016. The project recorded
a sales revenue of approximately HK$109.21 million
during the year under review (2016: approximately
HK$103.60 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 5%. Profit before tax amounted to
approximately HK$26.42 million (2016: approximately
HK$20.66 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 28%, which was mainly attributable to
the year-on-year increase in gross profit ratio.

As at 31 December 2017, the unsold or sold but not
yet delivered area of phase |, phase Il and phase IlI
of CCT-Champs-Elysees project included residential
apartments of approximately 37,920 square metres (as
at 31 December 2016: approximately 20,542 square
metres) and commercial spaces of approximately 1,410
square metres (as at 31 December 2016: approximately
1,652 square metres) (excluding the leased area of
approximately 7,565 square metres (as at 31 December
2016: approximately 7,565 square metres)).

The construction work of phase Il of the CCT-Champs-
Elysees project has commenced and part of it has been
sold and delivered, and the remaining part was expected
to be fully completed and delivered in 2020.
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(ii) Dafeng City of Jiangsu Province — Chengtong
International City

The Group holds 66.67% equity interest in “Chengtong
International City” which is located at North Portion of
Lot No. 2, Port Serviced Area, Dafeng Ocean Economic
Development Area, Dafeng City, Jiangsu Province, the
PRC. The total site area is approximately 118,974 square
metres. The initial development area was developed in
two sections. As at 31 December 2017, the unsold area
of residential apartments of Chengtong International City
project was approximately 11,022 square metres and the
unsold area of commercial spaces was approximately
9,540 square metres, which were the same as those
on the same date of last year. Since no sales revenue
was generated from this project during the year, there
was a loss before tax of approximately HK$2.17 million
(2016: loss before tax of approximately HK$1.48 million),
representing an increase in loss of approximately 47% as
compared to that of last year.

The two aforementioned projects altogether brought a
turnover for the property development segment of the Group
of approximately HK$109.21 million (2016: approximately
HK$103.60 million) and a profit before tax of approximately
HK$24.25 million (2016: approximately HK$19.18 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 5% and
approximately 26% respectively.

Land Resources Development

The Group still planned to dispose the land situated in
Dafeng City, Jiangsu Province. # B K L 8B R & BF R Q
a] (unofficial English translation being Chengtong Dafeng
Harbour Development Limited) (“Dafeng Development”),
a 66.67%-owned subsidiary of the Company, held a parcel
of industrial land situated in the south of Shugang Highway,
Dafeng City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC and three parcels of
residential and commercial land situated at lot number 1 to
3 in the Port Serviced Area, Ocean Economic Development
Zone, Dafeng City, Jiangsu Province. On 3 July 2014, the
Group entered into two resumption agreements with Dafeng
Land Reserve Center and the Management Committee of the
Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour Economic Development Zone (the
"Dafeng Harbour Committee"”) and two compensation
agreements with the Dafeng Harbour Committee and JT&kA
LB ERE AR QA (unofficial English translation being
Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour Holdings Group Limited). Details of
the agreements related to the resumption of land were set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 3 July 2014. However,
the relevant land has not been resumed as of 31 December
2017 and the date of this annual report.
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(2)

(3)

Property Investment

The rental income from property investment of the Group
was derived from the commercial properties in CCT-Champs-
Elysees project in Zhucheng of Shandong Province. As
at 31 December 2017, the leased area of the project was
approximately 7,565 square metres, which was the same
as that on the same date of last year. Due to the increase
in rents of the new leases signed during the year, rental
income amounted to approximately HK$2.41 million (2016:
approximately HK$2.16 million) was recorded, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 12%. Profit before
tax was approximately HK$2.15 million (2016: approximately
HK$1.97 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 9%.

Finance Leasing

For the year under review, the finance lease business
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$52.69 million (2016:
approximately HK$51.50 million), representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 2%, and the profit before tax
was approximately HK$44.63 million (2016: approximately
HK$47.81 million), representing a year-on-year decrease
of approximately HK$3.18 million. The main reasons of the
decrease in profit were: (i) the administrative expenses
increased by approximately HK$2.27 million from last year,
which was mainly due to the increase in staff costs; (i) the
finance costs increased by approximately HK$3.43 million
from last year; and (iii) the Group received a refund of value-
added tax of approximately HK$1.04 million in 2016, whereas
no relevant income was recorded during the year under
review. During the year, the income from the completion of
the provision of consultancy services in relation to financing
project was approximately HK$9 million, representing an
increase in relevant income of approximately HK$1.27 million
from last year; and the interest income from investment
was approximately HK$4.80 million (2016: approximately
HK$2.43 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately HK$2.37 million. These incomes partially offset
the impact of the aforesaid negative factors on the profit.
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Bulk Commodity Trade

During the year under review, the Group was engaged in
the trading of coal, steel and non-ferrous metals under bulk
commodity trade, details of which are as follow:

Trading of Coal

As China has been continuously promoting the “Supply-Side
Structural Reform”, and the policies such as elimination of
excessive production capability and reduction of inventory
have been a success, the coal price rose amidst fluctuations
during the year. During the year under review, the sales volume
of coal trading was approximately 1.01 million tons (2016:
approximately 1.06 million tons), representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 5%. Turnover was approximately
HK$684.77 million (2016: approximately HK$511.85 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 34%.
The average unit selling price increased by approximately
43% to approximately RMB590 per ton (2016: approximately
RMB413 per ton). However, due to the intense competition in
coal trading, the costs continued to rise, resulting in a decrease
in gross profit margin by approximately 2.4% to approximately
1.6%. The gross profit decreased by approximately HK$9.68
million to approximately HK$10.65 million. Moreover, the
selling and administrative expenses increased, resulting in
the recording of a profit before tax of coal trading of only
approximately HK$6.95 million (2016: approximately HK$16.01
million), representing a significant year-on-year decrease of
approximately 57%.

Trading of steel and non-ferrous metals

2017 was an aggressive year for the “Supply-Side Structural
Reform” in steel industry. Various measures of eliminating
of excessive production capacity were carried forward
continuously and policies aiming to suppress the “Sub-
Standard Steel” and release high quality production capacity
were gradually introduced. Significant results regarding the
elimination of excess production capacity were achieved.
The consumption showed sign of recovery, resulting in the
increase in steel price amidst fluctuations, and profitability
of steel enterprises significantly increased. During the year
under review, the Group resumed the trading of steel and non-
ferrous metals under bulk commodity, which led to an increase
in the Group's turnover. The total sales volume of steel and
non-ferrous metals under bulk commodity was approximately
131,679 tons. The turnover was approximately HK$461.10
million (2016: Nil), which comprised of approximately
HK$447.42 million as turnover from steel trading and
approximately HK$13.68 million as turnover from non-ferrous
metals trading. However, due to the intense competition in
bulk commodity trade, gross profit was approximately HK$4.77
million, and operating profit before tax was approximately
HK$2.57 million, net of selling expenses.
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(5)

The above two trading businesses contributed a total
segment turnover of bulk commodity trade of approximately
HK$1,145.87 million (2016: approximately HK$511.85 million)
to the Group, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 124%. Mainly due to the decrease in gross profit
margin of coal trading and the increase in costs and expenses,
profit before tax of approximately HK$9.52 million (2016:
approximately HK$16.01 million) was recorded, representing a
significant year-on-year decrease of approximately 41%.

Hotel and Marine Travelling Services

The hotel and marine travelling services mainly consist of:
marine travelling business, hotel operation and travelling
agency business.

Marine Travelling Business

During the year under review, the turnover of the
marine travelling business amounted to approximately
HK$36.66 million (2016: approximately HK$39.44 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 7%,
which was mainly due to the impact of the adverse weather
and the deteriorating of the seawater quality during the year,
causing the year-on-year decrease in business days, which led
to the year-on-year decrease in the number of tourists. The
sales gross profit was approximately HK$19.73 million (2016:
approximately HK$25.10 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 21%, which was mainly because
the turnover decreased and the Jiaolong submarine could
not be launched and operated as the government approval
had not been obtained yet, which resulted in the increase in
costs and expenses. The profit before tax was approximately
HK$4.75 million (2016: approximately HK$12.98 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 63%.

Hotel Business

The turnover of the hotel business amounted to approximately
HK$4.99 million (2016: approximately HK$7.60 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 34%,
which was mainly because the room facilities were worn,
thereby diminishing the occupancy rate and average room rate
of the hotel. The sales gross profit was approximately HK$4
million (2016: approximately HK$6.55 million), representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 39%. Mainly due to the
decrease in turnover and the increase in costs and expenses, a
loss before tax of approximately HK$10.02 million (2016: loss
before tax of approximately HK$4.25 million) was recorded.

Travelling Agency Business

The travelling agency business has gradually entered into a
phase of growth. Both turnover and gross profit significantly
increased. The turnover for the year was approximately
HK$1.28 million (2016: approximately HK$0.41 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately HK$0.87
million. The profit before tax amounted to approximately
HK$0.46 million (2016: loss before tax of approximately
HK$0.38 million).
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The above three businesses contributed a total segment
turnover of the hotel and marine travelling services of
approximately HK$42.93 million (2016: approximately
HK$47.45 million) to the Group, representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 10%. Mainly due to the decrease
in turnover and the increase in costs and expenses, the
segment loss before tax amounted to approximately HK$4.80
million (2016: segment profit before tax of approximately
HK$7.45 million).

Other Income

During the year under review, the total amount of other income
was approximately HK$54.83 million (2016: approximately
HK$98.49 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 44%, which was mainly due to the following: (i)
the average annual return rate of the available-for-sale financial
assets decreased as compared with that of last year; (ii) the
amounts of relevant deposits, short-term investments, the
entrusted loan receivables and loan granted to a related party
decreased as compared with that of last year, causing a year-
on-year decrease in interest income from the relevant items;
(iii) a net exchange gain of approximately HK$33.36 million
was recorded during the corresponding period of last year,
while no exchange gain was recorded during the year under
review; and (iv) a reversal of other payables of approximately
HK$1.63 million was recorded during the year.

Selling and administrative expenses

During the year under review, the Group recorded selling
expenses of approximately HK$14.59 million (2016:
approximately HK$12.32 million), representing a year-on
year increase of approximately 18%. The increase in selling
expenses was mainly attributable to the expansion of bulk
commodity trade, which led to an increase in relevant
warehousing charges and inspection charges by approximately
HK$2.19 million (2016: nil).

Administrative expenses for the year amounted to
approximately HK$99.42 million (2016: approximately
HK$86.33 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 15%. The increase in expenses was due to
the facts that (i) the staff costs increased by approximately
HK$4.70 million as compared to that of last year; (ii) the
recording of the write off of prepayment and other receivables
of approximately HK$4.46 million; and (iii) a net exchange loss
of approximately HK$1.45 million was recorded during the year
under review (2016: nil).
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Finance costs

During the year under review, the total finance costs of
the Group was approximately HK$21.72 million (2016:
approximately HK$42.04 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 48%. The finance costs
mainly included: the interest expenses and amortisation
costs of approximately HK$14.33 million (2016: approximately
HK$42.02 million) in respect of the RMB-denominated bonds
issued by the Company and the interests on bank borrowings
of approximately HK$7.39 million (2016: approximately
HK$20,000). In May 2017, the Company fully redeemed the
RMB600 million bonds issued by it, causing the decrease
in the relevant interest costs. After deducting the finance
costs which was capitalized of approximately HK$8.77 million
(2016: approximately HK$9.20 million), the net finance costs
was approximately HK$12.95 million (2016: approximately
HK$32.84 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 61%.

OUTLOOK

Looking back 2017, the global economy has been on a gradual
upswing. The growth rate and the growth of economy have been
rising according to expectation. The developed economy had
been growing with a great momentum, and the growth rate of
the emerging market and developing economy increased steadily.
According to the data published by the International Monetary
Fund (IMF) in January 2018, it was estimated that the global
economic growth for 2017 would reach 3.7%, which was the largest
acceleration in the growth over the past 10 years. The growth rate
of China’s gross domestic product in 2017 was 6.9% and exceeded
RMBS8O trillion for the first time. The transition of the growth of the
gross domestic product from rapid growth phase to high quality
development phase has become a fundamental characteristic of the
new era of economic growth in China.

Looking forward, it is expected that the global economy will continue
to maintain the current positive growth rate in 2018. At the same
time, it will face various deep-seated problems brought by the
international financial crisis, such as the continuous rising of trade
protectionism, the risk arising from the outward reversal of monetary
policies of developed economies and the insufficient sustainability of
economic growth. Since last year, the PRC has gradually introduced
various policies to regulate and guide the overseas investments
of corporations, and actively guided the market players to conduct
reasonable outward investments, support national strategies such
as "One Belt, One Road” initiative, as well as facilitating overseas
investments with an aim to upgrade the structure of the industry and
improve technology.

In the face of opportunities and challenges, the Group will pay
close attention to the latest international and domestic economic
and financial development, examine the situation and seize the
opportunities. While implementing the improvement in quality
and efficiency and thoroughly exploring the potential of existing
businesses, it will continue to explore new businesses and develop
new drivers for profit growth.
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In respect of the integrated development and the transformation
and upgrade of the existing businesses: for finance leasing, the
Group will fully utilize the background advantage of its controlling
shareholder of being a state-owned capital operation company,
and play a greater role in the supply-side reform and the structural
adjustment of state-owned corporations. Its business expansion
will gradually transform from the existing business of sale and
leaseback of government infrastructure facilities to the provision
of service to real economy new momentum. Meanwhile, the
Group will strengthen its financial innovation and further enhance
its financing ability. In relation to property development and
property investment, the Group's overall strategy is to speed
up its withdrawal from the market so as to obtain cash flow for
the strategic transformation of the Group. With regard to bulk
commodity trading, the Group will continue to cautiously develop
business relating to bulk commodity trading under the condition
of stringent risk control. Regarding hotel and marine travelling
services, the Group will continue to prompt the spin-off listing
of its Huandao tourism business, and upgrade and renovate its
existing /B E & /EKTRHE (the “Undersea World Hotel"),
and proactively advance the expansion of hotel and marine
travelling business.

In respect of exploration of new businesses: the Group will rely
on the resources advantages of the controlling shareholder of
the Group, focus on the “One Belt, One Road” national strategy,
continue exploring business area in relation to overseas investment,
mergers and acquisitions and asset management, expand its
overseas financing channel and upgrade its operation to international
standard. Meanwhile, the Group will focus on the new business
direction, increase its effort in recruiting talents, reinforce internal
control management and the setting up of the relevant mechanisms,
and improve the capability in risk management. The Board has full
confidence in the future development of the Group.

ASSET STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCE

As at 31 December 2017, equity attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$2,838.61 million (as at 31
December 2016: approximately HK$2,687.07 million), representing
an increase of approximately HK$151.54 million as compared with
that as at 31 December 2016, which was mainly attributable to: (i)
the appreciation of RMB, which resulted in the Group recording an
increase in exchange reserve of approximately HK$169.17 million;
(i) the profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$23.36 million during the year; and (iii) a fair
value loss of approximately HK$41.47 million was recorded, net of
available-for-sale financial asset at fair value.
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Total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2017 were
approximately HK$3,574.80 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$272.10 million as compared with that as at
the same date of last year. Total current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$2,717.38 million and accounted for
approximately 76% of the total assets and representing a decrease
of approximately HK$332.24 million as compared with the total
current assets as at the same date of last year. The total non-current
assets were approximately HK$857.43 million and accounted for
approximately 24% of the total assets and representing an increase
of approximately HK$60.15 million as compared with that as at the
same date of last year.

Total liabilities of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$588.35 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$433.74 million as compared with that as at the same date of
last year. The total non-current liabilities of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$81.64 million and accounted for approximately
14% of the total liabilities and represented an increase of
approximately HK$8.55 million as compared with that as at the same
date of last year. The total current liabilities of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$506.72 million and accounted for approximately
86% of the total liabilities, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$442.28 million as compared with that as at the same date of last
year.

The Group had cash and deposits (including pledged bank deposits,
deposits in other financial institution and bank balance and cash)
of approximately HK$839.91 million, accounting for approximately
23% and approximately 28% of the total assets and the net assets
respectively, representing a decrease of approximately HK$519.82
million as compared with the cash and deposits as at the same
date of last year. As at 31 December 2017, the Group's bank
borrowings were approximately HK$214.40 million, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$530.10 million as compared with
the total borrowings as at 31 December 2016 of approximately
HK$744.50 million (which comprised of approximately HK$667.22
million as corporate bonds and approximately HK$77.28 million as
bank borrowings). Bank borrowings of approximately HK$14.40
million was of one-year term and the remaining balance of HK$200
million was a revolving loan with the final repayment date in the
year of 2020. The interest rates of the bank borrowings ranged
from approximately 2.62% to approximately 5.22% per annum. It is
expected that the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
cope with the commitments and liabilities for the following year.

DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

The debt to equity ratio (expressed as total interest-bearing
borrowings divided by total equity) as at 31 December 2017 was
approximately 7%, representing a decrease of 19% as compared
with the debt to equity ratio of approximately 26% as at 31 December
2016, which indicated a stable financial position of the Group with a
low liability level.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS N. EXBRE
Details of the significant investments in the portfolio under the available- 20179128310 @ A[HESREEN
for-sale financial assets as at 31 December 2017 are as follows: MEAREFBOT:
Approximate
percentage to
the Group's
Market value audited
as at total assets
Number/ Costof 31 December as at
Amount of Shares/ Acquisition 2017 31 December
Description of investment  Principal businesses Notes held (HK$'000) (HK$'000) 2017
®2017%
#2017% 12A31H
12A318  (S5KEEFY
WEHRF HHE #RENEN
R TERE ke REBE &8 (BWTT) (B%TR) astt
Listed equity investments:
IIRARE -
Shares in Honghua Group Manufacturing of drilling rigs, 254,000,000 shares 195,791 170,180 4.7%
(Stock code: 196) offshore engineering,
manufacturing of oil & gas
exploitation equipment and
provision of drilling services
LEEERD BRERLE BETRE 254,000,0008%
(RIS : 19) RFIRR B EE A RIBH RS
Listed debt investments:
FTEBRE -
3-year notes of HNA Group Investment and foreign Notes in principal amount of 176,346 167,180 4.7%
(International) Company Limited ~ capital management US$ 22,500,000
(Note number:
HNA XS1259361050)
AnEE(HE)ERAH REREINERER REBALBOEETNEE

SERZR(ZEAT
HNA XS1259361050)

The unlisted investments of approximately HK$321,600,000
included in the available-for-sale financial assets of the Group mainly
comprised PRC bank trust scheme and investment products.

For more details, please refer to note 28 to the financial statements
in this annual report. Looking ahead, the Group anticipates to receive
investment income from these investment.

EXPOSURE IN EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group's businesses were principally conducted in RMB, while
most of the Group's assets and liabilities were denominated in HKD
and RMB. Any fluctuation in the exchange rate of HKD against RMB
may have an impact on the Group's results. As at 31 December 2017,
the net assets value of the Group's business within the territory
of the PRC were approximately RMB2,186.49 million. According
to HKASs, such RMB net asset value should be converted at the
exchange rate applicable as at the end of the reporting period. Due
to the appreciation of RMB during the year, the exchange reserve of
the Group increased by approximately HK$169.17 million, causing an
increase in the Group's net assets value. During the year, although
foreign currency fluctuation did not pose significant risks to the
Group and currently, the Group does not have any hedging measures
against such exchange risks, the Group will also continue to closely
monitor the risks arising from such currency fluctuation.
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VIILTREASURY POLICIES

IX.

The business activities and operation of the Group are mainly carried
out in Mainland China and Hong Kong, with transactions denominated
in RMB, HKD and US dollars, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risks. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy but maintains a conservative approach on foreign
exchange exposure management and ensures that its exposure
to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates remains at a controllable
level. As at 31 December 2017, the Group's bank borrowings were
denominated in HKD and RMB, of which the RMB-denominated bank
borrowings were principally on a fixed interest rate basis, and the
HKD-denominated borrowings were based on floating interest rates.
The floating interest rates are stabilised at a low level because the
banks in Hong Kong have sufficient capital and strong liquidity and
there is no urgent need to increase the interest rates. Although the
Group does not have any hedging measures against such interest
rate risks, the Group will continue to closely monitor the risks arising
from such interest rate fluctuation. When interest rate rises, hedging
instruments will be used in due course against the interest rate risks
caused by HKD-denominated borrowings which are based on floating
interest rates.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

(@)  As at 31 December 2017, approximately HK$1.32 million (as
at 31 December 2016: approximately HK$1.64 million) of
pledged bank deposits of the Group were pledged as security
for banking facilities granted to mortgagees. The remaining of
HK$2.69 million were secured deposits.

(b)  On 29 March 2016, the Group entered into a guarantee
agreement with China Chengtong Coal Investment Limited
(“Chengtong Coal"”), a subsidiary of the ultimate holding
company of the Company, pursuant to which the Group
provided a guarantee by pledging its office premise with book
value of approximately HK$50.81 million as at 31 December
2017 and issuing a guarantee letter to the Supreme People’s
Court of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region to the extent
of approximately RMB53.54 million (approximately HK$64.25
million) for a period of three years (or such shorter period as
may be approved by the court). The guarantee provided to
Chengtong Coal was for the purpose of supporting a property
preservation order on certain subject assets in a litigation
between Chengtong Coal and its debtors.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Please refer to notes 41, 45 and 46 to the financial statements in this
annual report.
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Biographies of Directors a

DIRECTORS
Mr. Yuan Shaoli

Mr. Yuan, aged 63, is an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Yuan joined the Group in March 2011 and has extensive experience in
business management, assets management, public relations and human
resources management. Mr. Yuan had served as the deputy division chief,
the division chief and a deputy director of the central state authorities of
China for many years. He had also served as the deputy president of /Bl
B EB AR AT (unofficial English translation being China Chengtong
Holdings Group Limited) (“CCHG") and the president of FEIE S (&
[®) A7) (unofficial English translation being China Huandao Group Co.)
("Huandao Group"), a subsidiary of CCHG, and was an independent non-
executive director of Kangda International Environmental Company Limited
("Kangda International”), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yuan is presently a director of China
Chengtong Hong Kong Company Limited (“CCHK") and a director of World
Gain Holdings Limited ("World Gain"). CCHK and World Gain both have
an interest in the shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO").

Mr. Zhang Bin

Mr. Zhang, aged 49, is an executive Director and the Managing Director of
the Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2010 and was appointed
as an executive Director with effect from 30 January 2014 and as the
Managing Director with effect from 15 June 2017. He is also a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang holds an EMBA degree
from China Europe International Business School and a Doctorate degree
from Peking University. He also undertook postdoctoral research in Rutgers
University and North Carolina State University in the United States. Mr.
Zhang has rich experience in corporate management. Mr. Zhang is currently
a director of CCHK, which has an interest in the shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Senior Management
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Wang Tianlin

Mr. Wang, aged 45, is an executive Director and a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2007.
Mr. Wang obtained his Bachelor and Master degrees from Beijing Institute
of Technology and in 2003, he obtained his Master degree in Business
Administration in Finance from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Wang was previously the secretary to the board of directors of Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and also was the assistant to the president of
CCHK. He is currently the president and an executive director of Huandao
Group. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in corporate governance, capital
management and business administration.

Professor Chang Qing

Professor Chang, aged 60, is an independent non-executive Director.
Professor Chang joined the Group in January 2013. Professor Chang was
a council member of the Shanghai Futures Exchange and is currently the
chairman of Jinpeng International Futures Co., Ltd., a professor of China
Agricultural University, the chairman of the expert committee of China
Futures Association and a member of the expert committee of China
Securities Journal. Professor Chang is now acting as an independent non-
executive director of Kangda International and Honghua Group. He also
previously served as independent directors of Tibet Summit Resources
Co., Ltd. and TBEA Co., Ltd. (both companies are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) as well as Yuan Long Ping High-Tech Agriculture Co., Ltd.,
Rongfeng Holding Group Co., Ltd. and Shenwu Environmental Technology
Co., Ltd. (all three companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).
Professor Chang studied Economics at Jilin University and obtained his
Master degree in Economics from Jilin University in 1985 and PhD degree
from Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. He has over 30 years of
experience in economic and financial field.
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Biographies of Directors a

Mr. Lee Man Chun, Tony

Mr. Lee, aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lee
joined the Group in November 2013. Mr. Lee obtained a Master degree in
Business Administration from Chu Hai College of Higher Education in 1981.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has over 30 years of experience in accounting, capital markets,
corporate management, finance and banking. Previously, he worked
for and held senior positions with Standard Chartered Bank and Sanwa
International Finance Ltd. Mr. Lee was an executive director of Shenwan
Hongyuan (H.K.) Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange) from June 2000 to June 2017, and served as its
chief executive officer during the period from July 2000 to March 2012.

Professor He Jia

Professor He, aged 63, is an independent non-executive Director. Professor
He joined the Group in September 2015. He holds a Doctor of Philosophy
degree in Finance from the Wharton School of University of Pennsylvania,
the United States. Currently, he is the leading professor of the Faculty of
Financial Mathematics and Engineering at the South University of Science
and Technology of China, a jointly-appointed professor at the Tsinghua
University, Cheung Kong Visiting Chair Professor of the Ministry of
Education and an executive director and academic member of the China
Society for Finance and Banking. Professor He currently acts as a financial
consultant for the Chengdu and Quanzhou municipal governments. He is
also an editor of China Financial Economics Review, and is serving as a
member of the editorial boards of a number of journals, including China
Accounting and Finance Review and Research in Banking and Finance.
Professor He is currently an independent non-executive director of OP
Financial Investments Limited and CITIC Securities Company Limited
(both companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and
an independent director of Shenzhen Xinguodu Technology Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on ChiNext of Shenzhen Stock Exchange), Tibet Huayu
Mining Co., Ltd., Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd. (both companies are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and China Investment Securities Co., Ltd. He
previously served as an independent director of Shenzhen Soling Industrial
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Small and Medium Enterprises Board of
Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He was also a professor of the Department
of Finance and a director of the MBA program in Finance at the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Professor He was a commissioner of the Planning
and Development Committee of China Securities Regulatory Commission
from June 2001 to August 2002, and a director of integrated research
institute of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from June 2001 to October 2002.

Senior Management
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Chan Siu Kay

Mr. Chan, aged 58, is the financial controller of the Company and a director
of several subsidiaries of the Company. He joined the Company in May
2014. Mr. Chan holds a Master degree in Business Administration from
the University of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom and a Master degree
in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Certified Public Accountant of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. He is also a Fellow Certified Professional Economist of
The Hong Kong Society of Economists Limited. Mr. Chan has gained over
26 years of experience in audit, accounting, taxation, corporate finance
and IPO from working in an international audit firm and a number of listed
companies.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Tse Ching Wah

Ms. Tse, aged 36, is the company secretary of the Company. Ms. Tse
joined the Group in October 2012. She holds a Master degree in Corporate
Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow
member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She is also a
member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. She
has extensive experience in accounting, auditing, corporate governance
and merger and acquisition activities from working in an international
accounting firm and a Hong Kong listed company.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Group for the Year.

The Group considers that good corporate governance is vital to the healthy
and sustainable development of the Group and the Group strives to uphold
high standard of corporate governance continuously.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with all the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code") as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) for the Year.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure those continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code,
and acknowledges the important role of the Board in providing effective
leadership and direction to the Company’s business, and ensuring
operational transparency and accountability.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
during the Year are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership for the Company in the interests of the
shareholders, approves policies, strategies and plans, and oversees their
implementation to sustain the healthy growth of the Company.

The Board is responsible for all major matters of the Group, and the
approval and monitoring of all material changes in policies, including risk
management strategies, dividend policy, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company, with
a view to ensure that the Board's procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. In general, each Director can seek independent
professional advices in appropriate circumstances at the Company's
expenses, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Managing Director, executive Directors and senior
management. Approval from the Board has to be obtained prior to entering
into any significant transactions by the aforementioned personnel.

Composition
The composition of the Board encompasses the necessary balance of skills

and experiences desirable for effective leadership of the Group and reflects
the independence in decision-making of the Board.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

YUAN Shaoli (Chairman of the Board)

ZHANG Bin (appointed as the Managing Director with effect
from 15 June 2017)

WANG Tianlin

Independent non-executive Directors

CHANG Qing

LEE Man Chun, Tony

HE Jia

The list of Directors (by category) is disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company and on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors representing not less than one-third of the Board, with
at least one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
existing independent non-executive Directors of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and relevant experience to the Board and provide
independent opinions for decision-making of the Board. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in issues involving
potential conflicts of interest and serving on committees of the Board, all
independent non-executive Directors make positive contributions to the
orderly management and effective operation of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established the nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee"”) and adopted formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of Directors.
Appropriate candidates as properly selected by the Nomination Committee
will be proposed to the Board for approval.

The Board and the Nomination Committee as a whole are responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. The Board reviews
its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Company.
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Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the candidates
proposed by the Nomination Committee, the Company's needs and other
relevant statutory requirements and regulations. The Board will consider
engaging an external recruitment agency to carry out the recruitment and
selection process when necessary.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, one third of
the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation every year and any new
Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election will be set out
in the circular of the Company in relation to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be despatched to the shareholders.

All independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a fixed term
expiring on 30 June 2018.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board. In August
2013, the Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy to comply with a code
provision of the CG Code.

The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to skills, regional and industrial experience, cultural and educational
background, race, gender and other qualities. In forming its perspective on
diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs from time to time.

The composition, experience and balance of skills in the Board are regularly
reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members with
longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s) appointed
from time to time who bring(s) fresh perspectives and diverse experiences
to the Board. The process for the nomination of Directors is led by the
Nomination Committee, which has been made on a merit basis. The Board
will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure its
continued effectiveness.
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Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the Group's financial
and operating performance, discussing annual and interim results and

considering and approving the overall strategies of the Company.

During the Year, six Board meetings were held, including four regular Board
meetings.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings
held during the Year is set out below:

Name of Directors
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Number of
Attendance/
Number of Board
Meetings Held

HERE BT
EENE EETERY
YUAN Shaoli 5/6
RAAE
ZHANG Bin 5/6
ok
WANG Tianlin 6/6
BN
WANG Hongxin MNete) 4/6
gtz
CHANG Qing 6/6
|
LEE Man Chun, Tony 5/6
B
HE Jia 6/6
(EINES
Note: Mr. Wang Hongxin resigned as a Director with effect from 15 June 2017. During  Mi3F : B ER4CEE - S—+F A NA T HEREIES -

the Year, four Board meetings were held on or before 15 June 2017, and two Board
meetings were held after 15 June 2017.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Meeting schedules and agenda of each meeting are normally made
available to the Directors in advance. Notices of regular Board meetings are
served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board
and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors in a timely manner before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
development and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.
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The company secretary of the Company assists the Chairman of the
Board to prepare the agenda for the Board meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are followed in each meeting. Draft agenda
is sent to all Directors in advance to allow Directors to include any matter
they would like to discuss in the meeting. Draft minutes are circulated to
all Directors for review and amendment as soon as practicable after the
meeting is held. All Board members will be given a copy of the finalised
minutes approved by Directors who attended the meeting.

Should a Director have any conflict of interest in any proposed transactions,
the Director concerned will not participate in the discussion and will abstain
from voting on related resolutions. Directors without any conflict of interest
will be present at meetings to vote and resolve on such issues.

Chairman and Managing Director

During the Year, the position of Chairman of the Board was held by Mr.
Yuan Shaoli and the position of Managing Director was held by Mr. Wang
Hongxin during the period from 1 January 2017 until his resignation which
took effect on 15 June 2017. Mr. Zhang Bin was appointed as the Managing
Director of the Company with effect from 15 June 2017. The respective
responsibilities of the Chairman and the Managing Director are clearly
defined and set out in writing to ensure a balance of power and authority.

The Chairman of the Board provides leadership and is responsible for
ensuring that relevant duties and responsibilities have been fully and
appropriately executed by the Directors in accordance with good corporate
governance practice. With the support of the senior management, the
Chairman of the Board is also responsible for ensuring that each of the
Directors can timely receive adequate, complete and reliable information
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director is responsible for leading the management to
implement policies, strategies as well as all goals and plans adopted and
approved by the Board, and is in charge of the Company's day-to-day
operations.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the executive
committee ("Executive Committee”), audit committee (“Audit
Committee"”), remuneration committee ("Remuneration
Committee”) and Nomination Committee, each overseeing and being
responsible for affairs in different aspects of the Company. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
expenses.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all executive Directors. The Executive
Committee is responsible for the daily business operation and management
of the Company, the execution of decisions and strategies of the Board
within the scope of authorization granted by the Board. The Executive
Committee regularly reports to the Board regarding the Group's business
operation and seeks its advice and approval on matters involving material
decision-making.

During the Year, the chairman of the Executive Committee was held by Mr.
Wang Hongxin during the period from 1 January 2017 until his resignation
which took effect on 15 June 2017, and by Mr. Zhang Bin with effect from
15 June 2017.

Audit Committee

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee Man Chun, Tony (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Professor Chang Qing and Professor He Jia. Mr. Lee
Man Chun, Tony is an independent non-executive Director who possesses
the appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company's existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@)  to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the internal auditor or external
auditor before submission to the Board;

(b)  to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, its fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external auditor; and

(c)  toreview the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee has held three meetings during the Year to review the
financial results and reports, capital management system, internal control
system and the re-appointment of the external auditor.

During the Year, there are no material uncertainties or events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern.

There was no disagreement between the Audit Committee and the
Directors in respect of matters about selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of an external auditor.

During the Year, the Company’s annual results for the year ended 31

December 2016 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2017 had been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises two independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor He
Jia (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Lee Man Chun,
Tony, and an executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang Bin. Mr. Wang Hongxin,
the former Managing Director of the Company, was a member of the
Remuneration Committee until his resignation as an executive Director with
effect from 15 June 2017. Mr. Zhang Bin was then appointed as a member
of the Remuneration Committee in place of Mr. Wang Hongxin on 15 June
2017.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company as well as the remuneration packages of the Directors and
the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding on his own remuneration. The remuneration of the
Directors and the senior management will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
conditions.

The Remuneration Committee meets for reviewing the remuneration
policy and structure and making recommendations to the Board on the
annual remuneration packages of the members of the Board and the senior
management and other related matters. The human resources department
of the Group is responsible for collection and administration of the human
resources data and making recommendations to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year and
reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the Company and
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management.

Nomination Committee

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprised two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Chang Qing (chairman of the
Nomination Committee) and Mr. Lee Man Chun, Tony, and the Chairman
of the Board, namely Mr. Yuan Shaoli. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for nominating candidates for directorship appointment and
succession, reviewing the composition and structure of the Board from
time to time and making recommendations to the Board in order to ensure
the balance of expertise, skills and experience among the members of the
Board.

In recommending the appointment of new Directors, the Nomination
Committee would seek to identify the competencies required for the
potential candidates to enable the Board to fulfill its responsibilities. The
resume and/or other relevant documents of the candidates will be given to
the Nomination Committee for consideration.

Nomination of candidates for directorship will be made with reference
to the candidate’s possession of appropriate skills, industrial experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time available for
participating in the Company’s affairs. During the Year, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to discuss the re-election of the Directors.
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Board Committee Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the

Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
held during the Year is set out below:

EXZATER
BRAMREEHE LY
BEENAEFEAREZZES  HWEER
REZBEgE AR L ERaEIIT

Number of Attendance/Number of
Board Committee Meetings Held

HERY RTESZATFRRY

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee
EENR ERERE FHERE REZRE
YUAN Shaoli Not applicable Not applicable Al
RAAE TEA TEA
ZHANG Binetel Not applicable 0/2 Not applicable
& o i T
WANG Hongxin®etel Not applicable 2/2 Not applicable
B g TiE
CHANG Qing 3/3 Not applicable M
B TEA
LEE Man Chun, Tony 3/3 2/2 171
FER
HE Jia 3/3 2/2 Not applicable
(CINES A
Note: Mr. Wang Hongxin ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee with Mzt Ftfsk4eg B —+E A+ HAREEHMES

effect from 15 June 2017. Mr. Zhang Bin was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 15 June 2017. All meetings of the Remuneration
Committee during the Year were held prior to 15 June 2017.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “IMlodel Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the requirements of the Code of Conduct and the Model Code during the
Year. No incident of non-compliance of the Code of Conduct or the Model
Code by the Directors was noted by the Board during the Year.

The Company has also set out written guidelines on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for securities transactions by the employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company
due to their responsibilities and duties. No incident of non-compliance of
the written guidelines by the employees was noted by the Board during the
Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the Company’'s
policies and practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management, the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, etc. The Board is also responsible for reviewing and has
during the Year reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this corporate governance report.
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Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of the
company secretary of the Company with a view to ensure that the Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed and they
are also entitled to have full access to Board papers and related materials
so that they are able to make an informed decision and to discharge their
duties and responsibilities.

SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding
the duties and responsibilities of being a director, the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to directors, duty of disclosure of interest
and business of the Group and the Directors have been updated by the
Company on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure
agreed by the Board to ensure that the Directors, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance, at the Company’s expenses.

According to the training records provided by the Directors to the Company,
each of the existing and former Directors has participated in continuous
professional development during the Year by attending seminars/in-house
briefing/reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills:
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EFEEENBHA AARBAREQRWERE
BRERE  UERETEESERF - MAAHE
RERRAG - RENAREmRHESE XX
RAER - AEEMIELAERE METTHRE
ZHREREE-

EFTBRERER

EREFHEBEHABRIES IRERAE
ERRESZ ZRAPIRAM - #EREZEE
RARKEER 2 HRESIEM - ARRIERZE
BERERGHETRAREMEREERE &
MBEREN  UWERESERIANBRFND
XERAER BEFECATRERF BEFAUNE
HABEENRE  EEENBERTSRELEEE
R BREBAARRXN -

RIBEEMARBIRE 2B - SREKA
TEZCHR  RAFEACSBBLEART
THEZERE NEERBEMHE A 2R
FEZEER  UBRKEHMES 2 NBRREE

Topics on
Name of Directors training covered
E=ElR FREEZENEE
(Note)
(M)
YUAN Shaoli a, b
RIAEE
WANG Hongxin (resigned with effect from 15 June 2017) a
Tfs (BT —+FANATRHEFHTE)
ZHANG Bin a, b
5RO
WANG Tianlin a, b
FRF&
CHANG Qing a, b
= =
/B
LEE Man Chun, Tony b, c, d
FEE
HE Jia a, b
fal =
Notes: Bz -
(a) compliance and regulatory matters for Hong Kong listed companies (a) BEELTRRNARREESEHE
(b)  finance and investment (b) M RIRE
(c) general commercial matters (c) e GE
(d)  tax and other regulatory matters d FBBEREMEEEE
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’'S
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a fair, true and clear annual and
interim reports, inside information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the Year.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 75 to 79 of this annual report.

The remuneration of the external auditor of the Company in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$1,070,000 and HK$220,000 respectively. An analysis of
the remuneration of the external auditor of the Company is set out below:

BB M I8 R A B R A BED
|

EZERARBLITRAINAMBEERERED
FEBRBENFERTHEBE  ABEER
EREMATREEN - EENEEAREAR
RIAFENPHRENBE

B BEAR R RSS2 BAD 9 70 EL ph B 7% 3R K B B
BEFFNERENAFERERIGAET9H [ B
TR EENERE |

AAREMINEZBEAAAFE REFZRYE
NMIEEZRE  MEXFHED RN EBE
1,070,0007T J2 78 #220,0007C ° AA FSMNERZE
BN S TEI T

Amount of Fee

BH

(HK$°000)

(BHTT)

Audit services F R 1,070
Review on interim financial information EEH P H AR 180
Other non-audit services™* b 34 SR FE i) 40
Total #Et 1,290

Note: Services in relation to the proposed spin-off of the hotel and marine travelling
services business of the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The organization structure of the Company has defined lines of
responsibilities and appropriate responsibilities and authority were
delegated to senior management. The Board is responsible for the
establishment and effective operation of the risk management and internal
control system. The Company has also established a risk management
department, of which one of the executive Directors serves as the general
manager, to be responsible for the internal audit function and to assist the
Board to review the risk management and internal control system of the
Group on an ongoing basis. However, such system aims at limiting the risks
of the Group to an acceptable level but not at eliminating all risks. Hence,
such system can only provide reasonable assurance that there will not be
any error in financial information and record, and there will not be any fraud.
The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

2017 Annual Report EE#HE

HfaE : BRREARELE RS DIRERBEBDF LT
PR

B PR EIE B MR EE

ARRNABRBABARET Y  SRER
BOEFEENATLEE EFERRRARE
BRAREZERGZET MEBRENE - AT
NERVEREESM  HEP-—BATEFRE
ERIPIARAIE - AENIBERDERBHEES
Frgma AR E R R EIE K AT R SH K
o R - RS EERGIANEE 2 B DA%
SACHBEI BRI R - Bt - R GE
REHESERBYBENRCHE EIHRERRLSE
B WRERTEAEANKERMSBRIE
BIEMIFEHHIRE



The Board has established effective and operational procedures to identify,
assess and manage major risks faced by the Group. Such procedures
will be updated from time to time to reflect the changes in rules and
regulations, and serve as a guideline for updating the risk management and
internal control system in a timely manner. The Board considers that as at
the date of this annual report, the risk management and internal control
system is adequate and effective in safeguarding the assets of the Group
and protecting the interests of shareholders, customers and employees of
the Group.

The Executive Committee is responsible for implementing the procedures
approved by the Board to identify, assess and manage major risks faced by
the Group. Such procedures include the design, operation and supervision
of suitable risk management and internal control system to mitigate and
control risks. Major procedures established for reviewing the suitability
and compliance of the risk management and internal control system are as
follows:

° the Board is responsible for the supervision of all business activities
of the Group and the implementation of strategic plans and policy.
The Executive Committee is responsible for the effective daily
operation of the Group and for ensuring that the Group operates in
accordance with the objectives, strategy and budget of the Group;

o the Audit Committee periodically reviews the work of the risk
management department, external auditor, regulatory bodies and the
Executive Committee in respect of the risk management and internal
control system, and assesses the feasibility and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system; and

o the risk management department also formulates the annual
internal audit plan and procedures, conducts periodic independent
reviews on the operations of individual divisions and subsidiaries to
identify any irregularities and risks, develops action plans and makes
recommendations to address the identified risks, and reports to the
Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal
audit process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on
any material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code, the Group conducts a comprehensive review of the risk
management and internal control system under the guidance of the Board
and the senior management on an annual basis. The review includes
an assessment of the prevailing internal control and risk management
practices of the Group and covers various aspects including financial
control, operational control, compliance control and risk management.

During the Year, the Board had conducted a comprehensive review of the
risk management and internal control system of the Company. The Board
considered that the internal control and risk management system of the
Company is adequate and effective and the Company has complied with
the code provisions on internal control and risk management of the CG
Code.

In addition, the Company has formulated policies on information disclosure
and regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly comply
with relevant policies on inside information while notifying the Directors,
senior management and employees the latest guidance announced by the
regulatory body on such information disclosure from time to time to keep all
of them abreast of the latest information.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Ms. Tse Ching Wah, who is an employee of the Company,
acted as the company secretary of the Company. In delivering her service
as company secretary of the Company, Ms. Tse has direct contact with
the Chairman of the Board, the Managing Director and other senior
management of the Company to ensure that good information flows among
the Directors and that Board policy, procedures and all applicable laws,
rules and regulations are followed. She is also responsible for facilitating
professional development training of the Directors.

Ms. Tse has confirmed that during the Year, she had taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all the resolutions of general meetings are
conducted by way of poll.

Poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company on the day of the relevant general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee or in their absence, other members
of the Board or the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer questions at the
general meetings.

During the Year, the Company had held one general meeting (being the
annual general meeting held on 9 June 2017). The attendance record of the
Directors in such general meeting is as follows:

Name of Directors
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5
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HLRLOWHER  RAFE - WELSNTIR15
N Z R LR o

REEME

B ETIRAI - FIAREAR HRER I IATE
RS -

SR ERGERARRARGRITEREHNY
SR R AR AR

ARRBRRAER/BRRESTESRMET —(EER
MFE EFGIF BRZESLIF FHZ
BerTRIREZBEIFHELFERRAE
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;ﬁ)?%ﬁ%%%E\%’ZﬁMEREE%%K@t%%
EfE

RARFEER  ARFHEBETT —RERAE (R
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Attendance

HE

YUAN Shaoli

RIAEE

ZHANG Bin

5RO

WANG Tianlin

F X5

WANG Hongxin (resigned with effect from 15 June 2017)
THE(E-—F—+F A+ HEFLT)
CHANG Qing

IR

LEE Man Chun, Tony

FER

HE Jia

f] 1=
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The Company will continue to enhance communications and relationships
with its shareholders and investors to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with timely.

Currently, investors can access the Company's information through
the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company's website at
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chengtong.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

(1)

(2)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM"”)

In accordance with sections 566 to 568 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“Companies
Ordinance"”), shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least
5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to
vote at general meetings of the Company may require the Directors
to convene an EGM. The written requisition must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the EGM and must be
signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary in hard copy form or sent to the Company in electronic
form. The requisition may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more of the shareholders concerned.

If the Directors of the Company do not, within 21 days after the date
on which the written requisition is received by the Company, proceed
duly to convene an EGM on a date not more than 28 days after
the date of the notice convening the EGM, the shareholder(s) who
reguested the meeting, or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
an EGM, provided that the EGM so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which general meetings are
to be convened by the Directors of the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can be directed to
the Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited. Other shareholders’ enquiries
can be directed to the Company Secretarial Department of the
Company or the company secretary of the Company by post to
the principal office of the Company at Suite 6406, 64/F., Central
Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by e-mail to
public@hk217.com.

ate Governance'Report
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(3) Procedures for putting forward resolutions at general
meetings

Shareholders are requested to follow sections 615 and 616 of the
Companies Ordinance for including a resolution at an annual general
meeting (“AGM"). The requirements and procedures are set out
below:

(i) Any number of shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all shareholders having a right to vote on
the resolution at an AGM to which the requisition relates, or at
least 50 shareholders having a right to vote on the resolution
at an AGM to which the requisition relates, may submit a
requisition in writing to put forward a resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at an AGM.

(i)~ The Company shall not be bound by the Companies Ordinance
to give notice of the proposed resolution or to circulate a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution to shareholders
of the Company entitled to receive notice of an AGM unless a
copy of the requisition specifying the resolution of which notice
is to be given and signed by the shareholders concerned (or 2 or
more copies which between them contain the signatures of all
the shareholders concerned) is deposited at the principal office
of the Company for the attention of the company secretary in
hard copy form or is sent to the Company in electronic form not
less than (i) 6 weeks before an AGM to which the requisition
relates; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
AGM.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has not amended its constitutional documents during the
Year.
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Environmental, Social a

ABOUT THIS REPORT

1.1

1.2

1.3

REPORTING GUIDELINES

This environmental, social and governance report ("ESG
Report”) aims to provide information on the performance
in the environmental and social aspects of the Group during
the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017
("Reporting Period”), which focuses on the environmental
and social issues which the stakeholders concerned and those
related to the sustainable development of the Group, aiming to
enable the stakeholders to better understand the philosophy,
measures and relevant performances in relation to the
sustainable development of the Group. This ESG Report should
be read in conjunction with the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” in pages 23 to 36 of this annual report
in order to have a full understanding on the Group's relevant
performances.

SCOPE OF THIS ESG REPORT

The reporting scope of this ESG Report focuses on the principal
businesses of the Group relating to property development,
finance leasing and hotel and marine travelling services in the
PRC, which were managed and/or operated by the Group's
headquarter in Hong Kong and the Company's subsidiaries,
including:

() FHWEEEHAR QR (unofficial English translation
being Zhucheng Phoenix Landmark Company Limited)
("Zhucheng Phoenix");

(i) PEBALEBHIEABLRR QR (unofficial English translation
being Chengtong Dafeng Harbour Development Limited)
("Dafeng Development )

(i) BIAEEE S AR QB (unofficial English translation being
Chengtong Development Trading Company Limited)
("Chengtong Development Trading");

(iv) #iRAEJRE R B R 2 Fl(unofficial English translation
being Chengtong Energy Guangdong Company Limited)
("Chengtong Energy");

v) BEESBEEKRFREBR2AR (unofficial English
translation being Hainan Huandao Hotel and Travel
Investment Co., Limited) ("Huandao Hotel
Investment”);

(vii BHEESSEERBEEAR2AE (unofficial English
translation being Hainan Huandao Underwater World
Hotel Limited) (“Huandao Underwater World"),

(vii) /BEIEEEEEIGR AR A R A Bl (unofficial English
translation being Hainan Yalongwan Undersea World
Travel Company Limited) (“Undersea World Travel");
and

(vii) #iEELE M EAFBR A B(unofficial English translation being
Chengtong Financial Leasing Company Limited).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This ESG Report is prepared by the Company in accordance
with the Environment, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
("ESG Reporting Guide") under Appendix 27 to the Listing
Rules. The Group has complied with the “comply or explain”
provisions in the ESG Reporting Guide for the Reporting Period.
The Group’s management approaches, strategies and targets
of environmental and social aspects are disclosed in this ESG
Report.
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1.4 FEEDBACK TO THIS ESG REPORT 1.4 HFEBREK - - dERELREHOE
Should you have any comments concerning the content of MEEHEEARE e MERREAN
this ESG Report, please feel free to contact the Company ABEEMNER  BAOBEGHFEAR
Secretarial Department or the company secretary of the ABEETERER  ABETEEE
Company by post to the principal office of the Company at Suite 1858 IR E 564126406 F « DB &
6406, 64/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong ETEFZE : public@hk217.com * B
Kong or by e-mail to public@hk217.com. BARRNRWMELK R AIME -

2 COLLABORATIVE ENGAGEMENT 2 WREZHE

The Group highly values the opinions from its stakeholders and has AEFB+HDEREZANER - KEUTE

adopted various communication channels to maintain sufficient BBREREEHETTONER - B

communication with different stakeholders. Currently, the key Bl AEBEZERIABERESE (BRE)

stakeholders of the Group include its investors (shareholders) and METI - AEEBBTRMNBEBEE 7T
employees. The Group strives to understand their comments and R MR EEEAE - B AN AEE
expectations via different communication channels, which enable REWERERE - B8 - EWSAFTHED
the Group to objectively review the issues that require the attention ¥MgREENAREERIERFERT
and solution during the planning, management, implementation A ARREN I RE o

and evaluation of its corporate social responsibility and sustainable
development.

Key Stakeholders Methods of Communication

FEHREA BEEE

Investors (shareholders) ° Convene annual general meeting to provide investors with updates of
wEERR) the Group's operation

o BRBERAFAEG EFREEHAKEZENTH

° Update the Company's website on a regular basis to keep investors
abreast of the latest information of the Company
o THEMARNRMEY  HERREERSEAARRNES

Employees . Allow new colleagues to communicate with management of different
BT departments
o  BHRAFHEIHFINBERERR

° Convene regular meetings with employees of subsidiaries
e TEHENEAREIBTIFEZ

° Evaluate staff's performance regularly
o EHM B TRIETTIVMG

° Organise various scales of quality training or workshop
o EHRAKX - NEEBEIISTIIES

° Convene departmental meetings regularly
o TEHBEITHMIEE
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CONCERTED EFFORTS

Employees are important assets for the Group. A sophisticated
human resources management paves a way for the success of the
Group. A set of human resources management policies has been
adopted by the Group, aiming to provide a defined and standardized
guideline of implementing procedures of human resources
management.

3.1 SOURCING AND SELECTION OF TALENTS

The Company has adopted a “Human Resources Management
System” and the "Employees’ Code of Conduct”, which
regulate the employment policies of the Group. The Company’s
subsidiaries have also formulated appropriate employment
policies for their operations. The employment policies contain
clear policies on recruitment and dismissal, remuneration
and benefit, leave system, attendance system, performance
management and appraisal systems and code of conduct, etc.

As to the staff recruitment, the Group adopts a set of high-
transparent recruitment procedures. Preliminary screenings
are first conducted by the human resources department.
Candidates will then be invited to attend written tests,
interviews and personality tests. Thereafter, candidates will
be invited to attend professional tests conducted by relevant
departments and the suitable candidate will eventually
be selected after being interviewed by the Company's
management.

In order to attract and retain talents, the Group provides
competitive remuneration packages. The staff's remuneration
is reasonably determined with reference to their job duties,
performance and individual conditions and characteristics.
Furthermore, the Group also provides comprehensive benefits,
including social insurance, medical insurance, Mandatory
Provident Fund, study allowances and transportation subsidies.
The Group values work-life balance. Working hours of the
employees are determined according to their job nature. Five-
day work is generally implemented, with an average of eight
working hours per day.

The Group has been in compliance in all material respects
with the national and local laws and regulations relating to
employment matters and anti-discrimination which have a
significant impact on the Group, such as the Law on Labor
Contract of the PRC ({1 #E AR £ FEILS B & F)E)) and the
Employment Ordinance of the laws of Hong Kong ({12 & &
51)). The Group adopts fair and open recruitment and dismissal
policies, sets out detailed provisions in employment contracts
regarding the establishment and termination of employment
relationship and compensation, etc. The Group treats each one
fairly and equally regardless of age, gender, race, ethnicity,
marital and family status, religion and physical disabilities,
provides equal employment and development opportunities
and ensures all staff are well-respected. The Group offers
paid leaves to the staff pursuant to the national and local laws
and regulations, including casual leaves, sick leaves, marriage
leaves and maternity leaves. The application procedures and
arrangements of different types of leaves are clearly stated in
the employment policies.
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Below sets out the basic information of employees based on AT AARERRMER - TR
gender, age, types of position and geographical region: AR MR R E DM E T §$IE
W
Gender
TR
Male Female
BHRT ZXHET
Number of employees 187 117
BT#E
Approximate percentage to the total number of employees
in the Group 62% 38%
HASEEE THSMR RO R
Age
FiR

16 to 30 31 to 40 41 to 50 Over 50
16-305& 31-40%% 41-508% 50 Ll E

Number of employees 103 93 80 28

ETEH
Types of position
RAIRE

Senior Mid-level Professional General

Management Management Position Position

EREER PREER BRI —fiR i i

Number of employees 20 45 40 199
BTI#HA

Geographical region

12 I 1
Hong Kong Mainland China
hEEE hE At
Number of employees 12 292

BT#E
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3.2

3.3

Environmental, Social 3
B

Employee Promotion

The Group provides its employees with different promotion
opportunities. In addition to referring to the daily work
performance of employees and assessing employees’
ability through annual performance evaluation so as to grant
promotion, the Group also optimizes employees’ career
development in accordance with the characteristics of different
positions by allowing employees to develop their career path
either along the management rank or the professional rank
according to their own preference. Besides, the Group also
achieves optimization of ranking system by implementing
policy such as “same remuneration for same rank”, and
providing detailed description of the duties and qualification
requirements for each rank.

The “Employee’s Code of Conduct” also regulates the employee
promotion system and the procedures.

Procedures for Promotion

1. The relevant department heads nominate the employee
for promotion;

2. The relevant department heads and the human resources
department review the work performance of such
employee;

3. The human resources department submit the review
results to the management for approval;

4. Upon approval by the management, the human resources
department further assesses to make sure the promotion
is in compliance with the policies of the Company/the
Group.

Employee Development and Training

In order to facilitate new employees to adapt to the new
working environment of the Group, the human resources
department of the Group would provide them with an
orientation training to introduce the background, structure,
philosophy and goals of the Group prior to or upon
commencement of their employment.

The Group's “Human Resources Management System”
regulates the employee training policies. The Group offers
internal and external training opportunities for employees.
The internal training aims at strengthening the flexibility of
human resources allocation of the Group and understanding
of the interface of works among departments. The various
departments of the Group provide training courses on the
relevant business topics on a regular basis according to
the expertise of the relevant departments. For example,
the internal trainings provided by Hong Kong headquarter
include training on Listing Rules, accounting standards, risk
management knowledge and the Employee’s Code of Conduct.
Employees also participate in external trainings held by local
trade unions and/or regulatory authorities from time to time,
such as training on internal control system and Companies
Ordinance.

3.2

33

ad Governance'Report
A—h—\\ =
- e & EIR

RIEH

AEBERBETRHEARANEAHE
HR2EZETRHEIERRAREBE
FOESTIZE M TIUNEA
S RSB SR B R B
EETEXBRREE  RFEIRE
HEREEZEERNIEERL -
SEAN - REE A BEREERRM [F
fel R B R AI BE W AR R BT
REEHBANREFRERZFAE

i o

SN - (B TSFRID IR 8 TEFHHIE
NI TIREE ©

EiniE
1. ABABERMTERERETET:

2. BARHPFITERANERES
ZETRETRE

3. ANEBERMEREBLEERTE
BRI

4. EEEHER - ADEBRAE
—HFE UERETAR
A/ AREEBER o

RIBRRE

REPMETRRABASENTIE
RE  AKEEANBERBRHFET
AB B ERE A A 8 ThReEtBa
Bl - BT BENBAEENS
2 RE ESKARSE-

AEBENCAFZEEGE)RBTET
IR - ARERHE T AR5
ERIEDI S - RERIEHIE MRS
BANEREENEEEMEBFIET
TEBCE MATIRA) T R o AEE R E
MR BARRE B PI FE X RS2
IR R B R FARERIFT o fl
I AEBERBARBAFEIATE
& EmARANE - SFHERIEF -
[\ B 1R B R AR )| A0 55 TR &
STFRIER - B TORRES 2 8=
Tek/ REEHRBLEMOINDE
A - plan : REREEIE R LRI R A ]
OIS -

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEHEZREEEGRLF

41



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRSG

Below sets out the statistics relating to the employee training LT AEBANEBRE TSIENEUE
of the Group based on gender and types of position: (MR KB R E D)
Gender
i 3:1)
Male Female
BHET ZHAT

Approximate percentage to the total number of employees
of the relevant gender 81% 76%
IEAEREMERI B TSR ALY

Types of position

L {og k)
Senior Mid-level Professional General
Management Management Position Position
EREER HREERE BREA —R

Approximate percentage to the total number of
employees of the relevant type of position 70% 76% 83% 80%
IEMRRABAIEE B TS AL L&

Gender
:3:1)
Male (hour) Female (hour)

BHATI(IE) TR I (D)

Average number of training hours 245 14.8

FOEIEH

Types of position

L {igchd
Senior Mid-level Professional General
Management Management Position Position
(hour) (hour) (hour) (hour)
BREER HREERE BREM —R R
(1hEs) (1hE) (hE) (1hEF)
Average number of training hours 10.1 24.6 13.2 26.4

FIIE I B
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3.5

Environmental, Social 3
B

Interests of the Employees

The Group respects and upholds internationally recognized
human rights and is consciously resisting any actions
disregarding and abusing human rights. The Group has been
in compliance in all material respects with national and local
laws and regulations in relation to prohibiting and preventing
child labour and forced labour as well as those in relation to
protection of employee’s privacy that have a significant impact
on the Group, such as the Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((FFZE AR MBI ENE)), the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Women's and Child
Rights and Interests ((FPZEARKEMBIRLZ R ERERZREE)),
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of
Minors ((FZE A R E R K F AREE)), the Provisions
on the Prohibition of the Use of Child Labor ({ZEIHFRET
# %€ )) and the Employment Ordinance of the laws of Hong
Kong (C{EE{EM1)), etc. Moreover, the Group also has been in
compliance in all material respects with national and local laws
and regulations regarding holidays and paid leave, etc. Under
the protection of the comprehensive national and local laws
and internal policy and monitoring system of the Group, the
statutory interests of the Group’s employees are safeguarded.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has been in compliance
in all material respects with such relevant national and local
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
and no incident of non-compliance was reported in this regard.

Safeguard the Safety of the Employees

Adhering to its “people-oriented” philosophy, the Group
has placed considerable emphasis on production safety. To
safeguard the employees’ personal safety and to provide a
safe and healthy working environment, the Group established
a production safety and management committee which is
responsible for monitoring all production safety matters in the
Group. The Group also provides relevant accident insurance for
its employees in accordance with the requirements of national
and local laws and regulations such as the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({(FZE AR L FBI& &% )), the
Regulations of Insurance for Employment Injury ({ T{5{R k&
{&f51)) and the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of
the laws of Hong Kong ((BZ % & M2 FE{4£1)), etc. During
the Reporting Period, the Group has been in compliance in
all material respects with the relevant national and local laws
and regulations regarding the provision of a safe working
environment and the protection of employees from work-
related injuries that have a significant impact on the Group, and
has not recorded any reports of death or work-related injuries
resulting from major accidents.
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On the other hand, the Group has formulated “Production
Safety Management Measures” and “General Contingency
Plans in respect of Production Safety Incidents”, setting out
the requirements on six areas, namely education and training,
troubleshooting, cost management, emergency rescue,
information delivery, and incident investigation and handling,
which apply to all members of the Group. Furthermore,
production safety is one of the assessing criteria in the annual
operating performance appraisal of all general managers of
the members of the Group and is linked with the criteria for
performance bonus in the Group’s remuneration policy.

Zhucheng Phoenix, a subsidiary of the Company, has
formulated a “Fire-fighting and Evacuation Emergency Drill
Plan” to provide clear guidelines on its fire drill procedures. Its
employees conduct fire drill and training regularly in accordance
with the plan to raise their fire safety awareness and self-help
skills, which in turn minimizes harm, loss and impact caused
by fire. In June 2017, Zhucheng Phoenix held a training on fire
safety knowledge and a fire drill for the employees.

Dafeng Development, another subsidiary of the Company, has
formulated a “Production Safety Management System” to
raise the safety awareness of its employees, and implemented
various safety measures to ensure a normal production
and operational order. The system has clearly defined the
structure of its production safety organization, the duties of the
production safety unit, the organization of meetings and training
on safety, production safety inspection, safety measures for
production sites and equipment, protective measures for
construction safety and hygiene and casualty management.

With regards to hotel and marine travelling, the Group arranges
for employees who work in hotel and/or operate marine
travelling facilities to participate in at least two emergency drills
every year, including marine rescue and rescue in scenic areas.
In September 2017, Huandao Underwater World, a subsidiary
of the Company, organized a production safety training and
convened a kick off meeting regarding production safety for
all employees and staff of outsourced entities. The meeting
focused on safety training regarding marine travelling business
in relation to operation, shipping and security for the purpose of
ensuring the safety of its employees and tourists.

The Group always regards the healthcare of employees as one
of the key tasks in maintaining a harmonious enterprise. To
strengthen the protection for employees and prevent work-
related injuries and diseases, the Group organizes annual
medical checks for employees to demonstrate its care towards
the employees with actions.
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CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group understands the importance of environmental
protection and has formulated environmental management policies
against different businesses with reference to national and local
environmental laws and regulations, and proactively implemented
different environmental measures to minimize the environmental
impacts brought by its operation as much as possible.

4.1 Exhaust Gas and Water Resource Management

The Group has been in compliance in all material respects
with national and local laws and regulations in relation to
environmental protection, air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of waste
that have a significant impact on the Group, such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China (AR ELFIBIREREE)), the Energy Conservation
Law of the People’s Republic of China ((#ZE AR EFBE & 48
JE%)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Pollution From Environmental Noise ( { F
AR EFBIRIER 525875 )), the Law of the People's
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution (A RFEFBIAFI5HRMEE)), the Water Law
of the People’s Republic of China ({FF2E AR FME L)), the
Marine Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China ({##E AR KEMEEFIREIREL)), the Regulations
of Beijing Municipal on Pollution and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution ({Ab =M KRS /A1H1)) and the Regulations of
Shandong Province on Environmental Protection ({[IER&RIE
1RFEIEHI)), etc., and has formulated emissions management
policies against different businesses.

For example, in order to reduce vehicle emissions when
conducting business activities out-of-office by employees,
the Group's Beijing office has formulated the “Administrative
Regulations on Business Vehicles”. When acquiring new
vehicles, the Group takes into consideration of factors such as
the level of emission reduction and energy saving. All vehicles
are required to be examined in detail and maintained regularly
so that the vehicles are maintained in good operating condition
and extra emissions are prevented. Meanwhile, the Group's
Beijing office strictly controls the frequency of employees’ use
of vehicles and encourages the sharing of one vehicle among
several employees when they attend out-of-office business
activities in order to respond to the Beijing government’s call
and reduce the impact of vehicle emissions on air quality.

The Group also attaches great importance to the management
of exhaust gas and waste water generated during
construction. Zhucheng Phoenix and Dafeng Development,
subsidiaries of the Company which engaged in property
development business, have established the accountability
system on the prevention and control of dust pollution. Dust
prevention measures such as covering, hoarding, totally-
enclosing, spraying, washing and greening are adopted
during construction work to reduce air pollution. For sewage
treatment, the drainage facilities on the construction sites of
Zhucheng Phoenix and Dafeng Development and the main
subject of the construction projects are designed, constructed
and put into use and operation concurrently, and the facilities
are connected to urban pipeline to ensure due disposal of
sewage.
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4.2 Energy Saving and Consumption Reduction

The major environmental impacts caused by the daily
operation of the Group's offices include: energy consumption,
usage of water resource, office supply consumption and
carbon emission from energy usage. In order to protect
the environment and conserve resources, the Group has
formulated and implemented various environmental protection
measures targeting daily operation of the offices in accordance
with national laws and regulations such as the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China ({1 AR

4.2

EREPE#E
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HMBEIRFZR#EE)) and the Energy Conservation Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({FZE A REFBIETLIEERIE) ).
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To reduce energy consumption, each of the Group’s respective
offices has formulated environmental protection measures
applicable to its offices, and encourages the employees to
comply strictly. Specific measures adopted by the Group's
Beijing office are set out below:

Energy Saving Measures in office

B 2 BT HOHE

Saving Electricity
E#IBE

Only turn on necessary lighting during day time
HRXARAAZHD L ERIAE
Maintain the temperature of air-conditioning to not lower than
26°C during summer time
BRIz R I TMER26/E
Replace with LED lighting system and energy-saving light tubes in offices
MAEALEDRA RS BT
Turn off the monitor and power of the computers,
or set to energy saving/hibernation mode when it is not in use
BN E AR ERPRREMNER - R EB AR RIRER
Post labels to remind employees for energy saving
REFR RS, - 1REEE TEAVREIR
Switch off all the lights, computers, printers, etc. after work and designate
persons to check and confirm
TR B IREAEE « A - FTEHHSE - WHEASZER
Use office equipment with Grade 1 energy efficiency standard
R ARRER B G I AR

Saving Water
B #I K

Promote water conservation among employees on their own initiative
RIEE T BB AKX

Install water-saving toilets and water tap

22 SR 7K B R AN ER /K 7K BE BR

Use residue water resources to clean and irrigate plants

ERREBKERETERMEEEY

Reduce usage of office supplies
RSP NI

Handle daily business through electronic platform to achieve paperless office

BBAFAEFCTFaREAEQTK - HITEMALEHD

Adopt double-sided printing, reuse used paper, communicate through emails
more frequently and minimize paper usage

HAEEITE - BERBEMNA  ZREFHT - SERDHREH

Recycle used paper and conduct garbage sorting and recycling

FEAREI - 53R KR EK
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The Group has also installed video conference system and
encouraged members of the Group and clients to use video
conference in substitution of business travelling, which could
enhance work efficiencies of the Group and also reduce carbon
footprint and emission of greenhouse gases.

In addition, Zhucheng Phoenix, a subsidiary of the Company,
has proactively responded to the Implementation Opinion on
the Promotion of Green Construction of Shandong Provincial
People’s Government ({IUIEE ARBIFENR AR IHEEZR EESE
1T E S R)) promulgated by the local government. In its
property development business, it fully executes the standards
for building energy-saving design of 75% energy-saving for
residential construction and 65% energy-saving for public
construction, and installed adaptive lighting system for the
public areas and aisleway in the buildings. Meanwhile, it also
introduces various environmental protection measures, such
as setting up light collection wells in basement parking lots and
glass curtain walls in public areas, so as to reduce consumption
of energy caused by usage of lighting devices.

Waste Management

The Group closely monitors the waste disposal condition
during its operation and establishes waste management
policies suitable for different businesses, aiming to reduce the
emissions of both hazardous and non-hazardous wastes and
minimize its impacts on the environment. The Group has been
in compliance in all material respects with relevant national and
local laws and regulations in relation to waste management and
disposal that have a significant impact on the Group, such as
the Law of the People’'s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes
((HpEE A RHEFNEE B8 EE )5 R IRIEFA7E)), Regulation on
the Administration of the Recycling and Disposal of Electrical
and Electronic Products Waste ((EFE B 2R E FEmEIWERIEE
I21&f1)), Shanya Municipal Administrative Measures for the
Disposal of Kitchen Wastes ({ Zas & B EIRHEE)), etc.
and proactively implements the requirements of the relevant
laws and regulations into its operation by establishing internal
management policies.

The Group imposes strict requirements on operating marine
vessels. Huandao Hotel Investment, a subsidiary of the
Company, has established “Preventive Measures for Pollution
from Vessels”, strictly prohibiting the discharge of hazardous
wastes and non-hazardous wastes such as solid wastes,
sewage and greasy dirt into the sea. Meanwhile, the Group
strives to raise the awareness of its crews on ocean protection
through launching promotion programmes and staff training,
requiring them to conduct sorting and collecting of hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes and hand over to government-
approved waste recycle entities for further handling on a
regular basis.
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In addition, in light of the tourists’ visit to the beach under
the marine travelling business, Huandao Hotel Investment
also formulated the “Management Policy for Environmental
Hygiene and Cleaning for Coastal Area and Beach”, so as to
enhance the environmental hygiene and waste management
in the beach areas under the operation of the Group. In
accordance with this policy, the beach areas were divided
into several areas for environmental hygiene and cleaning,
and regular cleaning staff are in-charge of the environmental
hygiene work in the respective area. The cleaners will perform
the cleaning and collection of all kinds of garbage on the beach
such as fruits peels, waste paper, cigarette butts and plastic
bags produced every day, and dispose them to designated
garbage station from where the garbage will be transported
to government-designated waste yard by garden companies
for further disposal, such that all wastes are disposed on
a daily basis. The Group has established an environmental
hygiene leadership team to be in charge of the supervision
and administration of the environmental hygiene for the
whole beach area and regularly clean up marine litters, so
as to achieve four “No”, (i.e., No debris, No fruit peels and
waste paper, No stink water and No four pests) as well as four
“Clean” (i.e. Clean Road, Clean Green Belt, Clean Walls and
Clean Public Area).

The Group also adopted policy of reducing the usage of
disposable products such as disposable tableware and plastic
bottled waters, and implemented measures of reusing and
recycling wastes and wastes sorting. Consumable materials
of the photocopiers and printers such as ink boxes and toners
cartridges, non-reusable waste paper and discarded computers
will be sorted with other daily solid wastes and recyclers will be
arranged to recycle them.
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4.4 SRERERE

4.4 Eco-environmental Protection

The Group has formulated various polices and measures
to perform eco-environmental protection and has been in
compliance in all material respects with the relevant national
and local laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group such as the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Environmental Impact Assessment (A RF1
BIRER ET{EE) ), the Regulations on the Administration of
Construction Project Environmental Protection ( (G2 IE B IRIE
RFEEIE(EH])) and the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Administration of Sea Areas ({7 ZE A R H )& 15 (55 F
EIE)), etc.

Before the commencement of property development and
construction, the Group analyzes, estimates and assesses
the potential negative environmental impacts on air, lands,
water resources and ecology that may arise from such
activities, and submits the “Environmental Impacts Report
of the Construction Project” in respect of the results to
relevant environmental protection authorities. In addition,
in order to reduce the nuisances caused by the noise from
construction, provisional anti-noise screens have been set up
in the construction sites. Construction equipment that may
produce noises exceeding statutory level will be avoided and
no construction is allowed during night time and restrictive
period of time to minimize the noises impacts. Apart from
that, the Group also grows flowers and trees in the community
garden under its property development projects to promote
afforestation in order to improve air quality and enrich
landscape of the community.

As to the marine ecology protection, apart from self-restraint
during its operation activities, the Company’'s subsidiary
Huandao Hotel Investment also formulated promotion manuals
such as “General Information on Environmental Protection”
to enhance the marine protection awareness among tourists.
Before the tourists conduct diving activities, instructors of the
activity will explain the importance of the protection of coral
reef and remind them not to touch or tread the corals, in order
to prevent causing damages to the marine environment and
extinction of endangered species. In order to promote the idea
of green community, Huandao Hotel Investment cultivates
plants in the scenic areas and formulated “Administrative
Regulations for Green Belt Protection”, so as to protect and
maintain the plants in the area.
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4.5 Environmental Performance Data

The Group has collected data for all consumed resources
during its business operation and calculated the emission of
greenhouse gas and production of solid wastes during the
Reporting Period. The relevant data during the Reporting Period
is as follows:

4.5 BERABE

AEEGRT T AN A F XK 2EH
FRRNESREREANOEE  XFET
RAREMABLELNRER B
MEMEREMNELE - HEAZE
LU

Unit
EHfr

Usage of Resource

BRHREE

Total Electric Power Consumption
BB EE

Intensity of Electric Power Consumption
BHERTE

Total Fuel Consumption (vehicle)
BORERERE (O5E)

Intensity of Fuel Consumption(vehicle)
POREFER R (98)

Total Fuel Consumption (vessel)

WO EREE = (M)

Intensity of Fuel Consumption(vessel)
BORERER E (FiAR)

Total Natural Gas Consumption
RINREFEE S

Intensity of Natural Gas Consumption
RARHEREE

Total Consumption of Purchased Steam
INBFRARNEREE

Total Consumption of Water

BREKE

Total Intensity of Water Consumption

BFKEE

1,747,474 Kwh

T LB
188  Kwh/m? of the floor area
TEE,FhKELEmE
69,263 Liter
NI
1,855  Liter/vehicle
ATt GHTE
261 Ton
UNLE
17.42  Ton/vessel
yNUpgss il
86,402 M3
SR

9  M?3/m? of the floor area

SRS FIORREmE

21,805 GJ
HE
83,368 Ton
N
9  Ton/m? of the floor area
AWE T KRR
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QRELE

Unit

B
Emissions of Air Pollutant by Vehicles
REERTEMBER
Emission of CO 921 Kg
CO#rmE =
Emission of NOx 344  Kg
NOxHER = F5e
Emission of SOx 1 Kg
SOxEER 2 F=
Emission of PM2.5 15 Kg
PM2 582 T
Emission of PM10 16 Kg
PM10BERE T
Emission of Air Pollutant by Vessels
RRARZE SRS RHE
Emission of CO 5,193 Kg
COBEmE =
Emission of NOx 14,424  Kg
NOxHEm = T
Emission of SOx 408 Kg
SOx#E = =
Emission of PM2.5 1,076 Kg
PM2 58 & TR
Emission of PM10 1,145  Kg
PM10BERE =
Greenhouse Gas Emission (Scope 1 and Scope 2)
BEFRESN(HEE1EE2)
Emission by Vehicles (Scope 1) 41 Ton
BB (EEN) N
Emission by Ships (Scope 1) 816  Ton
P HER (8E1) NI
Greenhouse Gas offset by the Group’s owned trees (Scope 1) -3 Ton
BEEBIARREREEEE(HE) N
Emission by Energy Consumption (Scope 2) 1,088  Ton
B E B (EE2) NI
Total Emission of Greenhouse Gas 1,941 Ton
WRERELENE NI
Total Intensity of Emission of Greenhouse Gas 0.2  Ton/m? of the floor area
R EREHINEE AWE KRR
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Unit

B
Discharge of Effluent
EEIKHEI
Total Volume of Sewage Discharged 72,736 Ton
VAR E NI
Discharge Volume of Hazardous Waste
AEEMEER
Fluorescent Tube 77  Piece(s)
HHEE 1@
The Intensity of Discharge of Wasted Fluorescent Tube 0.01 Piece(s)/m? of the floor area
BB EEERE 18,/ FrKEEmA
Used Batteries 69  Piece(s)
B e
The Intensity of Discharge of Used Batteries 0.01 Piece(s)/m? of the floor area
BEMEERE 8,/ Fr K EEmE
Cartridge 54  Piece(s)
25 e
The Intensity of Discharge of Wasted Cartridge 0.01 Piece(s)/m? of the floor area
BREIESXTE 8,/ Fr K EEmE
Discharge Volume of Non-hazardous Waste
EEGEMEER
Wasted Paper 318 Kg
R o
The Intensity of Discharge of Wasted Paper 0.03  Kg/m? of the floor area
BEAREERE Fr/FHKREEmE
Paper Recycled 13 Kg
HaRkEE F=

As this ESG Report is the Group's first disclosure of data
on the use of resources and emissions including electricity
consumption, water consumption, discharges of hazardous
and non-hazardous solid waste, the Group will conduct year
to year comparison for the data in the coming year to quantify
the Group's achievements in terms of measures on resources
conservation and emission reduction. In addition, since the
Group did not engage in manufacturing business, it did not have
any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose and did not
use any packaging materials.
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5 EXCELLENT MANAGEMENT

5.1

5.2

Supply Chain Management

The Group strives to maintain and develop a long-term and
close relationship with upstream and downstream customers
and business partners. Each of the Company’s subsidiaries
has established a bidding management system and supplier
evaluation system with standardised tender and bidding
procedures to ensure the process of selection of contractors
and suppliers is fair and transparent. According to the
supplier evaluation system, apart from the competitiveness
of quotation, the Group also evaluates the standard of the
products and services provided by the contractors and
supplier on a regular basis and assess the quality of the
relevant products and services to ensure the contractor and/
or the supplier are in compliance with the relevant standard.
For example, a subsidiary of the Company, Chengtong
Development Trading, has formulated the “Management
Method of Credit Evaluation on Upstream Suppliers/
Downstream Customers”, which adopts qualitative indicator to
evaluate upstream suppliers and downstream customers. The
regular and occasional evaluations are conducted against social
and governance risks, mainly with reference to the certification
of enterprise qualification, reputation in the industry, financial
condition, actual performance of the contract, administrative
penalty, litigation involved etc. The above policies aim to
enhance operation quality and overall efficiency of the Group,
as well as to ensure fund security, so as to strengthen and
improve risk management.

Besides, provisions for environmental protection are
incorporated into certain contracts by the Group, requesting
contractors and suppliers to strictly observe the requirements
of environmental protection when performing their contractual
obligations so as to align with the Group's philosophy on
sustainable development.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing customers with quality
products and services. It actively enriches the types of projects
in property development, bulk commodity trade and marine
travelling and improves the quality of its products and services
to attract new customers and strengthen relationship with
existing customers.

Product safety is the upmost concern of the Group. The
Group has been in compliance in all material respects with the
national and local laws and regulations in relation to production
safety of construction projects that have a significant impact
on the Group, such as the Measures for Quality Repair of
Housing Construction Project ((EEBETREE 2 REMH
7%)). The Group regulates construction procedures and
technique, and requires those who are in specialised positions
and those who operate specialised equipment to possess
relevant qualifications or operation certificates. Various tests
and inspection are arranged before delivery of construction
projects. Timely rectification measures are also carried out
when quality problems are found to ensure the safety of the
construction work.
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Ensuring the safety of the tourists is the primary task of the
Group’s hotel and marine travelling business. The Undersea
World Hotel of the Group has security staff in charge of carrying
out patrol in the hotel and safety inspection of kitchen and
firefighting equipment, as well as cooperating with the police
and firefighting departments to ensure the safety of the hotel
and tourists. With regards to the safety of entertainment
facilities on vessels, the captain of each vessel undergoes
comprehensive inspection for all entertainment facilities prior
to the commencement of daily operation. Fire safety measures
are adopted on all operating vessels and staff are required to
participate in emergency drills on a regular basis. In respect
of hotel management on food safety and hygiene, the Group
strictly manages and controls food purchase channels, and
sets up the food safety and supervisory department to arrange
regular inspections for all food processing plants and kitchens.

Customers’ satisfaction is the driving force of the Group in
promoting quality service. The Group establishes various
communication channels including telephone hotlines, website
of the Group and social media platform to strengthen its
communication with customers. The Company’s subsidiary,
Huandao Hotel Investment, has established the “System of
Handling Complaint from Visitors” to standardize the handling
requirements of various types of complaints from tourists in
respect of the marine travelling business, the classification of
complaints and the analysis of the tourists’ request, so as to
resolve visitor's unsatisfaction and needs. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has received eleven complaints in total in
respect of the relevant products and services. Upon receiving
reasonable complaints, the Group will take remedial measures
timely such as offering compensation, issuing letter of apology
etc., to treat all of the customers in good faith and offer them
the excellent services.

To safeguard data privacy and intellectual property rights of
the Group and its customers, the Group's headquarter in
Hong Kong and Huandao Hotel Investment have formulated
the "Employee’s Code of Conduct” and “File Management
System” respectively, requiring its staff to safeguard the
confidentiality of information. The Group also incorporates
confidentiality provisions in certain existing employment
contracts to avoid information leakage and safeguard
customers’ privacy. In addition, the Group has been in
compliance in all material respects with the administrative
requirements in its business location which are applicable
to the industry and have a significant impact on the Group
and has enhanced the security management of the personal
information of the customers. If the employees require access
to customers’ personal information, they must receive approval
from their respective supervisors or managers so as to avoid
unauthorised and improper use of customers’ confidential
information. Furthermore, with regards to the protection of
intellectual property rights, the Group complies with relevant
regulations and insists to purchase and use licenced computer
software and respects intellectual property rights. The Group
has been in compliance in all material respects with the national
and local laws and regulations in relation to intellectual property
rights and data privacy that have a significant impact on the
Group, such as the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of
China ({2 A R K FIBIZEEH#E)), the Trademark Laws of the
People’s Republic of China ({FZEARZEMBEEEZE)) and the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of the laws of Hong Kong

(CEAE R (FLER) {EH1).
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5.3
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The Group has complied in all material respects with the
laws and regulations of the state and industry on advertising
and labeling that have a significant impact on the Group,
including The Advertising Law of the People’s Republic
of China ({(FEARLFMBEEEE)), the Interim Rules on
Advertisement for Real Estate ((FEiEREEMEITRE))
and the Announcement of the State Administration for Industry
and Commerce and Ministry of Construction on Further
Strengthening the Administration of Real Estate Advertising
((ARIFHTHERER  BRIBENE—TINREMER
EERRAAD) ), etc., and ensures that the advertisements
released will comply with the requirements of the government
and the industry and will not mislead the general public.

Anti-Corruption

The Group has taken a firm stance against illegal operations
such as bribery, blackmail, fraud, money laundering, and
strictly prohibits any behaviors that might be detrimental to
the interests of customers and the Group. The Group complies
in all material respects with the national and local laws and
regulations on anti-corruption that have a significant impact on
the Group, including the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China ((FREEARFLFBEIFSE) ), the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FEMARHLFE
RAEEHFE)), the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({1 A RIFEFIE &%EEE)) and
the Regulations on Practice Integrity of Management of the
State-owned Enterprises ((EIB BB A BRZNWER TR
7€) ), etc.. During the Reporting Period, the Group has not been
involved in any litigation with respect to corruption.

The “"Employee’s Code of Conduct” of the Group specifies
that staff should have strict integrity and shall not engage in
malpractices such as corruption or bribery, secretly accepting
any commission and gifts from customers, as well as
embezzling of funds. Approvals shall be obtained before dealing
with matters beyond the staff authority. The Group requires
all staff to uphold integrity and behave honestly, and anyone
who violates the code of conduct of the Group shall be given
a warning, demotion or dismissal. In the event that any staff is
suspected of involving in corruption or criminal acts, the Group
is obliged to report to the Hong Kong Independent Commission
Against Corruption (ICAC) or the relevant government
authorities. As to the Group's internal reporting procedures
for corruption, an anti-corruption reporting hotline and email
have been set up. Staff may report corruption cases via various
channels so as to enhance the efficiency of anti-corruption
work.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

In addition to its commitment of pursuing its development, the
Group also takes a proactive attitude in practicing corporate
social responsibility and promotes positive attitude. During the
Reporting Period, the Group paid a keen attention on the needs
of neighborhood, especially focused on areas such as poverty
alleviation, education aid and support for disabilities, and practically
supported the development of social charity.

On 8 June 2017, Undersea World Travel, a subsidiary of the
Company, actively participated in the Sanya Caring Action (=g &
LNRTTE), advocated and organised all staff to raise funds for the
charity work for disabilities at their best. According to statistics, staff
from Undersea World Travel donated RMB4,048 at the fundraising
site and Undersea World Travel donated RMB10,000 in its name.
The entire donation received was remitted to the donation account of
Hainan Disabled Persons’ Foundation.

Since the Group's commencement of poverty alleviation work
in Xiazhuang Village, Yiyang County, Henan Province, the Group
has developed poverty alleviation plans consisting of three areas
based on the actual situation of the village, namely construction
of infrastructure, poverty alleviation by education aid and poverty
alleviation by industry development. Such poverty alleviation works
have achieved steady progresses, in which the poverty alleviation
by education aid programme has commenced for two years, and
has resolved the pressing needs for needy families and has gained
recognition from the villagers.

In April 2017, in order to solve the problem of detoured farming faced
by villagers during the rainy season, the Group invested RMB197,000
to build a low-water bridge across Lianchang River for Xiazhuang
Village.

On 22 August 2017, the Group's general manager assistant and the
acting deputy head assigned by China Chengtong Holdings Group
Limited to station in Yiyang County took part in activities organised by
CCHK and delivered education-aid donation to students in Xiazhuang
Village, Yiyang County, Henan Province.

In December 2017, to achieve the objective of “Poverty Alleviation
by Education and Heartwarming Care” (X E B LHKE « BLOKE)
of CCHG, the Group entrusted Huandao Group to arrange a 5-day
professional training in Haikou Huandao Primary School (/8 A& &/
&) for more than 40 primary school principals and key teachers from
Yiyang County.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The principal business of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 80 of this annual report.

The Directors did not recommend the declaration of a final dividend for the
Year (for the year ended 31 December 2016: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and investment
properties for the Year are set out in notes 15 and 17 to the financial
statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 38 to the financial
statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 84 to 85 of
this annual report.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company for the Year are
set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had approximately HK$96,401,000
distributable reserve as calculated under Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the
Companies Ordinance (31 December 2016: HK$65,398,000).
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DONATIONS

The Group made approximately HK$383,000 donation for charitable
purpose during the Year (2016: HK$936,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in property development,
property investment, finance leasing, bulk commodity trade and hotel and
marine travelling services within the region in the PRC.

Major Risks and Uncertainties

The results and business operation of the Group are affected by various
factors. The major risks are summarized as follows.

I

1.

.

Property Development and Property Investment

In recent years, policies in respect of the property industry in the PRC
such as macro-economic control, reduction of inventory, the increase
in the proportion of first installment payable for initial purchase of
properties, limitation of purchase, adjustment to loan interest rates,
etc, have greater impact on property development industry. CCT-
Champs-Elysees and Chengtong International City, the property
development projects held by the Group, are situated in the third and
fourth-tier cities in the PRC. Features such as high level of inventory,
relatively low foreign population and fierce competition have affected
the turnover of the projects. However, with the positive local brand
image of the CCT-Champs-Elysees project built by the Group, the
sales volume was stable. In addition, the Group will pursue to exit
the market of property development business as opportunity arises
and plans to dispose of the land in Dafeng city of Jiangsu Province.
Therefore, the overall risks were controllable.

Finance Leasing

The finance leasing projects of the Group mainly focus on the lease
back of local government infrastructure and public utilities. Business
and client types are relatively homogeneous, such concentration
of risks will affect the profitability of the Group. In the future, the
Group will actively explore a wide range of business models, expand
business streams and diversify risks.

Bulk Commodity Trading

National policies of the PRC such as environmental protection,
limitation on coal production, etc. have greater impact on bulk
commodity trading prices and market changes. In addition, the
influence of seasonality and climate resulted in the instability of
the prices of bulk commodity trade. Once there is a drop or intense
fluctuations in the prices, the profitability of the Group would easily
be affected. In the future, the Group will strengthen the supervision
and control on the business model of bulk commodity trade in order
to reduce the risks.
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1v.

Hotel and Marine Travelling Services

The operation of the marine travelling business is subject to the
weather condition. Adverse weather condition may affect the number
of business days of tourism activities and the profitability. Going
forward, the Group will pay attention to opportunities from other
quality tourism resources and timely update products and facilities
according to the market changes in order to maintain the market
competitiveness of its hotel and marine travelling business.

Economy

The business of the Group mainly focus in the PRC, and therefore,
the Group would suffer from the risks arising from foreign currency
exchange, mainly due to its holding of assets and liabilities which are
denominated in RMB. Furthermore, the increase of loan interests
during the year will affect the Group’s interest expenses of loans. The
fluctuation of exchange rate and the adjustment of loan interests may
have an impact on the results of the Group. Although foreign currency
and interest rate exposure do not pose significant risks to the Group,
and the Group does not currently have any hedging measures against
such exchange and interest rate risks, the Group will continue to
closely monitor the risks which may arise from such currency and
interest rate fluctuation.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group constantly monitored the operation of its core businesses in the
PRC to ensure the compliance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations.

I

Property Development and Property Investment

Zhucheng Phoenix and Dafeng Development, the subsidiaries of
the Company, are principally engaged in property development and
property investment businesses. During the Year and up to the
date of this directors’ report, the Group has been in compliance
in all material respects with the laws and regulations in Mainland
China that have a significant impact on its property development
and property investment businesses, including: the Law on the
Administration of Urban Real Estate (Order No. 18 of the President)
(T EHE B IR E)EFE <5 18%1), the Administrative Regulations
on Development and Operation of Urban Real Estate (Order No.
588 of the State Council) ({35 55 Hh 2 7 35 48 & & 12 160D (B 75 B
£ 255885%)), the Law on Land Administration (Order No. 28 of the
President) (( £3E A NE E < 55285%)), the Law on Urban and Rural
Planning (Order No. 23 of the President) (CHAFREIA) (EESE23
§%)), and judicial interpretations, other regulations, local regulations
and regulatory documents issued or promulgated according to or in
relation to these laws and regulations. These laws and regulations
aim to strengthen the management of urban real estate, maintain
the order of real estate market, protect the legitimate rights and
interests of the parties interested in the real estate, and regulate the
construction of infrastructure and housing on the state-owned land
within the urban planning area as well as the transfer of real estate
development projects or the sale or leasing of commercial housing
conducted by real estate development enterprises.
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1.

hi.

Finance Leasing

During the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report, the
Group has been in compliance in all material respects with the laws
and regulations in Mainland China that have a significant impact
on its finance leasing business, including: the Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China (Order No. 15 of the President) ({(FZE A
REMBEA BENEFESE155)), the Interpretations of the Supreme
People’s Court on Issues relating to the Application of Laws in the
Trial of Disputes over Finance Lease (Court Interpretation [2014] No.
) UEBARERBNREEMERES RAUHETEREZEMBENR
) 0£R£[2014135%)), and judicial interpretations, other regulations,
local regulations and regulatory documents issued or promulgated
according to or in relation to these laws and regulations. These laws
and regulations aim to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
the contractual parties, maintain social and economic order, guide
the business activities of the finance leasing industry, promote the
economic development of the finance leasing services, and guide the
judicial authorities on hearing the contractual disputes in respect of
finance leasing.

Bulk Commodity Trade

During the Year, the bulk commodity trade business of the Group
mainly comprises trading of steel, non-ferrous metals and coal.
During the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report, the
Group has been in compliance in all material respects with the laws
and regulations in Mainland China that have a significant impact on
its bulk commodity trade business, including: the Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China (Order No. 15 of the President) ({/
#EARKEMBEARENEFESFE155)), the Guarantee Law of the
People’s Republic of China (Order No. 50 of the President) ({(FFZE A
REFMBIERENEFESELOHR)), the Negotiable Instruments Law
of the People’s Republic of China (Order No. 22 of the President) (¥
E ANRLFEEE XN EESE229)), Special Provisions on Trading
in Commodities on the Spot Market (for Trial Implementation) ({7
GIRETHELZERRE (3177))), and judicial interpretations, other
regulations, local regulations and regulatory documents issued or
promulgated according to or in relation to those laws and regulations.
These laws and regulations are applicable to the production and
business activities in relation to steel, non-ferrous metals and coal
which are conducted in the territory of the PRC and other sea territory
under the jurisdiction of the PRC, as well as to regulate the national
and industrial standards of the quality of the above commodities, the
supervision and management of the industry and the standards of
punishment for violation of relevant laws.
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IV. Hotel and Marine Travelling Services

The Group is also engaged in hotel and marine travelling services
business in Hainan Province, the PRC. During the Year and up to
the date of this directors’ report, the Group has been in compliance
in all material respects with the laws and regulations in Mainland
China that have a significant impact on its hotel and marine travelling
business, including: the Tourism Law (Order No. 57 of the President)
(CHREEE) (EE S 55757)), the Administrative Measures for Public
Security in the Hotel Industry (Order No. 588 of the State Council)
(IREEZ AL EEILE) (B P < #5885%)), the Law on Maritime
Traffic Safety (Order No. 57 of the President) ({}& EXBEZ 2 %)
(£ & < % 57 %%)), and judicial interpretations, other regulations,
local regulations and regulatory documents issued or promulgated
according to or in relation to these laws and regulations. These laws
and regulations aim to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
the tourists and the operators of the travelling activities, maintain
the order of the tourism market, and specify the rules governing
operators of the hotel industry, vessels, seamen and operators
that sail, berth and operate in coastal area of the PRC, and the
relevant supervision and management system and the standards of
punishment.

The Group has established various management systems and measures
such as internal control and staff training to ensure the compliance with
laws and regulations in relation to the Group’s business and operation. As at
31 December 2017 and the date of this directors’ report, no material breach
of laws and regulations that has a material impact on the Group's business
and operation was noted by the Group.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with customers and provide them with quality products and services.
The Group enhances the relationship through continuous interaction with
customers to gain insight on the changing market demand so that the
Group can respond proactively.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the
five largest customers represented approximately 31% of the Group's
total turnover. Sales to the largest customer accounted for approximately
9.9% of the Group's total turnover. The five largest customers come
from the bulk commodity trade business and they commenced trading
with the Group since the Year. The Group normally grants credit terms to
its customers according to industry practice together with consideration
of their creditability and repayment history. The credit period granted
to customers of bulk commodity trade business ranged from 0 day to
45 days (2016: 30 days to 45 days). As at 31 December 2017, trade
receivables of the Group was approximately HK$21 million. The Group has
not provided for impairment loss on trade receivables as the Directors are
of the view that trade receivables can be fully recovered. In addition, the
Directors consider that there is no significant risk associated with reliance
on major customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management.

The Group is also dedicated to maintain good relationship with suppliers
and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the
Group's business.
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During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases (which means the
amount of purchases included in the costs of sale but does not include
purchases of items which are of a capital nature) attributable to the
five largest suppliers represented approximately 81% of the Group's
total purchases. Purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 29% of the Group's total purchases. The five largest
suppliers mainly came from the bulk commodity trade business and they
commenced trading with the Group for 1 -2 years. As at 31 December 2017,
trade payables of the Group was approximately HK$14.9 million, of which
approximately HK$11.5 million will be due within one year. The Group has
established a supplier evaluation system with standardized tender and
bidding procedures for the selection of suppliers. The Directors consider
that there is no significant risk associated with reliance on major suppliers.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and any shareholders which to the best knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital had any
interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the Year.

Human Resources and Emolument Policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 304 employees
(as at 31 December 2016: 331), of which 12 were based in Hong Kong (as
at 31 December 2016: 14) and 292 were based in Mainland China (as at 31
December 2016: 317). During the Year, the total staff costs of the Group
(including directors emoluments and provident funds) were approximately
HK$62.22 million. Employee’s remunerations are determined in accordance
with their experiences, competence, qualifications and nature of duties,
and current market trend so as to maintain its competitiveness. Apart from
the basic salary, discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to
employees by the Group to reward their performance and contributions.
The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s corporate goals, the individual
performance of the Directors and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme") under which the Company may grant options to Directors and
eligible employees to subscribe for shares of the Company. The Group has
also adopted a share award scheme under which shares of the Company
will be awarded, with the approval of the Board, to selected employees to
recognise their contribution and to give them incentives thereto in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of the Group, as
well as to attract suitable personnel for the growth and further development
of the Group. The first share award scheme of the Company (”Original
Share Award Scheme") was adopted on 25 April 2012 and expired on
24 April 2017 in accordance with its terms. A new share award scheme
("New Share Award Scheme") was adopted by the Company which
became effective on 1 July 2017 for a term of five years. Details of the
Share Option Scheme and the New Share Award Scheme of the Company
are set out in the section headed "Equity-linked Agreements” in this
directors’ report.

Further discussion and analysis of the other aspects of the business review
as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including but not
limited to the key relationships of the Group with its employees, customers
and suppliers, and the Group's environmental polices and performance,
is set out in the ESG Report of the Company on pages 37 to 56 and the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
6 to 18 of this annual report. Such discussion forms part of this directors’
report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this directors’ report are
as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. YUAN Shaoli (Chairman)

Mr. ZHANG Bin (appointed as Managing Director with effect from 15 June
2017)

Mr. WANG Hongxin (resigned with effect from 15 June 2017)

Mr. WANG Tianlin

Independent non-executive directors
Professor CHANG Qing

Mr. LEE Man Chun, Tony

Professor HE Jia

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 19 to 22 of this annual
report.

Detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company will be set out in the circular in relation
to the forthcoming AGM to be despatched to the shareholders. No Director
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Company has received from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to the Listing Rules and considers that each independent non-executive
Director is independent of the Company.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report, each of the
executive Directors named above holds directorship in certain of the
Company'’s subsidiaries. Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin Islands include Li Shufang,
Zhang Yongging and Chan Siu Kay. Other directors of the Company's
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC include Wang Hongxin, Li Yun, Yan
Ling, Liu Peihong, Ni Xiangrong, Zhang Yongging, Jiao Zhonglin, Zheng
Haichou, Li Rui, Zhu Guodong, Li Liangbin and Huang Wenfeng.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities
which he may sustain or incur in the execution of his duties or otherwise
in relation thereto pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company.
Such provisions were in force during the course of the Year and remained
in force as of the date of this directors’ report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director
had material interest (whether directly or indirectly), was subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

During the Year, none of the Directors and their respective close associates
had any business or interests in business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors and chief executive of the Company
who had any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code are as follows:

ERZXH  RERGHER

ART - HEEMZERAF - BB QR RETH
BARYEVEENREEHAENERERE
A (TR ERIEE) ERAFERAANFE
HREAEARRDAFEZRS RHERERES
#) e

R

RAFER HESELEZTENETBEAZ
B T B 5§ ] R B K 6% [ SR 75 9 o R R B OB
EVEATEB RN R EB A

THEW

REFABET L SRFEEAR R 2HREME
AR EBEENERRITHAEL -

EERITRARSHRG -« HEKG
RRHGCHGRAE

RZZB—tE+-_A=+—B AREBEFER
TEITHBABRANRE RERBEE 2B - 48
B0 KB 55 B IR IR R85 M B B 15 1) 58 352 &
ATFEZERMaE  RBFEETAE ST
HERNB R s FORBANT ¢

Long Position L5
Interest in the Approximate
Company or percentage of
its associated Nature of Class of Number of issued
Name of Director corporation interest shares shares share capital
RAELATREMAERM HLERTERE
EElR EEBEDR BEME BRin %R R B8 A BA
Yuan Shaoli The Company Beneficial owner  Ordinary 300,000 (Note) 0.0052%
RAAE ZA/N| BEmEAA =il (Bfat)
Zhang Bin The Company Beneficial owner  Ordinary 300,000 (Note) 0.0052%
RO ZN/NS| EnlEAA iR (Bfiz)
Wang Tianlin The Company Beneficial owner Ordinary 400,000 (Note) 0.0069%
FRFR AN BEmEAA =gl (Bfat)

Note: These are the shares awarded under the previous share award scheme adopted by  #7:% - ZZERMH BIRBEARA T Z AHERATEA T —+F0Y
the Company which expired on 24 April 2017.
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Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations that was required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons, other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company, had interests or short positions in the
issued shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long Position
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Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Class of shares shares the Company

HEELT

BREE EGkE B in %R Biz8H CERITRFESL

World Gain Beneficial owner (Note) Ordinary 3,001,272,119 51.67%
BEnlEB M) g

CCHK Controlled corporation (Note) Ordinary 3,001,272,119 51.67%
HiBEE RESEE (M) 3

CCHG Controlled corporation (Note) Ordinary 3,001,272,119 51.67%
PRI RESEE (M) Epi

Note: The entire issued share capital of World Gain is beneficially owned by CCHK, the
entire issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by CCHG. Both CCHK and
CCHG are deemed to be interested in all the shares held by World Gain under the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no other person, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had any interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into by the Company during
the Year or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below:

Share option scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the AGM of the Company held
on 27 June 2013, the Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme
which shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the date it was adopted and will end on 26 June 2023. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-caliber employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (a) any employee
(whether full time or part time, including any executive director but
excluding any non-executive director of the Company) of, or any individual
for the time being seconded to work for, the Company, any subsidiary or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest
(“Invested Entity") or any employee or officer of the controlling
shareholder of the Company; (b) any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary of
the Company or any Invested Entity; (c) any suppliers of goods or services
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued or proposed to be
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to the Group relating to any area
of business or business development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (h) any joint venture or business partner of the Group
who have contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of
the Group.

Ordinary shares of the Company may be allotted and issued upon the
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme. The
total number of shares of the Company which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the day on which
the Share Option Scheme was adopted, which was 484,073,477 shares,
representing approximately 8.33% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report. The maximum number of
shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company (or the subsidiaries)
from time to time.
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The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised,
cancelled or outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being. Any further grant of options in excess of such limit in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant shall be subject
to shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company with such
participant and his/her associates abstaining from voting.

An offer of the grant of an option under the Share Option Scheme may be
accepted within 21 days from the date of grant together with a remittance
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof. An option may
be exercised during such period as the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine, save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the
date of grant.

Unless the Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer to a
grantee, a grantee is not required to hold an option for any minimum period
nor achieve any performance targets before any options granted under the
Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company on the exercise of
the option shall be determined at the discretion of the Board which shall
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company's shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Company's shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares™®. Holding period will be determined by the Directors
upon granting.

Please refer to the circular of the Company dated 28 May 2013 for more
details of the Share Option Scheme.

During the Year, no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme. There was no option outstanding at the
beginning and at the end of the Year.

Note: Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, which came into operation on 3 March 2014,
the shares of the Company have ceased to have nominal value.

Share award scheme

The Company adopted the Original Share Award Scheme on 25 April
2012 which has expired on 24 April 2017 in accordance with its terms.
No shares were awarded by the Company pursuant to the Original Share
Award Scheme during the Year. In order to continue to provide a means
to (i) recognise the contributions by certain selected employees and to
give incentives to them for the continual operation and development of
the Group; and (ii) attract suitable personnel for the growth and further
development of the Group, the Company has adopted the New Share
Award Scheme which became effective on 1 July 2017. The terms of the
New Share Award Scheme are substantially the same as those of the
Original Share Award Scheme, save that the Share Award Scheme is for a
term of five years commencing from 1 July 2017.
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Pursuant to the New Share Award Scheme, ordinary shares of the
Company will be awarded, with the approval of the Board, to selected
employees based on, inter alia, the employee’s work performance and such
other matters that the Board considers relevant. Shares awarded under the
New Share Award Scheme will be offered to the selected employees for no
consideration but subject to certain conditions (including vesting conditions)
to be decided by the Board at the time of grant of the shares awarded under
the New Share Award Scheme. A selected employee shall be entitled to
receive the awarded shares in accordance with the vesting schedule upon
the selected employee having satisfied all vesting conditions specified
by the Board at the time of making the award. Vesting of the shares wiill
be conditional on the selected employee remaining an employee on the
relevant vesting date and his/her execution of the relevant documents to
effect the transfer from the trustee of the New Share Award Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further award which will result in the total
number of ordinary shares awarded by the Board under the New Share
Award Scheme representing in excess of 1% of the issued shares of the
Company as at 1 July 2017 (being 58,087,347 ordinary shares, representing
approximately 1% of the issued shares of the Company as at the date of
this annual report) unless the Board otherwise decides. Unless terminated
earlier or extended by the Board in accordance with the New Share Award
Scheme rules, the New Share Award Scheme operates for five years
commencing on 1 July 2017.

No shares were awarded by the Company under the New Share Award
Scheme during the Year.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30 June 2017 for
more details of the New Share Award Scheme.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Year was the Company, or
any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 6 August 2015, the Company and #:@8 #5 B R Z T2 7 (unofficial
English translation being China Chengtong Finance Corporation Ltd.)
(“Chengtong Finance") entered into a financial services agreement
("2015 Financial Services Agreement"), pursuant to which
Chengtong Finance agreed to provide the Group with a range of financial
services (including deposit services, loan services and other financial
services) for a term commencing from 9 November 2015 to 31 December
2017, subject to the terms and conditions contained in the 2015 Financial
Services Agreement. As the 2015 Financial Services Agreement expired
on 31 December 2017 and the Company expected that the connected
transactions contemplated under the 2015 Financial Services Agreement
would continue but in a smaller scale, on 29 December 2017, the Company
and Chengtong Finance entered into a new financial services agreement
("New Financial Services Agreement”) for a term commencing from
1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020.

According to the terms of the New Financial Services Agreement, the
daily balance of the Group's deposits (including any interest accrued
therefrom) with Chengtong Finance for each of the three years ending
31 December 2018, 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 shall not
exceed an amount equivalent to RMB116 million. As Chengtong Finance
is a subsidiary of CCHG, which is the ultimate controlling shareholder of
the Company, Chengtong Finance is therefore a connected person of the
Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules and the transactions
contemplated under the New Financial Services Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The interest rates payable by Chengtong Finance to the Group for any
deposits made with Chengtong Finance shall (i) be 20%-50% higher than
the deposit interest rate prescribed by The People’s Bank of China for
deposits with the same term and of the same type; (ii) not be lower than
the interest rates offered to the Group by the major commercial banks in
the PRC for deposits with the same term and of the same type; and (iii) not
be lower than the interest rates offered by Chengtong Finance to any third
party for deposits with the same term and of the same type. Further details
of the New Financial Services Agreement are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 29 December 2017.

According to the terms of the 2015 Financial Services Agreement, the daily
balance of the Group's deposits (including any interest accrued therefrom)
with Chengtong Finance for each of the three years ended 31 December
2015, 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 shall not exceed an
amount equivalent to RMB500 million. Such maximum daily balance of
deposits had not been exceeded during the Year.

As at 31 December 2017, the deposits placed with Chengtong Finance
amounted to approximately RMB71,834,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$86,200,000).
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The Company has established certain internal control procedures to
ensure that the transactions with Chengtong Finance were conducted in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the 2015 Financial Services
Agreement and the New Financial Services Agreement. For example,
before entering into individual transaction for the deposit services with
Chengtong Finance, the finance department of the Group will compare
the interest rate offered by Chengtong Finance to the Group with the
corresponding deposit benchmark interest rates prescribed by The People’s
Bank of China and the interest rates offered by leading independent
commercial banks in the PRC. The Company has followed the above
policies and guidelines when determining whether to enter into individual
transaction for the deposit services with Chengtong Finance during the
Year.

The Group's risk management department has conducted reviews on
the above continuing connected transactions during the Year and issued
an internal control review report in relation to the Group’s continuing
connected transactions. All independent non-executive Directors have
also reviewed the internal control review report of the risk management
department and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them, and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

The Directors also confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Company's auditor, BDO Limited, was engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
BDO Limited has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and
confirmed that:

(@) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the above continuing connected transactions have not been approved
by the Board,

(b)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions;
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(c)

with respect to the aggregate amount of the above disclosed
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Connected Transactions

(1)

(2)

On 6 February 2015, Huandao Hotel Investment, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as lender, and Huandao Group, as
borrower, entered into a loan agreement pursuant to which
Huandao Hotel Investment granted a loan in the principal amount of
RMB30,000,000 to Huandao Group for a term from 9 February 2015
to 8 February 2016. On 5 February 2016, Huandao Hotel Investment
and Huandao Group entered into a loan extension agreement to
extend the term of the loan for one year to 8 February 2017. The
interest rate for the loan is 10% per annum. The loan was fully repaid
together with interest accrued thereon on 8 February 2017. Huandao
Group is a company established in the PRC and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CCHG, which is the ultimate controlling shareholder
of the Company. Huandao Group is an associate of CCHG and
therefore is a connected person of the Company. Further details of
the loan agreement and the extension are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 6 February 2015 and 5 February 2016
respectively.

On 29 March 2016, the Company entered into a guarantee
agreement (“Guarantee Agreement”) with Chengtong Coal,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to procure its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Chengtong Development Trading, to issue a guarantee
letter in favour of E PGt ik B A & & A& A R A FT (the Supreme
People's Court of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region) (" Guangxi
Court”) and use certain office premises in Beijing which are owned
by Chengtong Development Trading with an aggregate gross area
of 1,275.06 square metres as a guarantee (“Guarantee”) to the
extent of RMB53,5639,767 (“Guaranteed Amount”) for a period
of three years in support of a property preservation order issued by
the Guangxi Court against certain respondents in a legal proceeding
brought by Chengtong Coal in the Guangxi Court. An annual
arrangement fee of 1% over the Guaranteed Amount is payable by
Chengtong Coal to the Company during the term of the Guarantee.

On the same day, Chengtong Development Trading also entered
into a deed of counter-indemnity (“Indemnity Deed”) with CCHK,
pursuant to which CCHK agreed to, among other matters, indemnify
Chengtong Development Trading for its liabilities and loss which may
arise from the Guarantee.

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEHFEBRREBEGRLAT /1
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4)

Chengtong Coal is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHG,
the ultimate holding company of the Company. CCHK is an indirect
holding company of the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CCHG. As each of Chengtong Coal and CCHK is a connected person
of the Company, the entering into of the Guarantee Agreement and
the Indemnity Deed by the Company and Chengtong Development
Trading respectively constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details of
the Guarantee Agreement and the Indemnity Deed are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 March 2016.

On 17 November 2017, Chengtong Energy, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, as seller, entered into a sale
contract (“First Sale Contract”) with FE A XL EFRE R 7
(unofficial English translation being China Paper Industry Investment
Company Limited) (“China Paper Industry”), as purchaser,
for the sale of certain thermal coal. Chengtong Energy agreed to
sell, and China Paper Industry agreed to purchase, approximately
10,000 tons of thermal coal at the total basic price in the range
from RMB6,750,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,897,500)
to RMB6,850,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$8,014,500),
depending on the period of the maximum tenure of the bank
acceptance draft provided by China Paper Industry to Chengtong
Energy on settlement and subject to any adjustment to the final
settlement price pursuant to the First Sale Contract. As China
Paper Industry is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHG, which is the
ultimate holding company of the Company, China Paper Industry is
a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules. Further details of the First Sale Contract are set out in the
Company's announcements dated 17 November 2017.

On 28 November 2017, Chengtong Energy entered into a sale
contract (the "Second Sale Contract”) with China Paper
Industry for the further sale of 10,000 tons of thermal coal on terms
substantially similar to those of the First Sale Contract. Under the
Second Sale Contract, Chengtong Energy agreed to sell, and China
Paper Industry agreed to purchase, approximately 10,000 tons of
thermal coal at the total basic price in the range from RMB7,550,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,833,500) to RMB7,650,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,950,500), depending on the period
of the maximum tenure of the bank acceptance draft provided by
China Paper Industry to Chengtong Energy on settlement and subject
to any adjustment to the final settlement price pursuant to the
Second Sale Contract. Further details of the Second Sale Contract are
set out in the Company's announcements dated 28 November 2017.

(3)

(4)
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The Directors confirm that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in notes 42(a) and 42(d) to the financial statements fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirm that the Company has, where applicable, complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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The Directors confirm that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in notes 42(b) and 42(c) to the financial statements do not fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, (i) no contract of significance was entered into by,
and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) no
contract of significance in relation to provision of services by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group was entered into and/or
subsisted during the Year.

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH COVENANTS
RELATING TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF
THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 23 March 2017, the Company, as borrower, entered into a facility
agreement (“Facility Agreement”) with a licensed bank in Hong
Kong in respect of a revolving loan facility granted to the Company up
to a principal amount of HK$200 million (“Commitment”). Save as
otherwise provided in the Facility Agreement, all outstanding principal
of the loan granted thereunder and the interest accrued thereon would
become due and payable on the date falling three years from the date of
the Facility Agreement. Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, the Company
has undertaken that it shall, amongst other matters, ensure that there shall
be no concentrative or dilutive corporate event or circumstance (including
subdivision, consolidation or re-classification of the Company's shares,
bonus or rights issue but excluding any cash dividends) which will directly
or indirectly result in CCHG, which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company, (a) holding less than 40% of the Company's shares after such
event, or (b) ceasing to be the single largest shareholder of the Company
or ceasing to have the management control on the Company (“Control
Event”). Upon the occurrence of a Control Event or if, at any time, there
exist an event or circumstance that can result or has already resulted in a
Control Event, the bank may immediately cancel the Commitment, and all
loans together with accrued interest and all other amounts accrued under
the Facility Agreement and other related finance documents may become
immediately due and payable by the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, based
on information that was publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company had
maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results and its assets and liabilities for the Year
and the past four financial years is set out on pages 183 to 184 of this
annual report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year have
been audited by BDO Limited.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to

re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Yuan Shaoli
Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 March 2018
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

E5E - +852 2218 8288
18K : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA CHENGTONG DEVELOPMENT
GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Chengtong
Development Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group"”) set out on pages 80 to 180, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (“the Code"”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

For theYear Ended 31 December 2017 | iZ =2 —+t&+=-A=+—H
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Valuation of investment properties

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on note 4.4.

Management estimated the fair value of the Group's investment properties
to be HK$63,816,000 as at 31 December 2017 with a fair value gain for the
year ended 31 December 2017 of HK$100,000 recorded in the consolidated
income statement. Independent external valuations were obtained in order
to support management’s estimates.

Valuations of the Group's investment properties are based on income
approach and dependent on certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgement, including reversionary yield potential of the
property units, expected vacancy rates and the discount rates used.
Valuation techniques have been substantially the same as 31 December
2016.

Our response

Our procedures in relation to management's valuation of investment
properties included:

o evaluation of the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

o assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness of the
key assumptions based on our knowledge of the property industry;
and

o checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the input
data used and determination of fair value.

We assessed the key assumptions against the available evidence. The fair
market rents were assessed by recent renewals of rental agreements,
expected vacancy rate and reversionary yield potential of the property units.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the

other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors of the Company in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lui Chi Kin

Practising Certificate Number: P06162

Hong Kong, 2 March 2018
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?R/'F = LI& m
2017 2016
—=—tfF —E—REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiaE BT BEF T
Turnover - 10 6 1,353,119 716,559
Cost of sales FHERA (1,227,387) (584,246)
Gross profit EF 125,732 132,313
Other income HapUg A 7 54,833 98,491
Selling expenses SHEER (14,591) (12,320)
Administrative expenses THREA (99,420) (86,328)
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment KEME 2 NTE
properties Wz (E518) 17 100 (80)
Fair value (loss)/gain on held-for-trading #{EE HFE 52 A A
securities (FEa) W (106) 45
Finance costs BhE AR AN 8 (12,948) (32,843)
Profit before income tax BRFR{S A2 53,600 99,278
Income tax expense FiS R 9 (30,049) (31,908)
Profit for the year FRRF 10 23,551 67,370
Profit for the year attributable to: E{YFERRF :
Owners of the Company ViN/NGIE 2 =N 23,363 63,804
Non-controlling interests JEIEAS RS 188 3,566
23,551 67,370
Earnings per share BEREH 13
— Basic — &R HK 0.40 centi#fll HK1.10 centsi#1ll
- Diluted — HK 0.40 centi#{l HK1.10 centsi&ll

2017 Annual Report £E#HE
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2017 2016
—Z—tF ZE—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BY¥TT BT
Profit for the year FERRF 23,551 67,370
Other comprehensive income Htt2mA
Items that may be reclassified HEnEmoEsER
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIER :
Exchange differences arising NE 25 EEEER
on translation to presentation ERER
currency 179,072 (152,205)
Net change in fair value of available- AHEESREEZ AT
for-sale financial assets B EFE (41,470) 9,894
Transfer to profit or loss upon HEAHREESREER
disposal of available-for-sale WHi8
financial assets 483 -
Total comprehensive income for FRZ2EAEE
the year 161,636 (74,941)
Total comprehensive income EBE2m A :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARHEA A 151,541 (69,300)
Non-controlling interests FEERR M 10,095 (5,641)
161,636 (74,941)
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2017 2016
—=—tF —E—REF
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
B 5T BY¥TT JBMFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HEERER
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMKRE 15 202,715 158,713
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS AR E TR 16 196,781 188,949
Investment properties LEMHE 17 63,816 58,934
Deposits paid [RENE & 19 4,966 37,027
Loans receivable R E SR 24 383,902 353,654
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESmEE 28 5,246 =
857,426 797,277
Current assets mENEE
Properties held for sale FrEHE Y% 20 251,688 159,716
Properties under development BREPYE 20 109,824 241,042
Properties held for development FHEERYIZE 21 296,196 276,450
Inventories FE 22 4,281 6,145
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMERGRIE 23 129,040 97,879
Loans receivable U E R 24 358,359 309,545
Amount due from a non-controlling JE U — R FfY B A B — & FEIZE A%
shareholder of a subsidiary R R FRIE 25 18,000 21,318
Loan to a related party BT —BEESTHER 26 - 36,823
Prepaid land lease payments FafT A E R 16 5,665 5,287
Entrusted loan receivables R ZTE R 27 - 7,840
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 28 700,231 513,130
Held-for-trading securities HIEEEF S 29 1,173 1,279
Short-term investments AR E 30 - 13,440
Taxation recoverable AT U [B1 75 T8 3,004 =
Pledged bank deposits EEBIRITIER 32 4,006 1,640
Deposits in other financial institution A E A S BB TT X 31 86,200 428,186
Bank balances and cash RITEFERES 32 749,708 929,903
2,717,375 3,049,623
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H M FERFRIA 33 156,869 127,834
Deposits received from sale of HEMEZEBIES
properties 128,921 72,920
Taxation payable FERIHLIE 5,929 3,148
Bank borrowings RITIEE 34 214,400 77,280
Unsecured other loan IR E M B R 35 600 600
Corporate bonds NaEESH 37 - 667,219
506,719 949,001
Net current assets REEESRE 2,210,656 2,100,622
Total assets less current HWEERRDAER
liabilities 3,068,082 2,897,899

2017 Annual Report FE$Rs%
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE MR R

2017 2016
—E2—+tF —ET—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiaE B¥TT BEF T
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIERE 36 81,635 73,088
81,635 73,088
Net assets HESE 2,986,447 2,824,811
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of ZFXFHEEAEBGZES
the Company
Share capital %N 38 2,185,876 2,185,876
Reserves R 652,738 501,197
2,838,614 2,687,073
Non-controlling interests FEIRBRIER 147,833 137,738
Total equity HEs 2,986,447 2,824,811

The consolidated financial statements on pages 80 to 180 were approved F80E Z£180B MG BBEER —ZE—N\E

w

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 2 March 2018 andare = H - HfREE @i E NISERET  WHIATE

signed on its behalf by: EREREFTEEFE
Yuan Shaoli Zhang Bin
Rig#" IRAR
Director Director
EE EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-.R/\Iﬁlﬁlﬂb%’%E

2017 2016
—tF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Cash flows from operating activities EZEHELEZRE&RE
Profit before income tax M B 1555 Bia Al 53,600 99,278
Adjustments for: BATIEE F% -
Interest income B WA (50,334) (60,958)
Interest income from entrusted loan EWEFAEZZF B UA
receivables (537) (2,461)
Interest expense F BRI 12,948 32,843
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREETE
equipment 14,371 12,654
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FEAT -t A0 & R 5
payments 5,429 5,823
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment WEMEZ NTE
properties (&), A (100) 80
Fair value loss/(gain) on held-for-trading ﬁﬂfﬁaﬁﬁz NS
securities a8, (Wes 106 (45)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant HEnEE . Jﬁ.ﬁ%&gﬁﬁz
and equipment (Uzs),/ BB (155) 4
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HERREESHEEY
financial assets &8 483 -
Written off of property, plant and Y - R MR R
equipment 380 -
Reversal of write-down of inventories B BT EMUR - (530)
Reversal of other payables [0 & At FE A F00E (1,629) =
Written off of prepayments and other FE 208 R E A R 208
receivable R 4,464 276
Operating profit before working KRB EZTCEHHESE
capital changes BT 39,026 86,664
Decrease/(increase) in properties under BRAMERD,(EI)
development 5,047 (149,782)
Decrease in properties held for sale EHIEEEMER D 77,886 148,700
Decrease in inventories FERD 2,208 17,086
Increase in trade and other receivables E 5 I Eoh pE W RRIBE AN (25,697) (25,898)
Increase in loans receivable U E FRIE AN (30,370) (275,478)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R H 0 FE T FRIEE N 15,770 30,310
Increase in deposits received from sale of  HEWZE 7 B Uiz e 10
properties 48,676 23,777
Cash generated from/(used in) BERKEEE (FRA)Z
operations & 132,546 (144,621)
PRC enterprise income tax paid BX 2R BREAMEH (23,507) (25,655)
PRC land appreciation tax paid B X2 R IEER (3,783) (2,148)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EETHEE (FRA)Z
operating activities R& R 105,256 (172,424)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2017 | §#Z =% —

tE+=A=+—8

2017 2016
—=—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT BEF T
Cash flows from investing activities REETHEEZRA&RE
Interest received SIS 52,385 59,733
Interest received from entrusted loan EH&ZJ'E%Z;%E ZEIES)
receivables 545 2,692
Purchase of available-for-sale financial BEAHLESHEE
assets (509,849) (248,625)
Purchase of short-term investments BRGNS - (224,640)
Settlement of available-for-sale financial LENHHECHEE
assets 296,924 140,400
Settlement of short-term investments HEEDERE 13,800 226,980
Decrease in entrusted loan receivables EWETERUR D 8,050 49,725
Repayment from a related party KE—REERZER 37,950 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment FEEWE « BE L& (2,845) (2,514)
Purchase of investment property BEREYME (544) -
Purchase of investment property under BERETHREDE
construction - (4,159)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BERREMSE
plant and equipment FIE 252 7
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, H&Z%%% B E MR AR
plant and equipment R"E (4,759) -
Decrease in structured bank deposits %ﬁ%’!ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁiQ\ - 167,790
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits 2 I FRER 1 TIF K
(3Em), R (2,155) &7
Increase in short-term time deposits with ~ Z|H B BB =1AA BN —F
maturity beyond three months but within A2 55 HA TE HRTF SR8 1N
one year (12,000) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from BETE(RA) EBEZ
investing activities ReRaE (122,246) 167,486
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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2017 2016
—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BY¥TT BT
Cash flows from financing activities RE EFHEEZR&RE
Interest paid EFE (16,925) (33,675)
New bank loans raised MEEZRITER 200,000 77,280
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (65,550) =
Shares purchased for share award scheme Ek{’ﬁﬁ%@]ﬁiﬂﬁﬁkﬁ’\]% n - (4,495)
Repayment of corporate bonds BEQRES (678,000) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from METE(RA) EBEZ
financing activities ReRaE (560,475) 39,110
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HRERREEEY
cash equivalents (WD) 1BnPE (577,465) 34,172
Cash and cash equivalents REPZHRERELEED
at beginning of year 1,358,089 1,403,868
Effect of foreign exchange rate IEEEEEE
changes 43,284 (79,951)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZBAERELEED
at end of year 823,908 1,358,089
Analysis of cash and cash BReRBEER/MAH :
equivalents:
Bank balances and cash as presented in the 4G&MBEIAAREY] 2
consolidated statement of financial position #R7T74517 RIE & 749,708 929,903
Deposits in other financial institution REM & BT 86,200 428,186
Less: Short-term time deposits with B BHABA=EAER—FRZ
maturity beyond three months EHTEHES (WIC%Z(a)(m))
but within one year (note 32(a)(iii)) (12,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents RERZBAERELEEY
at end of year 823,908 1,358,089
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL

China Chengtong Development Group Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office and its principal place of business is Suite 6406,
64/F., Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in investment holdings, property development, property
investment, finance leasing, bulk commodity trading and hotel and
marine travelling services.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). As at
31 December 2017, the Company's immediate holding company is
World Gain Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and the directors of the Company consider the Group's
ultimate holding company to be China Chengtong Holdings Group
Limited ("CCHG"), a company incorporated in the PRC.

In prior years, the Company regarded Renminbi ("“RMB"’) as its
functional currency. During the year, the directors of the Company
have re-evaluated the underlying investment and financing activities
and strategy of the Company and these activities have increasingly
placed greater reliance on Hong Kong dollars ("“HK$"”). As such,
during the year ended 31 December 2017, the directors of the
Company have determined that the functional currency of the
Company be changed from RMB to HKS$. The change in the functional
currency of the Company has been accounted for prospectively
from the date of change in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“"HKAS") 21 “The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates"”. On the date of change in functional currency, all items were
translated into HK$ at the exchange rate on that date.

The consolidated financial statements continues to be presented
in HK$ as the directors consider that HK$ is the appropriate
presentation currency since the Company is incorporated in Hong
Kong with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time

the following new standards, amendments and interpretations

(“the new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are relevant

to and effective for the Group’s financial statements for the

annual period beginning on 1 January 2017:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2014-2016

Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the amendments
has no material impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 - Disclosure Initiative
The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in

liabilities arising from financing activities.

The adoption of the amendments has led to additional
disclosure presented in note 32(b).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The following new / revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment
Transactions'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Amendments to HKFRS 15  Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to

HKFRS 15)

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration’

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

HKFRS 16 Leases?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

8 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments
continue to be permitted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new/revised HKFRSs is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which are likely to have
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the business
model test) and that have contractual terms that give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if the objective of
the entity’s business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities
may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect their
risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, where
the amount of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of the liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

Application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets.
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For theYear Ended 31 December 2017 | iZ =2 —+t&+=-A=+—H

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”)
(Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Group has assessed that its financial assets currently
measured at amortised cost and FVTPL will continue with their
respective classification and measurements upon the adoption
of HKFRS 9.

The Group's available-for-sale investments, currently stated
at fair value or cost less impairment, will be designated as
FVTOCI. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until the Group performs a detailed
review.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS 39,
except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a financial
liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes
of that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in other
comprehensive income (without reclassification to profit or
loss). The Group currently does not have any financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL and therefore this new requirement will
not have any impact on the Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model.
Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment loss
is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure either a 12-month expected credit loss or a lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on the asset and the facts
and circumstances. While the Group has not yet undertaken a
detailed assessment of how its impairment provisions would
be affected by the new model, the Group expects that the
application of the expected credit loss model may result in
earlier recognition of credit losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected
to change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the year of the
adoption of the new standard.
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BF 755 SR AR B

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: |dentify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation

Step b5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”)
(Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the contract.
HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being transferred over
time:

(@ when the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity's
performance as the entity performs;

(b)  when the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c)  when the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into
any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a
single point in time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators that
will be considered in determining when the transfer of control
occurs. The Group is in process of assessing the impact on
the timing of revenue recognition on the consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price for
the time value of money when a contract contains a significant
financing component, regardless of whether the payments
from customers are received significantly in advance or in
arrears. The Group currently offers different payment plans
to customers, which may have to adjust the transaction price
for revenue recognition when significant financial component
exists.

The directors of the Company are currently performing a more
detailed assessment on the impact of this new standard on the
Group and are not in a position to quantify the financial impact
to the Group at this stage.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and presents
them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use
asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two
types of leases differently.

As set out in note 41, the total operating lease commitment
of the Group in respect of rented premises as at 31 December
2017 amounted to HK$13,098,000. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 16 would not
result in significant impact on the Group's result but expect that
the above operating lease commitments will be recognised as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the Group's financial
statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of other new or revised standards would not result in
significant impact on amounts reported in the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “"HKFRS") issued by the HKICPA and the
provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which
concern the preparation of financial statements. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies set out in note 4 below.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Group. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at
fair value unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of
12 months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest and
the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

2017 Annual Report FEER4%

4. FESHBE(E)

4.1 EBAHRESREEE(E)

URE I B A Rl s E IR A B A A
R o WEBA T RFTERERE « PIE
TRERAEE(ERKET)ETZ
AER KBS R 2 A TEEES -
Frie 8 2 IR & B S P HE B (B R
TE2RWBEAZATEFE - K&
% 55 B P M 8 00 2 B b LA MR
BAFEEHRE  MAEEZWE
HEBAN R HER - AERE IR
R GEFRN T EIIZEG R
B BRI EEFET AN EE
=R INN NI 2 Sp e 22
PRBER M ER o PR E Mo FEE R AR R A
HBIARTFERE - BB BRE
AR EE At ERERIERSN - PTE
2 BRI A SIER S o

FRUREE 5 15 T 2 RS AREIR
BB B HR 2 AT ERER - HigENR(E
ZHABERARRARHER (&R
AUREE B EIHE 1218 A ) RATERS 5 78
RUKEE BH 2 A FEZ A R 5
REER - PEREENRBEZHA
REZFBEEMERZAEGRIBEEF
MR o

AEERMBARERNEHT Y
HAEEHHBEARREEGE &
1ERERER S A - REBENED K
TR A o A AR T (B AR S B LA IR BR 1R
ERMBRRINERESES - I
BREEHLHBESRED M RE KK
EBRAFERETAERE N ERT
HERA BN ARAIHHEB A ©

BAREEKREM B A RGN - b
EMESGNREBRAATRMEZZE
(I BERREZATFEEENRE
a2 NP EZBRE i) &M B
RAZEBE(BRAE) KA BRI
FEER S 2 BERREE - AERE
EHERARRENBRARAH S
B ARSAMER - BNEREEESR
BEESKREE -



For theYear Ended 31 December 2017 | iZ =2 —+t&+=-A=+—H

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.1

4.2

4.3

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’'s share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Foreign currencies translation

Transactions entered into by the consolidated entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency’) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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BF 755 SR AR B

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.3

4.4

Foreign currencies translation (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the rates approximating to those
ruling when the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling
at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed
to minority interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term monetary items
forming part of the Group’s net investment in the foreign
operation concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating
to that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to
profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the foreign exchange reserve.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.4

4.5

Investment properties (Continued)

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated
at fair value, unless it is still in the course of construction or
development at the reporting date and its fair value cannot be
reliably determined at that time. Fair value is determined by
independent professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised at the
reporting date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value or
the sale of an investment property are included in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction-in-
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of property, plant
and equipment includes its purchase price and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as expense in profit or loss during the year in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation on the following property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

4%

10% to 33%
6.67% to 33%
5%

6.67% to 20%

Buildings

Furniture and equipment

Motor vehicles and vessels

Facilities

Marine travel facilities and equipment

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

The gain or loss arising from retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and is recognised in the profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.5

4.6

4.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Construction in progress is
reclassified to appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when the construction works complete and ready
for use.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent up-front payments to
acquire the land use rights/leasehold land. They are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease/right of use except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived by the Group from use of the land.

The determination if an arrangement is or contains a lease and
the lease is an operating lease is detailed in note 4.14.

Properties held for sale, properties held for
development and properties under development

Properties held for sale, properties held for development and
properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost comprises the cost of the land
together with direct costs attributable to the development of
the properties and borrowing costs capitalised during the period
of development.

Properties held for development represented properties which
has not yet commenced development and mainly comprises of
leasehold land before commencement of construction.

Properties held under development for future sale in the
ordinary course of business are included in current assets
and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises the acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses and an appropriate proportion of overheads. On
completion, the properties are transferred to properties held for
sale.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs of completion and
estimated selling expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8

4.9

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is determined using first-in first-out method,
weighted average and actual cost basis. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows
presentation, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
banks and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

4.10 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item that can be settled
net in cash or another financial instrument, or by exchanging
financial instruments, are accounted for as if the contracts were
financial instruments, with the exception of contracts that were
entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the
receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the
entity’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which the
asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and all
other financial assets are initially measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. A regular way
purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments or financial
guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated
as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis;
(i) the assets are part of a group of financial assets which
is managed and its performance evaluated on a fair value
basis according to a documented management strategy;
or (iii) the financial asset contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They arise principally through the provision
of goods and services to customers (trade debtors), and
also incorporate other types of contractual monetary
asset. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not included in
other categories of financial assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments,
which are recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

- granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an equity instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of financial asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for the
relevant financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in
fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment carried at cost,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss is not
reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

(iv)

(v)

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, accrued liabilities, corporate bonds and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset
or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Company are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual right to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

4.11 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied.

- the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

- the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

For contracts to buy or sell non-financial items which was
accounted for as if the contracts were financial instruments
(except for contracts that were entered into and continue to be
held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial
item in accordance with the entity’s expected purchase, sale
or usage requirements), the net income from the contracts is
recognised as revenue.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised upon delivery of properties to the
purchasers pursuant to the sales agreements. Deposits
received from the purchasers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. FESHBE(E)

4.11 WARR(E)

4.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from
properties lent under operating leases, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the leases.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Revenue from hotel is recognised upon the provision of the
accommodation services. Revenue from food and beverage
sales and other ancillary services are recognised upon the sales
of goods and provision of services respectively.

Interest income (as the case may be, including the handling
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate)
from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest income from
a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

4.12 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income
earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

4.13 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.13 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount
is when an investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption
is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of these investment properties at their carrying amounts
at the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net
if, and only if,

(@)  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. FESHBE(E)

413 FifsR (&)

4.13 Income taxes (Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

AEERERATERLFEESE
EFIAE EERERIARE ¢

(a)  the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current (a) ZERBMEBRBIBAITRER LA

tax assets against current tax liabilities; and 15BN AR IR B E B BRI IR B
B - &

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities (b) FEILEHRBEERRLFIEEE
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation EERE RSB A T E
authority on either: A —IBFT BRI FT SR
(i)  the same taxable entity; or (i) [FA—IEERHEE K
(i) different taxable entities which intend either (i)  EFFEINSERAKEM (M

to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a TEHREEBHE ARG

net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the 7B 3 U [B] KR8 Y I RE R

liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in HABHEE) ANFHEE

which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities A4 E A HE m pER=R gl

or assets are expected to be settled or recovered. EEIRBEHEEER
£ B i 0 R 7] B SR B
TE o

4.14 Leasing 4.14

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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The Group as lessor FEEESHBEA
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or LR 2 B WA TIZIEREALNF
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. B E S AR ERPER o REE K

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased

ZHHREMNRPIE L 2 V)T B
ARMREEEEZREE  YAE

asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis HOEARHBNER AR °
over the lease term.
The Group as lessee FEEFEBZABEA

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.15 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which will probably result
in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

4.16 Employee benefits

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme and contributions to the
scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’
relevant income.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. FESHBE(E)

4.17 UBRBSERZARE S

4.17 Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions BREREELIRGEBERS IFXS
Share options granted to employees RFIES 2 EARE

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (the employee share-based
compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the employee share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to accumulated
profits.

Share award scheme

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in the employee share-based
compensation reserves in equity, over the period in which
the granted conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
income statement expense or credit for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee
benefits expense.

When the share award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.18 Impairment losses of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments
and interests in subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life or
those not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they are impaired. All other non-financial assets are tested
for impairment whenever there are indications that the asset's
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is
allocated to those cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.

4.19 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group's business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group's major products and service lines.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. FESHBE(E)

4.19 Segment reporting (Continued) 4.19 EREE)

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

- Property development — holding land for property
development projects;

- Property investment — providing rental services and
holding investment properties for appreciation;

- Finance leasing — providing finance leasing services
including arranging sale and leaseback transactions;

- Bulk commodity trade — trading of coal, steel and non-
ferrous metal; and

- Hotel and marine travelling services — providing hotel and
marine travelling services.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the products and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.
Segment results represent the results from each segment
without allocation of administrative expenses and finance
costs incurred and other income generated by head office
and the inactive subsidiaries, directors’ emoluments and fair
value changes of investment properties and held-for-trading
securities. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

ek r=E =

4.19 Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets include all assets other than assets held
by head office and the inactive subsidiaries (mainly include
property, plant and equipment, other receivables and bank
balances and cash) and other unallocated assets that are not
directly attributable to reportable segments. Segment liabilities
exclude corporate bonds, borrowings and liabilities incurred by
head office and the inactive subsidiaries (mainly include other
payables, unsecured other loans and deferred tax liabilities) and
other unallocated liabilities that are not directly attributable to
reportable segments.

Segment assets of property investment segment include
investment properties but segment results exclude the related
fair value changes for the year.

Save as the aforementioned, no asymmetrical allocations have
been applied to reportable segments.

4.20 Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised
as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

4.21 Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company's parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 2R B

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.21 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
4.21 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
Such estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below:

5.1 Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates of market
condition. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of
the Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of
the current market conditions. Changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the Group's
investment properties and the corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

5.2

5.3

54

Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development

In determining whether allowances should be made for the
Group's properties under development, the Group takes
into consideration the current market environment and the
estimated market value less estimated costs to completion
of the properties. An allowance is made if the estimated
market value is less than the carrying amount. If the actual
net realisable value on properties under development is less
than expected as a result of change in market condition and/or
significant variation in the budgeted development cost, material
provision for impairment losses may result.

Estimated net realisable value for properties held
for sale

Management exercises its judgement in making allowance for
properties held for sale with reference to the existing market
environment, the sales performance in previous years and
estimated market value of the properties, i.e. the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of selling. A specific
allowance for stocks of completed properties is made based
on the estimation of net realisable value on the completed
properties if the estimated market value of the property is lower
than its carrying amount. If the actual net realisable values of
the stocks of completed properties are less than expected as
a result of change in market condition, material provision for
impairment losses may result.

Estimated impairment of loans and receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, an impairment loss
may arise.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale
investments

The Group review available-for-sale investments at the end of
each reporting period to assess whether they are impaired. The
Group records impairment charges on available-for-sale equity
investments when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below their cost. The determination of
what is significant or prolonged requires judgement. In making
this judgement, the management evaluate, among other
factors, historical share price movements and the duration and
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost.

Estimated provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories, the Group would evaluate
ageing analysis of inventories and compare the carrying
value of inventories to their respective net realisable value. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in determining
such allowance. If conditions which have impact on the
net realisable value of inventories deteriorate, additional
allowances may be required.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
and amortises the prepaid land lease payments in accordance
with the accounting policies stated in notes 4.5 and 4.6. The
estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets.

Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting date.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
estimates the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and determines a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5.
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

HEFAMERZ EERR(E)

5.9 Fair value measurement 5.9 AFEE

A number of assets included in the Group's financial
statements require measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair
value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's financial and
non-financial assets utilises market observable inputs and
data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different levels based on
how observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

BOHAREEHBEROEES R
RAFEHBR, LB -

AEBZzERIFEREEZNFE
SHERAREATS A RERBUR
RIBA BRI R RO RE 2 T BERI2
B AREEAFEAEZREND
RTASFE(AFESER])

Level 1 valuations: Quoted prices in active markets for —#H&FHE - MEREIEERERMS
identical items (unadjusted); B AEIR (CREH
)
Level 2 valuations: Observable direct or indirect inputs ZHREHE - BR—REABE 2N
other than Level 1 inputs; HESEE I ERE
NC
Level 3 valuations: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived =AREHE - DAERE AR

from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures a number of items at fair value:

- investment properties (note 17)

- available-for-sale financial assets (note 28)

- held-for-trading securities (note 29)

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value

measurement of the items above, please refer to the
respective notes.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
who are the chief operating decision makers for the purpose of
resources allocation and assessment of performance, is the financial
information of the Group as a whole as reported under HKFRSs.
The Group's chief operating decision makers have identified the
reportable segments of the Group as follows:

(1) Property development — holding land for property development
projects

(2)  Property investment — providing rental services and holding
investment properties for appreciation

(3)  Finance leasing — providing finance leasing services including
arranging sale and leaseback transactions

(4)  Bulk commodity trade — trading of coal, steel and non-ferrous
metal

(5)  Hotel and marine travelling services — providing hotel and
marine travelling services

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Property Property
development investment

MERRE

MERR

HK$'000 HK$°000
EBFT ERFT

SEEH

AMARRATER(NETELERRE)E
HBAEDBEER R EERRANERTIRE
BEMBREEAMERAEE LS
BEM - AT AAEEETELERRED
Bl ARERENE -

(1) VEBR-FEIHMENERREAR
Rz

@ WA - REAERE R RE
MR A

@) BMEHE-REHBMEEERK (B
ZHERLERS)

@4 KREEAmBES KK MkAes
BES

(6) JEEME LIRERY — REVEES
i AR

SR ERER

AT R/ARERRED RS D 2 W R E
BT

BE-_Z—tF+-A=+—HLFE

Hotel and
Bulk marine
Finance commodity travelling
leasing trade services Total
BEM
MEHAR AFERRS BLEEERE st

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
ERFT ERTFT EBFT EBFT

Turnover as presented in consolidated  &RA YR 257 L %5

income statement 109,212 2,412 52,693 1,145,872 42,930 1,353,119
Results 2
Segment results (note (a)) PEEE(Ht) 24,253 2,151 44,630 9,523 (4,804) 75,753
Fair value gain on investment BEME 7 N EYE WD)

properties (note (b)) 100
Fair value loss on held-for-trading BEEBERSZ ATEEE

securities (106)
Interest income from entrusted loan ~ FEKEFEFT 2 FEWA

receivables 537
Unallocated finance costs KOBRERA (9,459)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBLERL (56,714)
Unallocated corporate income ROBAEKRA 43,489
Profit before income tax BRENS R A A 53,600

I
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 2R B

6. SWMRHE(E)

SHBRREE(E)

BE_2—tF+-A=+—HLFEE)

Hotel and
Bulk marine
Property Property Finance commodity travelling
development investment leasing trade services Unallocated Total
BEEM
PMERE NERE MEEE ATRARES BLiBRE AHE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BBTT BETT BT BBTT BETT BETT
Notes: Hat -
(@ Amounts included in the (&) PEEECIHAZEE
measure of segment
results
Interest income from deposits, T3 RARARAH
short-term investments HESREE 2 FIS
and available-for-sale /0N
financial assets 669 - 4,804 298 962 42,277 49,010
Depreciation e (78) - (127) (24) (9,785) (4,357) (14,371)
Finance costs RBEMA - - (3,454) (35) - (9,459) (12,948)
Gain/(loss) on disposal HEME - BERF
of property, plant and 2/ (B18)
equipment - - - - 159 (4) 155
Written off of prepayments BN BT - = = = (4,464) = (4,464)
Reversal of other payables BEIE R FIE - - - - 1,629 - 1,629
(b)  Amounts regularly provided b) THREBEEREH
to the chief operating RENEE ST HE
decision maker for the s
analysis of the segment’s
performance
Fair value gain on investment REME 2 NHEKE
properties - 100 - - - - 100

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEREEEERAT 123



124

For theYear Ended 31 December 2017 | #Z =2 —tF&+=-HA=+—H

Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 R 2R B

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZEEHGE)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PERERERGE)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B@EFE_Z—X"F+-_A=+—HLEE
Hotel and
Bulk marine
Property Property Finance commodity travelling
development investment leasing trade services Total
JBER
MEER MERE RERE AFERES BLKERS 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETFT BEFT JBEFT BEFT BEFT
Turnover as presented in consolidated  fRANEER N2 € £%5
income statement 103,598 2,157 51,503 511,849 47,452 716,559
Results o
Segment results (Note (a)) PEEE M) 19,177 1,972 47,806 16,012 7,452 92,419
Fair value loss on investment BBME AFEBE(HFDb)
properties (Note (b)) (80)
Fair value gain on held-for-trading HEBBEEH 2 ATERE
securities 45
Interest income from entrusted loan ~ EWEEEFR 2 FIBHA
receivables 2,461
Unallocated finance costs AOBERERA (32,819)
Unallocated corporate expenses APROERY (52,937)
Unallocated corporate income AABREEMA 90,189
Profit before income tax BRETSHE AT A 99,278
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BF 755 R 2R B

6. SWRE(E)
SEBBRRM| ()

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Continued) BE_E—X"FE+-A=1+—HILEFEE(E)

Hotel and
Bulk marine
Property Property Finance  commodity travelling
development  investment leasing trade services  Unallocated Total
BIERE
MEER MERE MEME ATERES  LHRERE AOE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BRI BETFT JBEFT BEFT
Notes: Hat -
(@ Amounts included in the (&) PEEECIHAZEE
measure of segment
results
Interest income from deposits, T3 RARARAH
short-term investments HESREE 2 FIS
and available-for-sale WA
financial assets 235 - 2,427 315 561 53,060 56,598
Depreciation nE (228) - (115) (3) (8,200) (4,108) (12,654)
Finance costs BB A - - (24) - - (32,819) (32,843)
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BERERE
plant and equipment ZEE - - = - (4) = (4)
Reversal of write- down of BEFERR
inventories - - - - 530 = 530
Written off of other H At IE 5
receivables - - - - - (276) (276)
(b)  Amounts regularly provided b) THREFBEERRH
to the chief operating RENEE ST A
decision maker for the rEZEH
analysis of the segment’s
performance
Fair value loss on investment REMEZ ATHEESR
properties - (80) - - - - (80)

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEREEEERAT 125



For theYear Ended 31 December 2017 | #Z = —t&+=-A=+—H

Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Unallocated corporate income mainly comprised interest income
from deposits, short-term investments and available-for-sale financial
assets and interest income from a related party which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating segment.

Unallocated corporate expenses mainly comprised staff costs and
legal and professional expenses of the Group's headquarter which
are not directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment.

Segment results do not include income tax expense, while segment
liabilities include the current and deferred taxation except for those
recognised by the head office and the inactive subsidiaries.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies described in note 4. Segment
results represent the results from each segment without allocation of
administrative expenses and finance costs incurred and other income
generated by head office and the inactive subsidiaries, directors’
emoluments and fair value changes of investment properties and
held-for-trading securities. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. SBWEHE)
Segment assets and liabilities PHREERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by NTAREBNEERBERRE P EZ
reportable segment: DT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYTTT BEFT
Segment assets DEEE
Property development LI 802,344 792,620
Property investment* LES e - 63,816 58,934
Finance leasing BMERE 825,502 791,155
Bulk commodity trade ArEmE S 142,818 79,096
Hotel and marine travelling services B G R AR RS 253,779 203,595
Total segment assets DI EEREE 2,088,259 1,925,400
Unallocated RAE
— prepaid land lease payments —FEf A E R K 157,589 150,395
— entrusted loan receivables —EWETER - 7,840
— available-for-sale financial assets — At ESmEE 645,477 513,130
— deposits in other financial institution —REAM S BT R 78,566 428,186
— bank balances and cash —RITEFRIAE 505,126 716,744
— other unallocated assets —HtRDREE 99,784 105,205
Consolidated assets HEBE 3,574,801 3,846,900
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BY¥TT BT T
Segment liabilities NEAE
Property development MR 194,302 159,521
Property investment MEIRE 8,651 8,050
Finance leasing mMEHE 18,965 80,020
Bulk commodity trade ARREmES 69,959 17,031
Hotel and marine travelling services B G T8 AR AR TS 42,180 33,606
Total segment liabilities DIEEEEE 334,057 298,228
Bank borrowings RITEE 200,000 =
Corporate bonds RNEESH - 667,219
Other unallocated liabilities HEtARDE AR 54,297 56,642
Consolidated liabilities SHEBE 588,354 1,022,089
B Segment assets of property investment segment include investment * MEREDENHSEEERRBREYE M
properties but segment results exclude the related fair value gain of DEEERNTBIEFANREBE AT ERESE
HK$100,000 (2016: fair value loss of HK$80,000) for the year. 100,0007C (= — R F : A FEBRBE
80,0007T) °
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZEEHGE)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHRERARGE)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating BEESBERARRSEROEER

resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than held- o GRIEEEEES BRETER - &
for-trading securities, entrusted loan receivables and assets WMERERTERNB AR ZEESIN
held by head office and the inactive subsidiaries; and FBEEHPEEMENE &

e all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than . MRABIESR ~ LRI EE AR E
corporate bonds, borrowings and liabilities incurred by head RRAIZEERABZIN - IBAES
office and the inactive subsidiaries. AREREDE -

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE_ZT—tF+-A=1+—RHLEFE

Amounts included in the measure of segment assets: AN EESECSE

Hotel and

Bulk marine

Property Finance commodity travelling
development leasing trade services Unallocated Total

BEHN
MERE MEHEE AFERES BLBERE APE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
AT ABTT BETT BETT BETT AT

Additions to non-current assets RE FERBEE

(other than financial assets) (SRIARIN) 24 35 99 45,460 634 46,796
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. SBWEHE)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHERERARGE)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZT—"F+-A=T—HLLFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment assets: FFANKEEGE S
Hotel and
Bulk marine
Property Property Finance commodity travelling
development investment leasing trade services Unallocated Total
JBIEF
MELR MERE BERE ATERES BLRERG vl @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Additions to non-current assets RE FEREEE

(other than financial assets) (BRI AR 1 4,159 65 17 2,327 9% 6,673
Other segment information Htt 3 FEH
The Group's significant operations, external customers and non- REBEEZZE—tFR=ZF—~"F+=A
current assets (other than financial assets) during the years ended 31 =t BLFE AKEZEZEL I
December 2017 and 2016 were mainly located in Hong Kong (place BEFLIERDEE(EREERIIN EB
of domicile) and the PRC. Geographical information of revenue from URBEB(ARRRFZMHT) KPR - REHN
external customers is based on the location of the customers and the BEPzRm s mEERDBERE AT
geographical location of the non-current assets (other than financial WE  FERBEE(EREERIN) 2
assets) is based on the physical location of the assets. BUEDNREBZEEECERMEME °
Revenue from external Non-current assets
customers (other than financial assets)
REHBEEZ LR ERBDEE(SRBEERS)
2017 2016 2017 2016
—Z—tF e AN —Z—tF ZERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYTT BETFT BYTT BFT
Hong Kong BB - - 586 184
The PRC ==} 1,353,119 716,559 462,726 406,412
1,353,119 716,559 463,312 406,596
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

SBEH(E)

Other segment information (Continued) HthpFEHE(E)
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing UTABHEFEMANEBZZEEEEI0% A
over 10% of the total turnover of the Group are as follows: FHEFEERIZ UGS -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥® T BEFT
Customer A (note 2) REAMZE2) - 96,733
Customer B (note 3) BFEB(AF#3) 46,780 106,534
46,780 203,267
Notes: Bt -
1. No revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounted to 1. HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HILEFE I

10% or more of the Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2017.

2. This is a customer from bulk commodity trade business for the year ended 31
December 2016 and no revenue was contributed from this customer to the
total turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

8, This is a customer from bulk commodity trade business for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016. Revenue from this customer was less than
10% of the Group's turnover for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. SBWEHE)
Turnover from major products and services TEERRRGHREEXR
2017 2016
—Z—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BY¥TT BT T
Sales of properties HEME 109,212 103,598
Rental income GiEE A ON 2,412 2,157
Interest income A BUA 43,688 43,777
Consultancy service income from RMEREZHZ
finance lease arrangements B REU A 9,005 7.726
Bulk commodity trade AEBmES 1,145,872 511,849
Hotel and marine travelling services B JE TG _E Rz AR TS 42,930 47,452
1,353,119 716,559
OTHER INCOME 7. HtkA
2017 2016
—=—+tF —ZT—X
HK$'000 HK$'000
BY¥TT BEFT
Interest income from: REATIEE ZFBUHA :
— deposits, short-term investments and ~ —773X ~ fSHIIRE &
available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 49,010 56,598
— entrusted loan receivables —EREFEER 537 2,461
— arelated party (note 26) ——HEER (K17726) 346 3,367
— a non-controlling shareholder of ——fAREBARN—%&

a subsidiary (note 25) IR R (FT5E25) 978 993
Reversal of other payables & o] & b FE 5 5108 1,629 -
Exchange gain, net PE H W) 58 = 33,362
Others Hitb 2,333 1,710

54,833 98,491
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERE
2017 2016
—E—t%F B B
HK$'000 HK$000
BE¥TIT BT
Interest on corporate bonds ANREHFZFE 14,333 42,019
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 7,385 24
21,718 42,043
Less: Amounts capitalised on properties i : ZEFR Y% 7 BIEER L
under development x| (8,770) (9,200)
12,948 32,843
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FriS#RBAX

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") and
Implementation Regulation, the PRC subsidiaries are subject to tax
rate of 25%. The current tax also comprised land appreciation tax
(“LAT") which is estimated in accordance with the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value, with
certain allowable deductions.

FEMEHRIIAMEFEANZ G ERT
SEAIE16.5% 2 FIEGHR ©

REPECEMESH(ERAAR])EN
CEMETOEERED - HEMEQRR
E7325% o AHRIAN B LB ED
([EHIBER|) o LA THIRIEHER
B BER K AR B P 2 SR RE 5T o L3
ENEREERIRERXBERE - B
BETAIHRIRR °

2017 2016
—Z2—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BY¥TT BT T
The taxation charge comprises: HIEL e
Current tax for the year: NEERIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBNIEH = -
PRC EIT SR 21,270 24,362
PRC LAT Fp B S (E T 5,781 4,423
27,051 28,785
(Over)/under-provision in prior years: BEFE (BREE)
BETR
PRC EIT Al SEFTIS TR (190) 126
26,861 28,911
Deferred taxation (note 36) EXERTIA (H17£36) 3,188 2,997
Income tax expense FRS RS2 30,049 31,908
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FRSIRBASZ (75)
0 R B R A 2 BT S BB R R A

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit at

applicable tax rates:

ZHERIAT

2017 2016
—=E—+tF —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE¥TT B F T
Profit before income tax R ETS A5 Al A 53,600 99,278
Tax calculated at PRC EIT rate of 25% B PRSI 25%
(2016: 25%) (ZZ—"F 1 26%):tE 2
TIE 13,400 24,820
Effect of different tax rates of group TEBR A B INEL A R ARE R A &
entities operating in jurisdictions ZEEER 2 TRBEREE
other than the PRC 1,370 (350)
PRC LAT AR B R (E R 5,781 4,423
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR AT B S 2 T 7%
for tax purposes 2 6,957 8,151
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBTWAZ RIS E
for tax purposes (5,811) (12,301)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERTIBE 1R 2 T i5 e & 6,313 4,021
Tax effect of temporary difference AERGRE =B IR E
not recognised (934) 1
Withholding tax for undistributed profits ~ FREIEB R Al Z KD ECHEFZ
of PRC subsidiaries TEMFL 3,163 3,017
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE (BREEE)
BETR (190) 126
Income tax expense FRS BRI 30,049 31,908
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Written off of property,
plant and equipment

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR . FAET
2017 2016
—Z—t% —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$000
BYTT B FoT
Profit for the year is arrived at after FREM B GEA) ¢
charging/(crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration Gl
— audit services — BT RS 1,070 980
— non-audit services — IERET RIS 220 310
1,290 1,290
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FEAS At AE S A R 8
payments 5,429 5,623
Depreciation of property, YWE  BMERREZITE
plant and equipment 14,442 12,765
Less: Amounts capitalised B BRAPYE BIEEAR(E
on properties under development x| (71) (111)
14,371 12,654
Minimum lease payments in respect MEWE z ZEEEMNK
of rented premises 3,929 2,619
Contributions to retirement RIS RFEEI R
benefits schemes (including (BREESEMS)
directors’ emoluments) 9,141 6,891
Staff costs (including directors’ EIRMNBIFEEEHE)
emoluments) 53,083 50,131
Total staff costs 8 TR A4t 62,224 57,022
Less: Amounts capitalised on properties 5 : BB Y% > B e
under development BNz &8 (1,969) (1,460)
60,255 55,662
Cost of inventories recognised BRERX ZTFERA
as expenses 1,207,683 576,814
Exchange loss/(gain), net P H B8R (M) F 58 1,450 (33,262)
Reversal of write-down of inventories* R 115 &MU * - (530)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant  HEEME REHE 2
and equipment (Wzs), /&8 (155) 4
Written off of prepayments and TERRIE R
other receivables H A R R TE 7 5 4,464 276

380 =

* Reversal of write-down of inventories was included in “cost of sales” on the
face of the consolidated income statement.
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

BF 755 R 2R B

11. EEREREEEH &

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=Ee
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 BIEEBEVEC2ZEEFB A AEN
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) and the F 383 IE R BB LB F622GE A 7
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of (WEEENZERDROIEE Z2ES
Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G) (the Regulation) are as TR -
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2017 Bz _Z—+H5+_-_A=+—HItF
=
Wang Lee Man
Yuan Hongxin Wang Zhang Chang Chun,
Shaoli (note (b)) Tianlin Bin Qing Tony He Jia Total
£33
REBE (MiEb) IXE iR ®E FE2 i & st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BBETT BBETT BRETT BRETT
Fees e 360 165 240 305 360 360 360 2,150
Salaries e 1,121 367 537 615 - - - 2,640
Performance-based ByEe
bonus (note(a)) (Hfsta)) - - - - - - - -
Contribution to retirement E(REFIETEl
benefits schemes HE 132 72 150 147 - - - 501
Total emoluments B 1,613 604 927 1,067 360 360 360 5,291
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MIANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

1. EEREREEEM: (/2)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EE=#M&(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_E—RNE+-A=+—8I1F
E

Lee Man

Yuan Wang Wang Zhang Chang Chun,
Shaoli  Hongxin Tianlin Bin Qing Tony He Jia Total
RIE THE TR% R BB ZER i st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
BEFT BEFrT BEFr BEFr BEFrT BEFr BEFr  BETr

Fees we 360 360 240 240 360 360 360 2,280

Salaries ¢ 1,121 867 1,074 269 = = = 3,331

Performance-based bonus ~ &##%4

(note (a)) (Hizta)) 345 249 83 41 - - - 718

Contribution to retirement  E{REFIE 2]

benefits schemes fis 124 142 137 133 - - - 536

Total emoluments ams 1,950 1,618 1,634 683 360 360 360 6,865

Notes: HiaE -

(a) The performance-based bonus is determined according to the (a) BHRE HEFME B ERIBEAQA
performance of each individual director of the Company for the EEZARHAFENEREE -
relevant years by the remuneration committee.

(b) Mr. Wang Hongxin has resigned as an executive director with effect (b) TRELECHIRTES =%
from 15 June 2017. —tFRNATRBBENR -

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) HERSHFEAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2016: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in (a) above. The emoluments
of the remaining two (2016: two) individuals were as follows:

EEBMARBHEFHALY - =4

ZE_AF:Z8) AAAAE
% - HBSHN EX@ERE - £HW
% (ZB-AFWE) ALZME
T

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$°000

BY¥TTT JBEMETF T

Salaries and other benefits e REAMER] 1,799 1,799

Performance-based bonus E e 460 277
Contributions to retirement RIREFFHEI K

benefits schemes 36 36

2,295 2,112
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 11. EERSRZHEEBHE (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EEEEFMAL(E)
The emoluments of two (2016: two) of the highest paid MG (—E—NF : MB)RSHMA
individuals were within the following bands: TZMENFTHHER
Number of individuals
AEHH
2017 2016
—=—tfF —E—RF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 BETTE
75 #1,000,0007T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7B #£1,000,0017TE
75 151,500,0007T 1 1
2 2
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no REBE_Z—tFER_F—RF+=
remunerations were paid by the Group to the directors or the A=+—BLFE  AEEWERET
two (2016: two) highest paid employees as an inducement to AIESFIME(ZTE—RF : MB)&
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of SFEEINEMME - (EREEHE
office. DI &2 B sk A E AN AR £ B B 2 82
B SRERHBER A -
None of the directors waived any emoluments for both years. RREFESREESHEEMNNS -
(c) Senior management’s emolument (c) ERETEEHS
The remuneration paid to the senior management (other than REA AEREEEZ NN
the directors as disclosed in note 11(a) above) for the year fell (B EXCHiRE11(@)BBRMESINN T
within the following bands: AR
Number of individuals
ABEH
2017 2016
=+t ZE—RF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 BT LR
75 #1,000,0007T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1.500,000 7B#1,000,0017TE
75#1,500,0007C 1 -
1 1
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12.

13.

14.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend in respect of the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016 was proposed during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, nor has any dividend proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
earnings for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$23,363,000 (2016: HK$63,804,000) and on the weighted average
number of 5,796,985,000 (2016: 5,800,208,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased by the
Company for share award scheme.

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during
both years and hence the diluted earnings per share is the same as
basic earnings per share.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes. The Group participates in the MPF Scheme
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of trustees. Subject to a capped
amount, the Group contributes 5% of the relevant income for each
employee to the MPF Scheme, the amount of which is matched with
that contributed by employees. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
vest immediately.

The employees of the Company’'s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
10% to 20% (2016: 10% to 20%) of payroll costs, subject to a capped
amount for each employee to the retirement benefits scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, contributions totalling of
HK$9,141,000 (2016: HK$6,891,000) were charged to the profit or
loss for the year.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - BRE KRR
Marine
travel
Furniture Motor facilities
and vehicles and Construction-

Buildings  equipment and vessels  equipment in-progress Total
& Lk

BF  RERRE  RERRM  REREG ERIR #i

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BETT BRETT BETT BRTT BRTT BRETT

Cost 773

At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F+-A=1+-H 166,424 8511 35,535 4,019 1,946 216,435
Currency realignment L (9,787) (442) (2,486) (294) (114) (13,123)
Additions NE = 349 132 1,433 - 2514
Disposals e - (108) (6) - - (114)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—"E+ZA=1-H 156,637 8310 33,775 5,158 1832 205,712
Currency realignment AR 11,185 523 4,725 447 49 16,929
Additions NE - 882 43464 1,906 - 46,252
Disposals irt:3 - (17 (1.942) - - (2,059)
Transfer [ - - 1,501 - (1,501) -
Written-off HH = = - - (380) (380)
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+-A=1+-H 167,822 9,598 81,523 7511 - 266,454
Accumulated depreciation RiHiE

At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F+-A=1+-H 15,339 1322 12,161 2,554 - 37,316
Currency realignment Bl (1,182) (229) (1,519) (109) - (3,039)
Provided for the year EREE 6,550 1,034 4910 m - 12,765
Eliminated on disposals HEREH = (102) (1) - - (109)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"E+-A=T-H 20,707 8,025 15,551 2,716 - 46,999
Currency realignment AR 1,759 196 2330 (26) = 4,260
Provided for the year ENEE 6,438 888 6,342 774 - 14,44
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - (112) (1,850) - - (1.962)
At 31 December 2017 R=E—+&+-A=1+—-H 28,904 8,997 22,373 3465 - 63,739
Carrying amounts FEE

At 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+ZA=1-H 138918 601 59,150 4,046 - 202,715
At 31 December 2016 RZE—ETZA=1-R 135,930 285 18,224 2442 1,832 158,713
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. At B FH
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
HK$°'000 HK$000
BETiT BT
Leasehold land in PRC: FREZHEE LM
- Medium-term leases —FRHAFEAY 202,446 194,236
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT B FT
Opening net carrying amount FHERMESFE 194,236 211,993
Amortisation charge for the year FERHET H (5,429) (5,523)
Currency realignment B 13,639 (12,234)
Closing net carrying amount FRIREFE 202,446 194,236
Analysed for reporting purposes as: DITIERHAE :
Current assets MEEE 5,665 5,287
Non-current assets FEREEE 196,781 188,949
202,446 194,236
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group's prepaid land lease R-ZEBE—+FER _T—RNEFE+-_A=1+—
payments represent up-front payments to acquire interest in the B ANEE 2 8 LN /I B AL
usage of land situated in the PRC, which are held under medium-term AR T H R FE 2 - Wik H
leases. MEFFH ©
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BF 755 R 2R B

17. BEY%E

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°'000 HK$000
BETiT B FoT
At fair value BAFE

At 1 January ®n—A—H 58,934 58,468
Currency realignment B Re 4,238 (3,613)

Gain/(loss) on change in fair value RIBERAERZ
recognised in profit or loss NFEZEUES (EE) 100 (80)
Additions NE 544 4,159
At 31 December RNt+—_A=+—8H 63,816 58,934

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above
represents properties situated in the PRC held under medium-term
leases.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31 December
2017 and 2016 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by Jones Lang Lasalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited, the independent qualified professional valuers.
Jones Lang Lasalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited
are members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and have
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's investment
properties measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technigue as follows:

17. BBYR(E)

LFEFR

TREINFEHMRIZEREEEEFERN
AEBRENENRFE  BRERTEY
BHREENB 1R AT EA B ERHN =R
RNHEFR - RFEFERBENERES
ZHERMTEANBASBOATBREL
NREZMEFEWT

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017

AZS—tFE+ZAZT—HZOFEHE

Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
®
—Z—t5
+=ZR=+-H
£ gt et ZOFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYTTT BYTTT BETTT EETIT
Recurring fair value BEROTFEGE
measurement
Investment properties: REMZE -
Property units — the PRC MEEN —HE - - 63,816 63,816
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016
R-E—R"F+-A=+—RAzAVE:HE
Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
i
“TNF
+ZRA=t-H
£ £=1 2= 2RPHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFTT BEFT BEFT
Recurring fair value EENATEME
measurement
Investment properties: REME
Property units — the PRC MEEN —F - - 58,934 58,934

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BEME(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) LTFEER(E)
The fair value of investment properties is a Level 3 recurring fair value KEMEZ AN TFEBE=RLTHEAFE
measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value e o FHHEFERA qzﬁﬁ%%ﬁZ;TEEZZDT 3
balance is provided below:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
B¥® T BT T
Opening balance FUIRB(E=H
(Level 3 recurring fair value) KEMENFEE) 58,934 58,468
Currency realignment “"ﬁ%;ﬂﬁ 4,238 (3,613)
Fair value change N EE 100 (80)
Additions NE 544 4,159
Closing balance FRBE(E=H
(Level 3 recurring fair value) KEMENTEE) 63,816 58,934
Change in unrealised gains/(losses) for the AR +ZA=+— EI%ﬁ
year included in profit or loss for assets é?%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]i RRE
held at 31 December =5/ (R &) 100 (80)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement -
Property units in the PRC

Fair value is determined by applying the income approach for
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and based on the
estimated rental value of the properties. The valuation takes into
account the expected vacancy rates and rental growth rates of
the respective properties which are supported by the terms of the
existing lease, other contracts and external evidence such as current
market rents of similar properties.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement -
Property units in the PRC (Continued)

Significant unobservable inputs

17. {RMECH)
AFESH(E)

FHEZMAFEHEZEH - RPEY
PEEE(E)

Relationship of unobservable
Range inputs to fair value

R B AR B A BRI L

BBRT ARG AEE #E DNFEZBEEFE
Term yield 3.0% -3.5% The higher the monthly rent,
per annum  reversionary yield, expected
(2016: 3.0% —  vacancy rate and discount rate,
3.5% per annum)  the Iower the fair value
F AR =X ﬂiSW&SWBHﬁ BREEHmE  BHEE
TR &ﬁ'fﬁri‘{ - BIIA EP@’E’HAE
S43.0% - 3.5%)
Adjustment on term yield 0.5% (2016: 0.5%)
FHIE R 2 SRR 0.5%
(ZZ—RF :05%)

Expected vacancy rate

7.0% -9.0%

(2016: 7.0% —9.0%)

AR E K

Discount rate

7.0% - 9.0%
ZE—RF

7.0% -9.0%)

3.5% -4.0%
per annum

(2016: 3.5% —

4.0% per annum)

IELES

BEI5% -4.0%

ZE—RF

FE3.5%-4.0%)

There has been no change in the valuation technique used in the prior
year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.
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18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
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18. B ARIZiER

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBATFERT :
Particulars of Equity
Place of paid-up capital/ interest
incorporation/ issued share owned by
Company operations capital the Company Principal activities
SR, EHEEE b /N
KT SRR ERTHRFHE BBl TEEE
%
Directly held:
BHERH:
Galactic Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Investment holding
TR EBRAR BB PERE2 T BEER
Indirectly held:
HERS -
FHWEEE AR AT The PRC RMB50,000,000 100 Property development
H AR #50,000,0007T YR
WBALEEFRERRAA) The PRC RMB 150,000,001 66.67 Property development
H AR ¥150,000,0017C YR
BAEMEHEGRAR** The PRC US$40,000,000 100 Finance leasing
B 40,000,000% 7T MEHE
HBREREHAR AR The PRC RMB100,000,000 100 Bulk commaodity trade
R AR #100,000,0007C (2016: Investment holding)
ArEmESH(ZE—RF !
HEER)
HBELRERABR QA The PRC RMB50,000,000 51 Bulk commodity trade
B AE#50,000,0007T ArEmES
VB 7 OF B2 B K th SRR The PRC RMB96,000,000 100 Provision of marine
BRAF** H AR#96,000,0007T travelling services
REDE EIREEARTS
RS REE The PRC RMB8,000,000 100 Hotel business
BRAT** H AR #8,000,0007T BE 7
HORERRERBE The PRC RMB12,000,000 100 Hotel management
BRATR H AR #12,000,0007T HIEER
& Established in the PRC as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise @ RAPBEKY 2RI BEE

** A limited liability company established in the PRC

> —RRRBKIZZBRAR

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEHBEZEREEEERAT

145



For theYear Ended 31 December 2017 | #Z =2 —tF&+=-HA=+—H

Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and
liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 or at any time during the respective year.

The following table lists out the information relating to @A L&
BERZEAR AR and FAEERERABR AT, the subsidiaries of the
Company which have material non-controlling interests (“NCI1”). The
summarised financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

18. RIMBATIZHE (&)

ERIHARREERRI B ELAEH
FRAEBRTRAEBARBOHEEREE
ZARRMBERF - ARREEEZBER
TRPTAR - LS M B AR 2515 -

RZZE—tFR_EFE—ARF+=_A=1+—
BN & ERNEREER - KB A A%k
BEMERFES

TRINLBEARERGAENIFERER
([JeiEmadEs )N BARBEANEEE
R AR AR RHBERERER AN
B e UT 2 2B ERMER/RE
Al A B IE 85 A 2 2R -

HEXKEBEMARARAF HBRFERAERAT
2017 2016 2017 2016
—=—+tF —T—RF —Z2—+tF TR
HK$°'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
B¥TT BT T B¥TIT B F T
As at 31 December R+=-—B=+—H
NCI percentage FEIERR R B L 33.33% 33.33% 49.00% 49.00%
Current assets RENEE 451,111 419,749 141,797 79,070
Non-current assets FEREEE 213 254 105 26
Current liabilities mEaE (96,133) (81,571) (80,072) (26,471)
Non-current liabilities FEREBAE - = = -
Net assets BEFE 355,191 338,432 61,830 52,625
Carrying amount of NCI FEPEAR R R AR T (E 118,385 112,799 30,297 25,786
For the year ended g8E+-_A=+—H
31 December ILSEE
Turnover ) - - 684,775 511,849
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (BE) %A (7,107) (6,332) 5,218 11,585
Total comprehensive income — 2EUW A 4258 16,757 (27,589) 9,204 7,253
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI /A ZE JEfEpRiERS 2
(E518) R (2,369) (2,111) 2,557 5,677
For the year ended B8E+-A=+—H
31 December ILEE
Cash flows from LEFHEE RS
operating activities mE (923) 7,730 33,316 (23,015)
Cash flows from KEETHELEZIRE
investing activities mE 5,607 = (99) (16)
Cash flows from BMERSELEZES
financing activities mE - - (35) =
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BERA GRHE)
pex-c] 4,684 7,730 33,182 (23,031)
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BF 755 R 2R B

19. Eff#E&

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°'000 HK$'000
BETT B FoT
Deposits paid for purchase of property, TEBEYE  RENERE
plant and equipment B z&e 4,966 37,027
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE/PROPERTIES 20. HEHEDE REDYME

UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties held under development comprise leasehold land and
certain construction costs in the PRC under medium-term lease for
commercial use and long lease for residential use. The amount is
expected to be recovered within the Group's operating cycle, thus, it
is classified as current assets.

Upon completion of construction works, completed properties under
development will be transferred to properties held for sale.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, carrying amount of
HK$147,243,000 was transferred from properties under development
to properties held for sale (2016: HK$75,791,000).

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

The properties held for development mainly comprises leasehold
land in the PRC under medium-term and long leases without
commencement of construction works. The amount is expected
to be recovered within the normal operating cycle and therefore
classified as current assets.

21.

BRTVEZEEREBEAETHBOR
FEAZERHEORTEFENEE L
KETRERAE - ZHRBEFHRARF]
REBIAKE - B RREEE

BRIRBTIR  TINBERPYELS
AFHEHEDE ©

REE-_Z—+tE+-_A=+—HI%
E - BREE A 1147,243,0007T I E
MEEABIEHEDE(ZT— R F : B
75,791,0007T) °

HERRME

FIERRMEIZEEREPRHBHON
PEEE - ARG INEAE LM - %
PR BN —REEBRHAWKE - Ait
FIRRENEE

INVENTORIES 22. 8
2017 2016
—=—tfF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TiT B F T
Coal 879 - 2,080
Merchandises and consumables Bk EER 4,281 4,065
4,281 6,145
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23. BH R RMEIRIF

2017 2016

—Z2—+tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BRFIT BT T

Trade and bills receivables (note a) B SR IER 20,659 63,682

FEURERIE (Hiata)

Prepayments to suppliers A e TR T RIE 71,493 251

Other prepayments and deposits H b FEARIE Rig® 7,147 11,940

Other receivables H oAb 0E 29,741 22,006

Total trade and other receivables B REMEWFIEAET 129,040 97,879
Notes: it

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, trade receivables mainly arose from
bulk commodity trading. There is a 0 day to 45 days credit period granted
to certain customers (2016: 30 days to 45 days) of bulk commodity trading
business.

Bills receivable were due within 1 year (2016: nil) from the date of issuance.

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers according to
industry practice together with consideration of their creditability and
repayment history. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

(a) RZF—+tFER=F—A"F+=-A=1+—
B BEKAEIEZEREATARES -
AEEGTETATERESEBTFORE
45K ZBRERER(=Z — /<4 : 30KE45K) ©

R RE B ETHSET —FRIH(=F
—NEE ) o

REE-RBETEENIREREFPZEE
NEBEFREE TEPRIRY - AEBERE
BREMFIARFRBES - SREEEED
HEHRIREITER

RBERREBERAH 2R E HRKKR
RN 2 BRI AT o

2017 2016

—2—+t5F —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$'000

E¥TFiT BT

Within 90 days 90K 16,999 63,682
91 - 120 days 91RE120K 3,660 -
20,659 63,682
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. B RAEMBERRE(E)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) s (48)
(@) (Continued) (@) (%)
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables presented that are neither AR AER S L RRE S B 5 W ERIE
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: MEWERZRROITAT
2017 2016
—2—+tF —T—RF
HK$°'000 HK$000
BE¥TTT JBEFT
Neither past due nor impaired M ARBEASORE 20,659 63,676
Less than one month past due wE DR —1{E A = -
One to three months past due BH—E=={EA = 6
20,659 63,682
As at 31 December 2017, none of the trade receivable are past due at R-ZT—+t&+-_A=+—8 HEZ5E
the reporting date. As at 31 December 2016, among the Group's trade WHBERZHRBEH - R=ZZ— X F+=
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$6,000 R=1+—8  AEE 2B HERFIALEHE
which were past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not ERE2HRA D8 H 2 BREEAEE6,0007T
provided for impairment loss as the directors of the Company are of the view ZEWFIE - AR ARAESTRAZERER
that such receivables can be fully recovered. The Group does not hold any I A REU B - BN 5 [ N R B R 1R
collateral over these balances. HITEE - AEBEWER UL S ERFEA R
ARG o
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has written off (b) HE-T—+tF+-A=+—HILFE &K
prepayments of HK$4,464,000 (2016: written off other receivables of SEEEHE —FE/EKRD A TERNKIBEE
HK$276,000) which are considered as uncollectable. 4,464,0007C (=T —7<F : Lt E ALK

8% #276,0007T) °
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24. LOANS RECEIVABLE

25.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 9 (2016: 9) sale and
leaseback agreements pursuant to which the customers (the
“lessees”) sold their equipment and facilities to the Group and
leased back the equipment and facilities with the lease period
of 3 years (2016: from 2.5 years to 3 years) from the date of
inception. In addition, the ownership of leased assets will be
transferred to the lessees at a purchase option of RMB1 upon the
settlement of the receivable and the interest accrued under the
sale and leaseback arrangements. The lessees retain control of
the equipment and facilities before and after entering into the sale
and leaseback arrangements which do not therefore constitute a
lease for accounting purposes. Rather, the arrangements have been
accounted for as a secured loan in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

24. BB

R-ZZE—+E+-_A=+—HILEERXN -
REBMEZ TR (ZE—XRE : 9p)EE
O Bt RE(&BEF ] SER
EREEEETFTAEE IR EERZ
ARR=F(ZF—F: MFEF==F)HA
SO ZERELERE o I RE
BB LHEE T FEBGRIA K B B 45E
% BEARTUARBIT/ITEEERED
BRT  MEEEEMATA#ERE T AR
5o RN ZEEREALTHER% - A
F IR B R AR I HIRE - e R
EmMsX T EK—BEEE  MEBLTIHE
RIEEBSSHERFEI95 (SR T A : R
NEt2 |tEA—BERERIIEE -

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE¥TiT BT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: DNTER MR -
Current assets mENEE 358,359 309,545
Non-current assets EREBEE 383,902 353,654
742,261 663,199

As at 31 December 2017, effective interest rates ranged from
approximately 6.50% to 8.20% (2016: 6.50% to 10.87%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, no loans receivable have been
past due or impaired. The loans receivable under the sale and
leaseback arrangements are secured by the land and buildings,
leased equipment and facilities and the Group has obtained
guarantees provided by the controlling shareholders or related parties
of the lessees. The Group is not permitted to sell or re-pledge the
collateral in absence of default by the lessees. The lessees are
obliged to settle the amounts according to the terms set out in the
relevant contracts.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the fair value of loans receivable
approximates to its carrying amount.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount due from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is
unsecured, repayable on demand and bears interest at 5.70% (2016:
5.70%) per annum, which is 120% of the benchmark rate offered by
the People’s Bank of China. During the year, the Group has derived
interest income of HK$978,000 (2016: HK$993,000) from this non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary.
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A ERERHAFEREEEERS -
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26. LOAN TO A RELATED PARTY

27.

The Group has made a short-term loan to FEES (5£E) A a),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHG. The principal amount of
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,000,000) bore
interest at 10% per annum and secured by certain listed securities
investments held by #EE S (%) AF]. The loan has been
repaid together with the interest accrued thereon during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

ENTRUSTED LOAN RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2017, all entrusted loan receivables have been
repaid.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had entered into one entrusted
loan arrangement with customer through a licensed bank in the
PRC. All entrusted loan receivables carry fixed-rate interest and the
contractual maturity dates are within one year from the respective
date of borrowing.

Effective interest rates (which are equal to contractual interest rates)
of the Group's entrusted loan receivables is 8.5%.

As at 31 December 2016, no entrusted loan receivables have been
past due or impaired. The entrusted loan receivables are mainly
secured by land and buildings. The Group is not permitted to sell or
re-pledge the collateral in the absence of default by the entrusted loan
borrowers.

All the Group's entrusted loan receivables are denominated in RMB,
which is the functional currency of the respective group companies.
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M—E&RER R ZER

AEBEMBBIERZZENBE AR FTE
EE (KB RRLTH—SHHER - 2E
BERAR$ 5848 A R30,000,0007T (BBER
4978 #36,000,0007T ) + EF FE10% &f
B WAHEES (SE8)QARFFHHD

MESFEBER - ZZEREREEF
BERE8E—_Z—+F+-_A=+—HI1:
FEEE-

Bl RERR

R-ZE—+F+-A=+—H FMEENK
REESCEEE -

R-ZF-—RE+-_A=1t—8  *EEBE
RERBRERITEEPIL —BEEE
AR - FIERREEE TG RIREEHM
KR AHNIHREREEEE B
—FR-

AEEZERRETERZEREMEGRER
BRINE)/B5% °

RZZE—ARE+ZRA=+—H  WIEEK
RAEREBHIORE - REZEERET
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28. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

28. TJHESMEE

2017 2016
—E2—tf§ —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BMFT
Non-current; FERE :
Unlisted equity investments, VAR ZR A\ BR#93F AR AR
at cost (note (a)) RE (Mzt(a) 5,246 =
Current: TED
Listed debt investments, at fair value: UAFEARN EMERKRE
— Term note with interest of 8.125% —PRET N & B R R it
per annum, dual-listed in Singapore and TR E8.125% /Y
Ireland MERE 167,180 241,530
Listed equity investments, at fair value: AAFEARN EMRARE
Shares listed in Hong Kong MBS TR, 170,180 -
Fund investments, at fair value RAFEARNESKRE 41,271 =
Unlisted investments, at cost: ARRAABRRIELTIRE
— Investments with interest ranging from —NTFIRFEI3%ZE7.7%H]
3.3% t0 7.7% (2016 ranging from M ERE(ZE—AE:
3.9% t0 9.2%) per annum NFH2F3.9%%9.2%) 321,600 271,600
700,231 513,130

Notes: Mz
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired 14% equity (@) BE-T—+FF+-_A=+—HALFE ' &
interest of an unlisted entity operated in the PRC and is principally engaged SEKE -—BRPEZEEDN 3EJ:T§?T 2.
in research and development and manufacturing of high technology marine 14% 8% - EXEREMERBESRRE
tourism equipment for cash consideration of RMB4,372,000 (approximately LR - BERERARE4,372,0007T
HK$5,028,000). The Group intends to hold this investment for long-term (#)/75%5,028,0007T) * ANEBEEF A ILIE
capital appreciation and had no intention to dispose of the investment in the REERBERNGERS -  BEENIEHE
near future. EZIERE °
() Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the following (b) AHHESRMEEN T EMHE
currencies:
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BYTT BHETFT
United States Dollars ("USD") ES 208,451 241,530
RMB ARE 326,846 271,600
HK$ B 170,180 -
705,477 513,130

None of the available-for-sale financial assets was either past due or
impaired as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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30.

31.
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HELD-FOR-TRADING SECURITIES

BF 755 R 2R B

29. BFEEES

2017 2016
—e—t% e
HK$'000 HK$°000
BY¥TiT BEMF T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, WAFERESETZ
at fair value REANFE 2 1,173 1,279
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 30. FEHIR S

As at 31 December 2017, all the short-term investments were
redeemed.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group purchased
short-term investments from major banks in the PRC.

The short-term investments as at 31 December 2016 was subject to
maturity of 2 months. The return from these short-term investments
was approximately 2.6% per annum. The accrued and unpaid interest

R-T—+HE+-_A=+—08 AL
RERC EED -

BE-T-AF+-A=+—BLERE
AEBit BEBRITBAGHRE -

RZZE—AFTA=+—HHNEHEE
ZHRAMER  ZERENLDROLSE
F2.6% ° Bt RARNFBERRRI TR B

was received upon redemption of the investment from the banks. BRFUWER - RAREERE #ﬁ%,ﬁﬂﬂig
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying value of R E M BREEEE A EEE

short-term investments approximates their fair value at the end of the

reporting period.

DEPOSITS IN OTHER FINANCIAL 31. Ht EMRISER
INSTITUTION

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company entered REBEE-_ZE—RHF+-_A=+—H8BI*F

into the financial services agreement with China Chengtong Finance B ARRHEBEMEEREERR ([
Corporation Ltd. (“Chengtong Finance"”), a wholly-owned BB HBEERz22EWBAR)E

subsidiary of CCHG, pursuant to which Chengtong Finance agreed
to provide the Group with a range of financial services, including
the deposit services, up to 31 December 2017. The interest rates
payable by Chengtong Finance to the Group for any deposits made
with Chengtong Finance shall (i) be 20%-50% higher than the
deposit interest rate prescribed by the The People’s Bank of China for
deposits with the same term and of the same type; (ii) not be lower
than the interest rates payable by the major commercial banks in the
PRC for deposits with the same term and of the same type; and (iii)
not be lower than the interest rates offered by Chengtong Finance to
any third party for deposits with the same term and of the same type.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has had current deposits of
HK$86,200,000 (2016: HK$428,186,000) with Chengtong Finance
with interest ranged from 0.42% to 1.62% (2016: 0.42% to 0.53%)
per annum.

FIRE RS W - Bt BB ERER
AEERE-RISrRS @ 2EFRR
¥ EBEEZE—tF+_A=+—805A
1F ° mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁm$%
B R ERANRRBHEARBEITH —
mmmm%@&ﬁwﬁ RT3 ﬂft@
20%-50% 1T (i) MR = B rgiR
ﬁ%mﬁ%m&ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁiﬁmﬂ$'
R (i) B 7S 585 288 B 765 gk A [R) B BR S JE AL Y
TFREERSE =R FIE o

R-_F—tF+-_A=+—H K

ErmERBYBENERTRAAB
# 86,200,000 T ( = F — K& : B
428,186,0007T ) * F F & /1 J0.42% =

1.62%(=Z—7"%F : 0.42%=0.563%) °
The financial services agreement was renewed on 29 December & R 5 19 & —t%+—-A
2017 for a term commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December —+AhA8 Zgiﬁt EHH E —=—\F—A

2020. Details in relation to the renewed financial services agreement
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 December
2017.

—BARBRE_ZT_TF+_A=+—AR
k- FHEEEBMERG HHEFIFERN
ARRBMR-_ZE—tF+-_A-+1H
/NI
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32. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits

32. RITRERAKREENRITE

REEMBESAERTH

(a) BREFEHFRAGLREEBHBRITER

2017 2016
—E—+tf —E—

HK$'000 HK$000

BWTIT BT

Bank balances and cash HBITEERRES

Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHEES 749,708 929,903

Pledged bank deposits BIEHRITER

Deposits pledged against banking MR TIEBAZRITRE

facilities granted to mortgagees B2 TR 1,321 1,640

Other secured deposits H A I IRFERR 2,685 -

4,006 1,640

() For the year ended 31 December 2017, bank balances i) BE_F—tHFf_A=1F—
deposited in Hong Kong banks carry interest ranged HIEFE  REARITZR
from 0.01% to 0.10% (2016: from 0.01% to 0.10%) per THEFHFEFNEN F0.01%
annum. 2010%(ZE—XEF : NF

0.01%%0.10%) °
Bank balances deposited in PRC banks carry interest at R B2 R{T 2 EFEPEA
benchmark rate offered by The People’s Bank of China. RIRITAM 2 EER|ZRET S o

(i) Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits (i) AREZHEHERFMFD
held by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries amounting 2 /B %717,232,0007T (=&
to HK$717,232,000 (2016: HK$220,176,000) were — NG ¢ #220,176,0007T)
denominated in RMB and deposited with banks in the ZROEFEA S REERR
PRC, which are not a freely convertible currency in TEZRAAREESIE - WIFHN
the international market. The RMB exchange rate is RHEERT - EARBARR
determined by the Government of the PRC and the BEmSERLE AR Y
remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to EXAPBNEE - M
exchange restrictions imposed by the Government of the BIfE AR E 2 /B X BB
PRC. E .2 SN B Il AT AR R

(i) As at 31 December 2017, the Group had time deposits (i) RZTE—+F+_A=+—
of HK$12,000,000 (2016: nil), placed with banks with H ZXEBRRITEETEH
original maturity period of six months and earned interest 7 73K 8 % 12,000,000 L (= &
income at interest rate of 1.3% per annum. The entire —NEF) . REHERNE
amount of time deposits as of 31 December 2017 was H o WIRE R 3% FREVF 2
included in “bank balances and cash”. WA - EHEZEZT—+F+=H

—T-HzEHRERASRED
STATRITERKER]

(iv)  As required by the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource (iv) RETEETERRAE A
Bureau, certain property development companies of the SEETYWERRARANE
Group are required to place in designated bank accounts ERITE O1F A EREPTIS
the pre-sale proceeds of properties to finance the BVRIR - ES BRI Y X
construction of the related properties. The deposits can 59 o ZFRETREEER
only be used for purchases of construction materials and EMBENPEE L SR
payments of construction fees of the relevant property EREMEBR B EER
projects when approval from the PRC State-Owned B> E=RRBEMARITERE
Land and Resources Bureau is obtained. The directors RAEE —REEBE S
considered these bank deposits form part of the Group's 7S WEFA [RITER R
normal operating fund, which was included in “bank T IRIERBE KBRS EEYH
balances and cash”, and was presented as part of cash —HD IR -
and cash equivalents.

The cash deposited in designated bank accounts for RZF—LF+-A=+—
the aforementioned specific usage as at 31 December B EEERTEOFRIE
2017 was amounted to HK$33,421,000 (2016: S ERE2RE e REBE
HK$22,255,000). 33,421,000 ( = F — /R4 -
75%22,2565,0007T) °
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32. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND 32. fTREARFIERECENHETE
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER REHAMRSTERH(E)
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Other cash flow information (b) HttBE&RKEFH
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BREEHELNREYE
Bank
borrowings
and other loan Corporate
(notes 34 bonds
and 35) (note 37) Total
SMITHE
REMER LEES
(P E34%35) (Fft5%37) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2017 R=E—tF—H—H 77,880 667,219 745,099
Changes from financing cash flows:  RERBBH RSN
=3 :
Proceeds from new bank loans MIRITE RS RIE 200,000 - 200,000
Repayment of bank loans ERBIFITER (65,550) - (65,550)
Repayment of corporate bonds BENBES - (678,000) (678,000)
Interest paid EAFLE (7,385) (9,540) (16,925)
Total changes from financing REBRSRENEFEE
cash flows 127,065 (687,540) (560,475)
Exchange adjustments b 5 2,670 5,988 8,658
Other changes: Hib &g -
Interest expenses MERX 1,404 11,544 12,948
Capitalised borrowing costs BR{CEERAKA 5,981 2,789 8,770
Total other changes Hih sz 7,385 14,333 21,718
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+=A4
=+—H 215,000 - 215,000
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33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. HHREMEFRRA
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$000
BETiT BT
Trade payables (note (a)) B S ENRIE (M i (a) 14,941 22,252
Other payables and accruals H b {508 & e T FE 40,547 41,511
Advances received BEUE R 55,867 =
Accrual of construction costs JEEtTi28 A 45,514 64,071
156,869 127,834
Note: iz :
(a) The ageing analysis of the trade payables presented based on the invoice (a) RBERRERZAHER B ZEMNKE
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: ZEREROTAT :
2017 2016
—g—t% —TAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT JBEWFT
Within one year —FR 11,500 18,669
Over one year but less than two years Bl —FEDRRE 67 2,974
Over two years but less than three years BAMFREIR=F 3,374 609
14,941 22,252
34. BANK BORROWINGS 34 . HBITHE
2017 2016
—Z2—+tfF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE¥TiT BT
Unsecured bank borrowings EIEHBITEE
Short-term bank loans RERRITE R 214,400 77,280
The short-term bank loans were unsecured and repayable within one RHISRITERERE - B REHRE
year from the end of the reporting period. —F AR TEE
The effective interest rates of the bank loans ranged from 2.62% to R-ZZE—+tE+-_A=+—H " ZZRT
5.22% per annum at 31 December 2017 (2016: 3.91% to 4.79%). ERNEBREFEN F2.62%£522% °

(ZZ—R"F :391%E479%) °
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UNSECURED OTHER LOAN

Unsecured other loan from third parties is unsecured, repayable on
demand and interest-free.

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liabilities

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and movement

thereon during the current and prior year:

BF 755 R 2R B

35. EIEHHMER

F_NRHMZERREMERY SER
e BAREREERRE -

BT RIA
BERTR R

36.

RAFERNEFEELE ZERNRELEHREA
BEMEEHHIIMT

Revaluation
of prepaid
land lease Undistributed
payments profits of PRC
and properties subsidiaries* Total
FALHER  RENELE
HRRMEERE  kOENE* o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JEIF T JEIEF T BEFT
At 31 December 2015 R-E—AhEF
+=-BA=+—H 58,5678 16,030 74,608
(Credit)/charge to profit (Gt A)EzEmR B
or loss (note 9) Mk (H1229) (20) 3,017 2,997
Exchange differences PEH =58 (3,445) (1,072) (4,517)
At 31 December 2016 BRIE—RX
+=-A=+—H 55,113 17,975 73,088
Charge to profit Bz H 0Bk (K7729)
or loss (note 9) 25 3,163 3,188
Exchange differences PEH =% 3,938 1,421 5,359
At 31 December 2017 n_E—t%F
+=-A=+—H 59,076 22,559 81,635
o Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends @ BEFBECEMSEE BT N\E—A

declared in respect of profits earned by PRC entities to a non-PRC holding
company from 1 January 2008 onwards.
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36. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 36. BEREA(E)
Deferred tax assets BIERAEE
The Group has estimated unused tax losses not recognised in the AKEBANGEMBERERPER ZMGTE
consolidated financial statements as follows: FRAMIBEEHIINT
2017 2016
—Z—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BY¥TT BT
Estimated unused tax losses HErREAHIEEE 140,828 247,133
No deferred tax asset in respect of the abovementioned estimated ERARETRRABRER - R ER Ll
unused tax losses have been recognised due to unpredictability et RS EBRBEEERELEHREER
of future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised estimated E o AERGABAREEETBTE
unused tax losses are losses of approximately HK$67,133,000 (2016: 478 #67,133,0007L ( Z T — /N F : B
HK$38,717,000) that will expire on various dates within five years 38,717,0007T) #§ A ¥R & H HAEET A A
from the reporting dates. Other estimated unused tax losses may be B HEAZIAR - HAbfhat RE)ARIBEIE ]
carried forward indefinitely. MR ERAEE -
37. CORPORATE BONDS 37. AFRES
2017 2016
—Z—+tf —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$000
BY¥TT BT T

Corporate bonds NaElfESH

- 667,219

The corporate bonds were fixed rate bonds issued by the
Company (the “Bonds"”) on 9 May 2014 with a principal amount
of RMB600,000,000 and a fixed interest at 4.0% per annum. The
effective interest rate of the Bonds was approximately 6.11% per
annum. The Bonds matured on 9 May 2017 and were fully settled
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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38. SHARE CAPITAL

38. &

BF 755 R 2R B

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

EKERELF
2017 2016
—E2—+tF ZE—RF
Number of Number of
shares shares
B8 E R EE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T BT FhR BT
Issued and fully paid: BRITREHT
At 1 January and R—A—BK
31 December +=-—HA=+—8H 5,808,735 2,185,876 5,808,735 2,185,876

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME

(a)

Share option scheme

The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the
“"Scheme”) on 27 June 2013. The purpose of the Scheme
is to provide incentives or rewards to participants thereunder
for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any invested
entity.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include (a) any employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive director
but excluding any non-executive director of the Company) of,
or any individual for the time being seconded to work for the
Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity")
or any employee or officer of the controlling shareholder of the
Company; (b) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or any
Invested Entity; (c) any suppliers of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (d) any customer
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity
that provides research development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder
of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued or proposed to be issued by any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to the Group relating
to any area of business or business development of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and (h) any joint
venture or business partner of the Group who have contributed
or may contribute to the development and growth of the Group.
For the proposes of the Scheme, the offer may be made to any
company wholly owned by one or more eligible participants.
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date it was adopted and will end on 26
June 2023.

39. RERRIE AT B R B {7 B8 My &t &Y

(a)

TRz iR

ARRER=ZBE—=FA=1+H
Rinfsigst 21 ([htM)) - 5315 &
BB HBEHAEE LR 22 H
ER/SEAEEGRERRERE
=EBARBMBAREE R IR E
ERMEBEEZANER -

FENAERSEERR AR
B~ RSB EA KB QRS EA A
SEXERAEARENER([RE
KR DnEAREES (2RIFE &8
BARREAMITES - ETEEE
AFRITESR) REHEARS AR
A AEENEAMBARKIRER
BHALT AR FHERR R EMR
BEHSEAR  (DARF - MK
BRI IR E BN EFAIENT
ER(BREBUIFNITES) @ XK
B{ERK B AR AIRERRNE
MEY IR HER © (d)ARERE
MERERRNEANETS © (e)AAKME
HAEMIE B R IR AT B s el
SERNEFEARER  HAEERK
EfRE BB EMBRRIAKEIE
IR B R RSl AR 8 B RS BTt
FITHEMRFZNEAFEA ¢ (A
SEHAEBERIKB DA HEME
BEBARAEBEIRKHERERE
BERNOEAERE(EXHIFEER)K
BXRER - R(hAREERBRERK
RIEH BRI AIREEL AR A SE
ZEFEEREREERH - platEl
s AME—ERERERBEE
2EHENEM R RRHBAME - &
ZEERMN BRRER - BRHA/I0
FWHR T _=F A=+ <A4%
= o
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

An offer of the grant of an option under the Scheme (the
"Option”) may be accepted within 21 days from the date
of grant together with a remittance of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof. An Option may be exercised
during such period as the board of directors may in its absolute
discretion determine, save that such period shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant. The maximum number
of shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted by
the Group shall not exceed 30% of the share capital of the
Company in issue from time to time.

The subscription price for the shares on the exercise of the
Option shall be determined at the discretion of the board of
directors which shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company'’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares (note). Holding period
will be determined by directors upon granting.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no share
option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Scheme. There was no option outstanding as at 31 December
2017 and 2016.

Note: Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, which came into operation
on 3 March 2014, the shares of the Company have ceased to have
nominal value.

Share award scheme

The share award scheme (the "Expired Scheme") was
approved and adopted by the board of directors on 25 April
2012. The Expired Schemed had a term of five years from its
adoption date and has expired on 24 April 2017. On 24 April
2017, a total of 11,750,000 shares remain to be held by the
trustee for the purpose of the Expired Scheme.

In order to continue to provide a means to (i) recognise the
contributions by certain selected employees and to give
incentives to them for the continual operation and development
of the Group; and (ii) attract suitable personnel for the growth
and further development of the Group, the Company has
adopted a new share award scheme (the “New Scheme"”)
which became effective on 1 July 2017 (the "Effective
Date"). Subject to any early termination as may be determined
by the board of directors, the New Scheme remains valid and
effective for 5 years commencing from the Effective Date.
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39. MR BIR R IDSEMET R (E)

(a)

(b)

B at B ()

FTEIE TR R BB ([ REBRIE |) AT
REEE 2 B#E21 B AREZ R
BRAERER T NBB1ITEARE
BN R EBMESR - LM A
BEEonREBYRBERATEITFEE
fEHE - MEZ BTG BIBIR H A E10
& o FrAREEREE RAEET
Al A B AR R AT B B4R T if 18 R T (E
RR A IR BB A T 1R T R A 2 &
BTG R ABEBETSHRBA AR
TEFEITHE BT AN BRE30% ©

RITEBRER R NBBERHE
EEMBET  BTMFERTII=E
ZE=E (VAR RBRM R L ER
B R R E A MERTR K
B ()ARBRMHNEERLBR
BB ER S AER S E R
BRMHRFHRTHE © i) AR A]
Betn (Hrat) 2 A - EFHRIRER
EEHAHE -

REEZZE—+tFR T —RF+=
A=+—B1tFE  $EEREEZ
T8I - 17(F ~ BUHSKRRK -
RZE—tEFR_ZT—R"F+=A
=+—8 ' BEERRITEAIEARAE -

Bret - BEBER_T-NE=A=ZRERZIA
RS AREIRDNBABEEE
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

Share award scheme (Continued)

The board of directors or the trustee shall not make any further
award of shares to the selected employees which will result in
the total number of shares awarded by the board of directors
under the New Scheme exceeding 1% of the total ordinary
shares in the share capital of the Company as at the Effective
Date.

Upon the New Scheme becoming effective, the 11,750,000
shares held by the trustee under the Expired Scheme will
continue to be held by the trustee for the purpose of the New
Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no ordinary share
of the Company was purchased by the trustee for the purpose
of the Expired Scheme and the New Scheme and no award
of share was granted to the selected employees under the
Expired Scheme and the New Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, for the purpose
of the Expired Scheme, the trustee of the Expired Scheme
purchased a total of 7,670,000 existing shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of approximately
HK$4,495,000 (with transaction cost). No award of share was
granted to the selected employees under the Expired Scheme.

As at 31 December 2017, the trustee held 11,750,000 shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange (2016: 11,750,000) for the
purpose of the New Scheme.
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(b)
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40. RESERVES

THE GROUP

40. #fs

Details of changes in reserves accounts of the Group are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 84 and 85.

%M

AEBEFRRE B BEHNFE84K%E5H

2R HREEE -

THE COMPANY b. 3711
Available-
for-sale
Shares Employee financial
held for  share-hased assets Accumulated
share award compensation  revaluation Exchange (losses)/
scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BRMEMIE  URGRAE  TRHESR RHER)/
KEChi REMOKE REERRR ERGH Bil ait
(note (note) (note)
(i) if3) (i)
HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$:000
BETT BETT Vil Ao BETT BETT BETT
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F+ZA=+-H (1,999 702 (3492) 892 (4,426) (68,323)
Transactions with owners: HEEAIRS
Share purchased for share award scheme Bk EEEEENRG (4,495) - - - = (4,495)
Total transactions with owners HEEAIRHEE (4,495 = - - - (4,495)
Profit for the year Emaf] - - - - 119,824 119,824
Other comprehensive income: Et2ERA :
Exchange differences arising on translationto 7 E 25| &M EEMEN 24
presentation currency - - - (69,411) - (69,411)
Net change in fair value of availablefor-sale AHESRAE  ATEESTE
financial assets - - 9,894 - - 9,894
Total comprehensive income for the year EREERNEE - - 9,804 (69,411) 119,824 60,307
At 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+ZA=+-H (6,494) 702 6,402 (68,519) 65,398 (2,511)
Profit for the year il - - - - 31,003 31,003
Other comprehensive income: EtEERA :
Exchange differences arising on translationto ~~ E2J| ERELRMEL 2R
presentation currency - - - 28543 - 28543
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale MHEESREEY
financial assets NVEESTE - - (14,894) - - (14,894)
Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal of REETHEESHAERBRER
available-for-sale financial assets - - (483) - - (483)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENAES - - (15,377) 28543 31,003 44,169
At 31 December 2017 R-E—tE+ZA=+-H (6,494) 702 (8,975) (39,976) 96,401 41,658
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Notes to the Financial Statements

40. RESERVES (Continued)

41.

Note:

Shares held for share award scheme is comprised of the consideration paid for the
shares held for the share award scheme.

Employee share-based compensation reserve represents the cumulative expenses
recognised on the granting of share-based compensation to the employees over the
vesting period.

Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration and the carrying
amount of the net assets attributable to the additional of interests in subsidiaries
being acquired from non-controlling equity holders.

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising on translation
operation to presentation currency.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(a) Operating lease commitments as lessee
At 31 December 2017, the Group has commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as follows:

BF 755 R 2R B

40. K (&)

41.

Hret -

R SREY T I35 A 2 B B R s SR Eh R 8+
BZEMMAEKE -

NEH>NESMERHEENEBHRARREERT
MARRAD SN N & I R ) RETFI S ©

HAfFEEHRRE R B IR AR I B R RN
NERBRFEERAECHNER -

PE N R BIE R  E T E E LR A INESSE -

EEHEOARRE
(a) HEHRBAZEZHORRE

R-ZZE—+F+=-F=+—8 K&
EH T BHEEIE BEEEMET
A R R 48 S A0 40 R SR A AR 1 3o
T

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$000

BE¥TT BIEFT

Within one year —FR 5,043 2,913
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEEFRF

(BIEERME) 8,055 4,324

Over five years AF - 1,310

13,098 8,547

Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten
years (2016: one to ten years). None of these leases include
contingent rentals.

BHOBMEZEBNF—FE+F(=
T-RF: —FE2THF)  ZFHY
BAREHEEL
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BF 755 R 2R B

41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments as lessor

At 31 December 2017, the Group has contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease receivables:

41. EEENRE(E)

(b)

ESHBAZEERNHXIE

RZE—tF+=-—A=+—H £~&
BEEBEFFTL - REWZ RRKE
e :

2017 2016
—E—+tF VAN

HK$'000 HK$000

BE¥TT BEFT

Within one year —FR 2,829 2,274
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~ E_EFHF

(BEEEMF) 5,911 5,973

Qver five years RAFE 900 2,528

9,640 10,775

Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years.
(2016: one to ten years).

2017 Annual Report £E#HE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Transactions and balances with related parties

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
during the year, the Group had also entered into the following

42. REBEHEXS
(a)

BF 755 R 2R B

HRERZXHRER

BRARA TS RR AL BB PRI R 51
FA - AEBETFETSIRET ETTIA

significant transactions with the following related parties: TEARS :
Nature of
Name of related parties transactions/balances 2017 2016
REH BB x5 EaNE —E—+tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$000
BETIT BT
The wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the ultimate holding
company:
BHRERAFZZEMEATR :
HERS(KE)AF Interest income 346 3,367
FEMA
Other receivables 465 -
H A FEUCROR
Other payables - 3,897
E A FE AT RUIE
China Chengtong (Hong Kong) Asset  Consultancy service
Management Company Limited expenses - 200
HREE(EE) EEBRERAT waREE A
Chengtong Finance (note 317) Deposits 86,200 428,186
MBS (H7E31) R
Interest income 4,961 1,680
ST PN
Hainan Huandao Taide Hotel Property management
Property Management Co. Ltd expenses 553 559
BEEERBAEMETERRAR MEEREER
Other payables 949 1,301
e FRIE
China Paper Industry Investment Trade receivables 6,406 -
Company Limited H 5 W GRIE
HREIKEIRERR AR
Sale of coal 8,245 -
SHEE IR
Save as disclosed above, other balances with related parties br EXFTIEEEEIN - RS B

at the end of the respective reporting dates are set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position and notes 25 and

26.
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances with other government-
related entities

The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies
controlled by CCHG (CCHG and its subsidiaries are referred
to as the "CCHG Group"”) which is a stated-owned
enterprise under the direct supervision of the State Council
of the PRC. The directors of the Company consider that the
Company is ultimately controlled by the government of the
PRC and the Group operates in an economic environment
currently dominated by entities controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the PRC government
("government-related entities”).

Apart from transactions with CCHG Group, the Group has
transactions with other government-related entities including
but not limited to the finance lease arrangements.

Details of the transactions and balances with relevant
government-related entities are set out below:

42. AEREH(E)

(b)

HEHEMBFHERERZX ARG

AEBEBE S ATERBRERESE 2
B 1 5 305 1 P (Al s 22 Ml R Lt
BARATE [RERAEE | )E T —
BARREE 2 —#B{) » NRAAE
ERB  ARBARPBEBRTREE
#l - MASKE B A2 8RR L EIR
EXAPEBUTES - BAEHIAE
AFE7ER((RFHEMER]) X

FREFRIER Sz R 5N - AEE
BEEMBAARAERETRS &
RETRREERERSE -

SRR T RIE B R 2 R 5 A R
ZEBEIIIT

2017 2016
—Z—+tf —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BY¥TTT BEFT
Transactions with HEFRERRZIES :
government-related entities:
Interest income R BUA 43,688 43,777
Consultancy service income from R E L BERREA
finance lease arrangements BRASUZA 9,005 7,726

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including other purchases and operating expenses with other
government-related entities. In the opinion of the directors,
except for the transactions and balances disclosed above, other
transactions and balances are considered as individually and
collectively insignificant to the operation of the Group for both
years.

In addition, the Group has bank deposits, financial assets
investments, entrusted loan arrangements, corporate bonds
and other general banking facilities with certain banks and
financial institutions which are government-related entities in
its ordinary course of business. In view of the nature of those
banking transactions, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that separate disclosure would not be material to the
financial statements.
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

BF 755 R 2R B

42. AEREH(E)

The remunerations of key management personnel, which are (c) FAFXFEEBEABRES) 2 Mem
the directors during the year, were as follows: T
2017 2016
—Z=—+tF X

HK$’000 HK$'000
BY¥TT BT T
Short-term employee benefits HHEEEET 4,790 5,611
Bonus bt - 718
Post-employment benefits BERR B 2R 501 536
5,291 6,865

In March 2016, the Group entered into a guarantee agreement (d) RZZE—ARF=F AEEEAKAQFA

with China Chengtong Coal Investment Limited (“Chengtong
Coal”), a subsidiary of the ultimate holding company of the
Company. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group has provided
a guarantee by pledging its office premises with net book value
of approximately HK$50,812,000 (2016: HK$50,928,000) as at
31 December 2017 and issuing a guarantee letter to extent of
RMB53,540,000 (approximately HK$64,248,000) for a period
of three years (or such shorter period as may be approved
by the court). The Group also entered into a deed of counter-
indemnity (“Indemnity Deed") with China Chengtong Hong
Kong Company Limited (“CCHK"), an intermediate holding
company of the Company, pursuant to which CCHK agreed
to indemnify the Group in full for its liabilities and loss, if
any, which may arise from the above guarantee provided by
the Group. Further details of the guarantee agreement and
Indemnity Deed are disclosed in note 45(b).

Pursuant to the guarantee agreement, Chengtong Coal shall
pay an annual arrangement fee of 1% over the guarantee
amount to the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2017, the Group recognised guarantee income of HK$614,000
(2016:HK$361,000) to the profit or loss for the year, and
received HK$269,000 (2016: HK$250,000) of guarantee income
in advance from Chengtong Coal, which has been included in
other payables as at 31 December 2017.
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BT RRENERMEENEEREE
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43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. BFRABEER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group monitors capital on the basis on the total debt to total
assets ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total
assets. Total debt is calculated as bank borrowings, unsecured
other loan and corporate bonds disclosed in notes 34, 35 and 37
respectively.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
continuous basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt.

AEBNENERE 5 HERRAEE AR
BEROAFHERLE  RANEBBLER
KA EBRBERFRFALOR - 5 £—
FEE - ARE 2 BEERAFTE

AREBENBEGAEERAEE L RE R
HER o W RIZREBARBRRAREE
HE - BEIFRED R AMIEESS - 35 R37TH
BMRITHEE  BEREMERRARIE

ARAESGRFEEEHEARBET
mat o mE TIEZ — B N ARRIEEYH
BARAREBERNNEERRETE
& BRBEARREENHERE  A5H
BB NRE - BT - BEBD I
NETHES  EEREARBRE TS -

The total debt to total assets ratio at the end of reporting period was RNEH RN B EEEBEE 2L RN
as follows: T
2017 2016
—=—tfF —ZE—K
HK$°000 HK$'000
BYTT BT T
Current liabilities mEa R
Bank borrowings RITEE 214,400 77,280
Unsecured other loans IR E BN 600 600
Corporate bonds NRES - 667,219
Total debt ESMERE 215,000 745,099
Total assets B E 3,574,801 3,846,900
Total debt to total assets ratio B RREAEE 2 LR 6.0% 19.4%
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44. €fTH
Categories of financial instruments SMIRSHE
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BYTTT BT T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEGFABR L
profit or loss CREE 1,173 1,279
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESHEE 705,477 513,130
Loans and receivables (including cash ERKERZE(BIERS
and cash equivalents) MIREEEY) 1,651,492 2,189,401
Financial liabilities Ea =N
At amortised costs HSHRCR 315,733 872,683
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERBEZERERBFE

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, loans receivable, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, available-for-sale financial assets,
entrusted loan receivables, held-for-trading securities, pledged bank
deposits, deposits in other financial institution, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, bank borrowings and unsecured other
loans. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments including
currency risk, price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Currency risk

As at 31 December 2017, except for the following, the Group do not
have significant financial assets or financial liabilities denominated
in currencies other than their functional currencies at the end of the
reporting period.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. €MTAR(E)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets denominated

in currencies other than the functional currencies of the respective
group companies as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

EMIRFME)
HMERBREZEEMRBE ()

B (E)

R-FB—tER_F-—ARF+_A=+—
H  AEENSEERRDEEEUINE
KHEZeREEZ REESRIINAT

Assets
gE
2017 2016
—B—t% e
HK$’000 HK$000
B¥® T BEFT
usD =TT 235,389 264,844

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
but the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2017, financial assets denominated in USD
belongs to the group companies of which their functional currency
is HK$. As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group considers that the
currency risk arising from transactions in USD is not significant.

As at 31 December 2016, financial assets denominated in USD
belongs to the group companies of which their functional currency is
RMB. The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk between RMB
and USD.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in RMB against USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in the exchange rate between RMB
and USD. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding USD
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
reporting date for a 5% change in exchange rates. The analysis
illustrates the impact for a 5% strengthening of RMB against the
USD and a positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax
result while a negative number below indicates a decrease in post-tax
result. For a 5% weakening of RMB against USD, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the post-tax result.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended 31 December 2017 | & Z =

—tH&+=-A=1+—8H

44. EMT R (&)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued) SMIASBE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEHERKE (/E)
(Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) SRR 7T (48)
2017 2016
—2—+tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BY¥TT BT T
Impact to the result for the year HENEENTE = (11,057)
Price risk B b

The Group's held-for-trading securities and certain available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
date with reference to the quoted prices. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to equity price risk and the management of the Group will
monitor the price movements and take appropriate actions when is
required.

The directors considered the exposure of held-for-trading securities
to equity price risk is minimal and no sensitivity analysis is prepared.

Sensitivity analysis is performed by management to assess the
exposure of the Group's financial results to price risks of available-
for-sale financial assets carried at fair value at the end of each of
the reporting period. If the prices of the respective instruments
held by the Group had been 5% (2016: 5%) higher/lower as at 31
December 2017, the other comprehensive income would have been
approximately HK$18,932,000 (2016: HK$12,077,000) higher/lower.

Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to the Group’s
variable rate deposits and bank balances, loans receivable, available-
for-sale financial assets, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary and bank borrowings. The fair value
interest rate risk relates primarily to these respective instruments.
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

The Group has exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate. The directors
consider the interest bearing instruments are with maturity within
1 year and their interest rate risk is not significant as these financial
assets are within short maturity period and thus it is not included in
sensitivity analysis.

AEENBEEEES A TAHEES
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. €MTAR(E)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates after considering the impact of the interest
expenses being capitalised as properties under development at the
end of the reporting period. A 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used which represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

As at 31 December 2017, if interest rates on interest bearing
instruments with maturity over 1 year had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all of other variables were held constant, the post-
tax result would increase/decrease by approximately HK$746,000
(2016: HK$281,000).

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, loans receivable, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary, available-for-sale financial assets,
deposits in other financial institution and bank balances. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has reviewed
the recoverable amount of each aforesaid individual assets at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management
of the Group considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Before accepting any new lessee under sale and leaseback
arrangement, the Group assesses the credit quality of each
potential lessee and defined limits for each lessee. The Group also
demands certain lessee to provide corporate guarantees from their
respective controlling shareholders or related parties or land and
building as collateral to the Group at the time the sale and leaseback
arrangement is entered into. In addition, the Group has reviewed the
repayment history of sale and leaseback payments from each lessee
with reference to the repayment schedule from the date of loans
receivable to determine the recoverability of the loans receivable.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are mainly banks and other financial institution with high credit-rating
or with good reputation.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has concentration of credit risk
with (a) two (2016: three) customers from bulk commodities trading,
with aggregated amount of trade receivables of HK$15,728,000
(2016: HK$62,976,000); (b) nine (2016: nine) lessees from sale and
leaseback arrangements, with aggregated amount of loans receivable
of HK$742,261,000 (2016: HK$663,199,000). To monitor the credit
risk exposure, the management of the Group has reviewed the
recoverability of each debtor periodically.

The Group carried out bulk commodity trading business involving
purchase and sale transactions. Bulk commodity trading business
involves various individual suppliers and customers. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, 11.7% of turnover of bulk commodity
trading (2016: 21% of turnover of bulk commodity trading) was
attributable to a single customer. This concentration risk is addressed
by individual counterparty analysis carried out by the management
and is monitored on an ongoing basis.

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEZXEEEERLAT 173

BF 755 R 2R B

44. &@MTAR(E)

EMIRFME)
HMERREZEEMRBE (E)

=B /ER (&)

e E BB PEIE T AR AR A
ZH AEBEESFMSBEABEAZER
M WARESEBEAZRE - £5] LS
EEIELZHER - ANEE N ESRE LA A
MAEERHESERIRRSKEES 20
FERITHREEMESERD - 1t
Hh - REEBD2REWNERAE R ZEK
BEX  BRASEEAZEROERIER
T sr - DAREE FEME SR 2 AT E K
T o

nBEEZEERRER  ARXSH7
IZRRAASEETRRZTARAZRT
R Bt & BRAEAE

RZE—+E+-_A=1+—0 x&£EZ
FEERBEFPR : @QERZ(ZZE—RF
ZR)BPZARAMES  BHREWFE
4A%E A H515,728,000 T (Z 2 —N4F ¢ B
#62,976,0007T) ; (b)EENZ(ZF—/XF :
hB)EBAZERBERELY  EBRERE
5B 742,261,000C( —E—RF B
#663,199,0007T) °~ BEEEFERR @ A
EEEEREE THRASRBEBARKR
BEIE 2 AT EIKFE -

AEBHRER TP REERSMNAFTEmME
SFEB c AREmBIEB I RLREL
HEBLEF -REE-_Z—+&+—-A
=+—HIEFE ARREmESHEBKHE
BH21T%(ZF—RF: KrEmESH
EHEZ21%)REHE—RP2ZRG - BE
BETERNEFAON - AW IFEE
EEESEP R



For the Year Ended 31 December 2017 | BZ=F—tF+=HA=+—H
Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 755 SR AR B

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. €MTAR(E)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group has bank balances
and cash, deposits and available-for-sale financial assets in certain
corporations and banks in the PRC and Hong Kong. The credit risk on
these deposits and available-for-sale financial assets is insignificant
as the counterparties are banks with high credit-rating or with good
reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management of the Group to finance the Group's operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
of the Group monitors the utilisation of bank loans and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

Liguidity table

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be demanded for repayment. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. &@MTR(E)
Categories of financial instruments (Continued) SMIASBE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERBREEHERRE ()
(Continued)
Liquidity table (Continued) ABELHK(E)
At 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—+F+=-_HA=+—H
Weighted
average Within Total
interest rate 1 year or undiscounted Carrying
per annum on demand cash flows amount
miEFH —FR8 RURR S
FFE BEXK m Rkt IRE{E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYTTT BYETT BY¥TTT
Trade and other payables 5N EAMENFIR - 100,733 100,733 100,733
Bank borrowings RITIER 2.75% 220,307 220,307 214,400
Unsecured other loans EERE A E R - 600 600 600
321,640 321,640 315,733

Financial guarantee issued BHEZHEER

Maximum amount BEEREELHE
guaranteed 188,887 188,887 -
At 31 December 2016 RZF—AF+ZA=+—H
Weighted
average Within Total
interest rate 1 year or undiscounted Carrying
per annum on demand cash flows amount
INEF 1 —F R REURHAE
FFIx RER e A RmEE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BT BEFIT
Trade and other payables B 5 KR E A ERSFRIE - 127,584 127,584 127,584
Bank borrowings PITER 4.35% 84,150 84,150 77,280
Unsecured other loans EEREMER - 600 600 600
Corporate bonds NEEH 4.00% 676,651 676,651 667,219
888,985 888,985 872,683
Financial guarantee issued B H A MER
Maximum amount BEEREREHE
guaranteed 177,037 177,037 -
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. €MTAR(E)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets include available-for-sale
financial assets measured at fair value and listed equity
securities with standard terms and conditions and traded in
active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the Group's
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

An analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, are classified as Level 1 based on the
degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets.

At 31 December 2017, the available-for-sale financial assets

measured at fair value and listed equity securities which grouped into
Level 1 amounted to HK$379,804,000 (2016: HK$242,809,000).

There is no transfer/reclassification out of Level 1 in both years.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 44. EMTAR(E)

Categories of financial instruments (Continued) eMTASE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERBREEHERRE ()
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy NFEER

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017

R-S—tF+-A=+—BZAFEHE

Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
R-E—tF
+=RA=+—H
B -t B=R ZOFE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETIT BY¥TIT
Recurring fair value EEEATENE
measurement
Financial assets: PEEE
Available-for-sale financial AEHESmEE
assets 378,631 - - 378,631
Held-for-trading securities BIEEEE S 1,173 - - 1,173
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016
R=B—AFT-A=T—RZATEHE
Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
RZE—RF
+=A=+—8
FE—H E-H B ZATHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BFT BT BETFT BT
Recurring fair value BEMHOTFEIE
measurement
Financial assets: PEEE
Available-for-sale financial At ESREE
assets 241,530 - - 241,530
Held-for-trading securities BEEBES 1,279 = = 1,279
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 December 2017, the Group had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees of approximately HK$124,639,000 (2016:
HK$117,072,000) given to banks in respect of mortgage loans
granted to purchasers of certain property units.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks, and the Group is entitled
to take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the financial impact arising from providing the above financial
guarantees is insignificant and accordingly, they are not
accounted for in these financial statements.

On 29 March 2016, the Group entered into a guarantee
agreement with Chengtong Coal, a subsidiary of the ultimate
holding company of the Company, pursuant to which the
Group has provided a guarantee by pledging its office premises
(categorised as buildings in note 15) with net book value of
approximately HK$50,812,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$50,928,000) and issuing a guarantee letter to the Supreme
People's Court of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region to
the extent of approximately RMB53,540,000 (approximately
HK$64,248,000) for a period of three years (or such shorter
period as may be approved by the court). The guarantee was
for the purpose of supporting a property preservation order on
certain subject assets under litigation between Chengtong Coal
and its debtors.

On 29 March 2016, the Group also entered into the Indemnity
Deed with CCHK pursuant to which CCHK agreed to indemnify
the Group in full for its liabilities and loss, if any, which may
arise from the above guarantee provided by the Group.

Details in relation to the guarantee agreement and the
Indemnity Deed were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 29 March 2016.
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued) 45. EBFRKGE)
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the financial impact AAREERE  BE AT BERES
arising from providing the above financial guarantees is insignificant M EMTRE MW KREZZTE
and accordingly, they were not accounted for in these financial eI -
statements.
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group was not involved in R-BE—+FR_E—RFEF+-_A=1+—
any litigation or arbitration of material importance and there was no B AEEBEDP REMEARFLRM
litigation or claim of material importance known to the directors of the o ARREESHTINBBEEME R T4
Company to be pending or threatened against the Group. HAFETE AR B MR W EARFARRE ©
46. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 46. EXKIE
2017 2016
—E—tf —TRE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETIT BEFT
Contracted but not provided for: EEESEES L.
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  BEREME
equipment 4,472 5,309
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 47. FLTFIMBHFRAE
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
kA BETT BB F T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMRE 512 116
Interests in subsidiaries RETB AR Z s - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries A Rl EENGIE S 173,043 173,039
173,555 173,155
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments  Efi el k18 « FENRIE R
and deposits B& 4,316 3,921
Available-for-sale financial assets A[{tHESRIEE 208,451 241,530
Amounts due from subsidiaries e BT B A B FkIE 2,008,157 2,399,259
Bank balances and cash RITEERRS 35,746 39,138
2,256,670 2,683,848
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables HAth fETFRIE 2,691 6,419
Bank borrowings RITIEE 200,000 =
Corporate bonds NAEfESH - 667,219
202,691 673,638
Net current assets mENEESE 2,053,979 2,010,210
Net assets BESE 2,227,534 2,183,365
EQUITY Es
Share capital 5% 38 2,185,876 2,185,876
Reserves &G 40 41,658 (2,511)
Total equity Bl 2,227,534 2,183,365
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on HEFERN _ZT—\F=A-BHERRK
2 March 2018 and signed on its behalf by: BT ARARKESE
Yuan Shaoli Zhang Bin
RRE RiE
Director Director
EE 2
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Principal Properties

ETEYE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A. BEME
Group's Approximate
effective Approximate gross Category

Location 1B interest site area floor area of lease
.31 14 i) Ldobt: Tl

f ¢ 5 ik [ iibak b
(sq. m.) (sq. m.)
(FrA) (Fr)

Phase |, Chengtong Xiang Xie Li, No. 1 HEILRE ST 100% Note (a) 4849  Commercial Medium-term
Mizhou West Road, Zhucheng City, TR —5 Hiitie) lease
Shandong Province, the PRC HAEHEE -1 R4

Phase Ill, Chengtong Xiang Xie Li, No. 1~ HE|LF & #lm 100% Note (a) 2,716 Commercial Medium-term
Mizhou West Road, Zhucheng City, BN AR fifitta) lease
Shandong Province, the PRC HAEHEE=H HEERA)

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B. BHEERMXE

Group's
effective Approximate
Location 1B interest sitearea  Usage Category of lease
FREZ it
EHH#a wEEE RBE BHER
(sq. m.)
(F7A)

A piece of land situated at HETHEAED 66.67% 549,600 Industrial Medium-term lease
south of Shugang Highway, fioyNE T3 1% sbiyisbly
Dafeng City, —fRLit
Jiangsu Province,
the PRC

Lot No. 1, Port Serviced Area, HETHEALH 66.67% 84,648  Residential and Commercial -
Dafeng Ocean Economic AEEHEEREE commercial Medium-term lease
Development Area, AOERBR 1SR FEREE Residential -

Dafeng City, Long lease
Jiangsu Province, ESS
the PRC RN
FE-
itk

South Portion of Lot No. 2, HETHEAED 66.67% 28956 Residential and Commercial -

Port Serviced Area, ALGHLERRER commercial Medium-term lease
Dafeng Ocean Economic NERER2% FEREE Residential -
Development Area, sl Long lease
Dafeng City, o
Jiangsu Province, A
the PRC FE-

itk

Lot No. 3, Port Serviced Area, HETHEALH 66.67% 244248 Residential and Commercial -
Dafeng Ocean Economic AEEHEEREE commercial Medium-term lease
Development Area, AERBR3E FEREE Residential -

Dafeng City, Long lease
Jiangsu Province, ESS
the PRC RN
FE-
itk
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Principal Properties

EEYE

C. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT C. ZEETYE
Group's
effective  Approximate Category Stage of Expected
Location interest sitearea  Usage of lease completion completion date
.3 14 i
REHR ll!{ﬂﬁﬁ) R BEH RRKER FitER A%
5. m.
(Er )

North Portion of Lot No. 2, PETELAEN 66.67% Note(b)  Residentialand ~ Commercial - Part of Remaining
Port Serviced Area, ABGEOERER Wittt commercial Medium-term Section Section I
Dafeng Ocean Economic DERBE: ENEE lease work is expected
Development Area, il Residential - in progress to be completed
Dafeng City, Long lease BH-ER in Year 2019
Jiangsu Province, %- TR BT R
the PRC itk RZE-NE

fre- T
RN

Anparcel of land designated RELREZATEN 100% Note(3)  Residentia Long lease Phase Il Phase Il
as No. 01213003 and located AR A2 Wite) (% Rifs work in is expected
on the northern side of —RHH (R RS progress to be completed
Mizhou West Road Eastern Section, 5012130035 = in Year 2018
Zhucheng City, T 102020
Shandong Province, =HRR
the PRC —I-)\F2

“E-ZF
T
D. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE D. BEHEME
Group's Approximate
effective Approximate saleable gross Category
Location B interest site area floor area  Usage of lease
FREZ LiEg] BHTE
RE#a ¥ “EEER B2 iibak ok
(sq. m.) (sq. m.)
(F7K) (FF)

North Portion of Lot No. 2, RETHAAEMAL 66.67% Note (b) 20562  Residentialand  Commercial -
Port Serviced Area, BEEERER AR fifit(b) (Section | and Il) commercial Medium-term
Dafeng Ocean Economic RisE25 Rl 20562 [FEREE lease
Development Area, (&R Residential -
Dafeng City, “EZR) Long lease
Jiangsu Province, %=
the PRC G

fiz-
b ifiikg

A parcel of land designated HELREESmEM 100% Note (a) 39322 Residentialand  Commercial -
as No. 01213003 and i34 Wit (Phase I, Il commercial Medium-term
located on the northern side of — R (R RS andll)  EEREE lease
Mizhou West Road £01213003%%) 39,322 Residential -
Eastern Section, (—8. -8 Long lease
Zhucheng City, k=) mE-
Shandong Province, adailiikg
the PRC fFE-

ik
Note (a) Part of a parcel of land designated as No. 01213003 and located on Hiiz(a) B BILUREER TN EEREL

the northern side of Mizhou West Road Eastern Section, Zhucheng
City, Shandong Province, the PRC, total site area is 146,006 sg.m.

Note (b)

Part of North Portion of Lot No. 2, Port Serviced Area, Dafeng Ocean

Hf72(b)

Economic Development Area, Dafeng City, Jiangsu Province, the
PRC, total site area is 118,974 sq.m.
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Financial Summary

LR Y

NTRAEEBE—_ZT—+tF+_A=+—H1t
FEMBEMNEMBFERE ZETIEFEREER
BEZHE  DREBEZSEERUBTRRLE
EHEE 2EH DR - ILHBS MERZFLE
ZEA RIS 2 — &b

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the last four financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and reclassified
as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tf —ERF 8% —Z-NE —Z-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BEFT JBMFT JBMFT BEFT
RESULTS f 1
Turnover ] 1,353,119 716,559 576,533 3,224,100 15,500,313
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners AR RIEA AT,/
of the Company (B#) 23,363 63,804 81,830 (51,417) 50,727
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HERAR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BE KR 202,715 158,713 179,059 187,722 209,097
Prepaid land lease payments B LAENR 196,781 188,949 206,579 51,760 54,496
Investment properties REME 63,816 58,934 58,468 58,086 187,760
Deposits paid BfiEe 4,966 37,027 39,341 29,181 358,144
Loans receivable R ER 383,902 353,654 261,493 194,173 =
Available-for-sale financial asset AftHESREE 5,246 - - - -
Current assets REEE
Properties held for sale BEEEME 251,688 159,716 242,917 287,498 111,641
Properties held for development  #{EZEME 109,824 276,450 293,728 311,006 313,968
Properties under development BRbYE 296,196 241,042 169,581 160,469 283,996
Inventories I3y 4,281 6,145 22,922 23,191 5,583
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMERZIE 129,040 97,879 73,492 403,444 11,709,593
Loans receivable [EME T 358,359 309,545 162,969 85,538 -
Prepaid land lease payments B THRSMAR 5,665 5,287 5414 2,007 2,026
Entrusted loan receivables FEREZTER - 7,840 59,140 107,525 363,744
Available-for-sale financial assets At HESRERE 700,231 513,130 410,136 - -
Held-for-trading securities BEBEEE 1,173 1,279 1,234 1,703 2,108
Short-term investments R E - 13,440 16,660 594,720 2,814,314
Tax recoverable ElEL 3,004 - _ _ _
Structured bank deposits HERMERTTR - - 167,790 662,760 =
Pledged bank deposits BAHRITER 4,006 1,640 1,737 1,774,816 676,073
Deposits in other financial HEuemEEER
institution 86,200 428,186 355,650 - -
Bank balances and cash BITREERES 749,708 929,903 1,048,218 728127 2,557,297
Amount due from a non-controlling  fEYk—Rifft B2 7]
shareholder of a subsidiary —BIERRRHIE 18,000 21,318 21,641 21,686 20,488
Loan to a related party BT —REERNER - 36,823 38,888 54,454 50,880
Total assets BEE 3,574,801 3,846,900 3,837,057 5,739,866 19,721,208

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEZXEEEER AT 183
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Financial Summary

LURLT

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—2—tf —ERE “T-H%F —T-mE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETTT BEFTT JBEFT JBEFIT BEFT
Current liabilities g =
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMENTIA (156,869) (127,834) (107,333) (2,798,209) (7,287,370)
Deposits received from sale of HEWME L
properties Bz (128,921) (72,920) (53,294) (58,728) (59,306)
Taxation payable FERTHIR (5,929) (3,148) (2,218) (26,029) (62,515)
Bank borrowings RITEE (214,400) (77,280) - (68,157) (9,273,700)
Unsecured other loans EIRREMER (600) (600) (600) (600) (600)
Corporate bonds RNAlESH - (667,219) - = (761,528)
Non-current liabilities FRBAR
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAR (81,635) (73,088) (74,608) (52,584) (58,569)
Corporate bonds RNAlES - - (694,757) (721,610) =
Total liabilities BELE (588,354) (1,022,089) (932,810) (3,725,917) (17,503,588)

2017 Annual Report £E#HE
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